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PROCEEDI NGS

THE VI DEOCGRAPHER: W are on the
record at 9:03 a.m on July 5, 2021.
Audi o and video recording will continue
to take place until all parties agree to
go off the record. Please note that
m cr ophones are sensitive and may pick
up whi spering and private conversati ons.

This is the video recorded
deposition of Melissa DeRosa, in the
matter of | ndependent |nvestigation
under |aw Section 63, Subpoint 8.

This deposition is being held at
Cleary, Cottlieb, Steen & Ham|lton LLP
| ocated at One Liberty Plaza New York,
New Yor k.

My nane is Christian Bi donde.

"' mthe videographer on behalf of US
Legal Support. The court certified
st enographer is Patricia Bidonde, on
behal f of US Legal Support.

I"'mnot related to any party in

this action nor am| financially

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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I nterested in the outcone.

Counsel will state their
appear ances for the record, after which
the court reporter will swear in the
W t ness.

MS. KENNEDY PARK: Good nor ni ng,
Ms. DeRosa. |'mJennifer Kennedy Park.
I"'mwith the law firmof C eary,
Cottlieb, Steen & Ham Iton. But for
today' s purposes, |I'ma Special Deputy,
the First Deputy Attorney Ceneral of the
New York Attorney Ceneral's office.

M5. CLARK: H . 1'mAnne dark
fromthe law firm of WVl adeck, Raskin &
Clark. And again, | amalso a Speci al
Deputy today.

MR KIM Joon Kim also from
Cleary, Cottlieb, Steen & Ham Iton and
appeari ng as a Speci al Deputy today.

MS. M CHELEN: Lorena M chel en,
also fromddeary, CGottlieb, appearing as
a Special Assistant to the First Deputy
Attorney General.

MR. HECKER: Sean Hecker, Shawn

Crow ey, and Justin Horton, all from

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Kapl an Hecker & Fink for Ms. DeRosa.
MELI SSA DEROSA called as a
W t ness, having been duly sworn by a
Notary Public, was exam ned and
testified as foll ows:
EXAM NATI ON BY
MS. KENNEDY PARK:

Q Good norning, M. DeRosa.
A Good nor ni ng.
Q As | just nentioned, nmy nanme is

Jenni fer Kennedy Park. The New York Attorney
Ceneral has appointed the law firnms O eary,
Gottlieb, Steen & Ham I ton and VI adeck, Raskin
& Cark to conduct an independent

i nvestigation under New York Executive Law 63
Section (8) into allegations of sexual
harassnment brought agai nst Governor Andrew
Cuono as well as the surroundi ng

ci rcunst ances.

You' re here today pursuant to a
subpoena i ssued in connection with that
investigation. |1'll note at the outset that
obvi ously today's proceeding is being video
recorded and you are under oath.

That neans that you nust testify

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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fully and truthfully just as if you were
sitting in a court of |aw before a judge or a
jury. And your testinony is subject to the

penalty of perjury. Do you understand?

A | do.
Q If you would like to make a bri ef
sworn statenment today, |'Il give you the

opportunity to do so at the conclusion of the
exam nati on, whether that be today or
tonmorrow. GCkay? Do you understand?

A | do.

Q Al though this is a civi
i nvestigation, the New York Attorney Ceneral's
of fice has crimnal enforcenent authority. So
you have the right to refuse to answer ny
guestions if answering the question would
i ncrimnate you.

However, a failure to answer can

be used against you in a court of lawin a
civil proceeding. Do you understand?

A | do.

Q Okay. You're appearing today
wi th your attorneys. You can consult your
attorneys today about privileged matters. But

this is not a deposition, and so they won't be

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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maki ng obj ections. Do you understand?

A. Mm hmm

Q kay. As you can see, we have a
court reporter, and we are very thankful to be
in person today. So you just said "mmhmmi a
second ago. W can't say mmhmm So you have
to say yes or no when you're answering ny
guestions. You can't nod because she can't
record a nod.

Do you under st and?

A | do.
Q Ckay. And you have to let ne
finish before you answer, and I'Il |et you

finish your answer so that she can record ny
guestions and your answers. Do you
under st and?

A | do.

Q Ckay. |If you want to clarify an
answer at any point, whether it's to a
gquestion that |'ve just asked you or a
guestion | asked you before, just tell ne.
Just say "Actually, there's sonething | want
to clarify,"” and we'll go back and we'll do
t hat .

Do you under st and?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.

com
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A | do.
Q If you don't understand a
guestion |I'm asking, please tell nme you don't

understand. Al right?

A Yes.

Q There you go. I|I'mgoing to ask
about some names. |'mgoing to ask about sone
dates and sone other specific information. |If

you don't renenber a specific nane, if you
don't remenber a specific date, |'m asking you
to give nme your best approximtion.

Do you under st and?

A Yup.

Q If you need a break, just let us
know, and we'll go off the record as |ong as
there's not a question pending. |f you want
to take a break, I'Il just ask -- answer the

guestion |'ve just asked, and then we can take
a break. Al right?
A Sur e.
Q No one is recording this in the
room ot her than the videographer?
MR. HECKER: Correct.
M5. CROALEY: Correct.
MR, HORTON: Correct.

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Q There you go. Al right. Under
Executive Law 63, Section 8, the provision of
which this is being conducted, you're
prohi bited and your counsel is prohibited from
reveal i ng anyt hi ng about which we ask you
t oday or anything about which you tell us
today. |f anyone asks you to disclose that
i nformati on, you should |let us know.

Do you under st and?

A | do.

Q kay. Are you taking any
nmedi cation or drugs that m ght make it
difficult for you to understand ny questions?

A No.

Q Can you state your nane, date of
birth, and your current hone and busi ness
addr ess?

A Mel i ssa Di na DeRosa.
I Should | be I ooking at
you or her when | answer these questions?

Q So you should really be | ooking
at the canera to the best you can, but |
understand that's awkward. So we'll | ook at

each ot her.

A Oay. I ™
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at
I Ad | have two

of fices, 633 Third Avenue in Manhattan and the
New York State Capitol in Al bany.

Q Ckay. We're both talking a
little fast today. So we'll both try to slow

down or the court reporter will tell us to

sl ow down and we'll do our best. Al right?
A Ckay.
Q kay. Have you ever given

testi nony before?

A | have not.

Q kay. O her than conversations
with your | awers, what have you done to
prepare for today's testinony?

A | went back and reviewed sone
news articles. | went back and revi ewed sone
e-mails and text nessages, and we did two Zoom
prep sessions and two in-person prep sessions.

Q Are all the news articles,
e-mails, and text nessages that you revi ewed
to prepare for today docunents that your
counsel has produced to us?

Yes.

Q Al right. You ve got two big
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bi nders in front of you. |If you can pull open
t he second binder right here, the farthest one

to your left.

A. The farthest one to ny left? So
this one?

Q Sorry. Your right.

A. Ckay.

Q And go to Tab 246. Sorry, very

thick. We'll mark this as our first exhibit.
W'l take a nonent to look at it. And when
you' re done, just | ook up.
(Exhibit 1, Testinony Subpoena
for Melissa DeRosa, dated June 28, 2021

marked for identification, as of this

date.)
A. (Docunent review.)
Q Ckay. Is this the testinony

subpoena you received fromthe New York

Attorney General's office?

A | believe so.

Q Did you read this subpoena before
t oday?

A No.

Q So this is the first time you're

reading it?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Yes.
kay. Have you fully read it?

Just now, yes.

o > O »

Ckay. Do you understand that
this is the subpoena to which your testinony
IS being taken today?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. We're going to turn to
Tab 237, and mark this as the next exhibit.

(Exhibit 2, Subpoena from New

York Attorney General's office for

Mel i ssa DeRosa, requesting docunents,

mar ked for identification, as of this

date.)

Q Way don't you take a |l ook at it.
And then when you're done looking at it, |et
me know.

A Yes, so |'ve read this one
previ ously.

Q kay. So is this the subpoena
for docunents that you received fromthe --

A Yes.

Q -- New York State Attorney
General's office? You just have to wait.

A Sorry.

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.

com




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P P PR R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021

Q It's okay. She'll go crazy if we
don't do that.

So is this the testinony subpoena
for docunents that you received fromthe New
York Attorney General's office?

A Yes.

Q kay. And did you reviewthis
bef ore today?

A Yes.

Q What did you do to conply with

t he subpoena?

A. The law firm Kapl an Hecker i naged
nmy phone. | gave them access to ny personal
Gmil and nmy canpaign Gmil. Al of ny

e-mails on ny official executive e-mail had
been retained previously because | had been
under a litigation hold.

So from | think, March 1
forward, everything had been retained.
Whet her or not | had it deleted it in ny
i nbox, there was a backup copy. And | gave
the I T people in ny office ny BlackBerry to
extract the pins.

Q kay. So just back up. So your

Bl ackBerry, was that sonething that was issued

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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to you by the executive chanber?

A Yes.

Q And you provided that to Harold
Moor e?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And your phone, what kind
of phone was it?

A An i Phone.

Q Ckay. Do you have any ot her
cellul ar devices other than the Bl ackBerry and
t he phone?

A There was a work i Phone that was
issued to ne two years ago that | never turned
on and woul dn't be able to turn on if you
asked me to. So that exists in the world, but
it wouldn't have anything relevant on it, and
| don't know where it is.

Q kay. And the cellular phone
that you provided to counsel, that was an
i Phone?

Yes.

Q And you said you gave your
counsel access to your personal Gmail and to
your canpaign e-nmail. Do you have any ot her

e-mai | addresses other than your executive

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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chanber e-mail address?

A No.

Q Did you | ook through any paper
files?

A. | don't keep paper files.

Q You don't keep any not ebooks or
journal s or schedul es?

A No.

Q Your personal iPhone, did you
check your auto delete feature at any point?

A Yes. After we received the
subpoena on March 15, we were instructed
shortly after that to make sure that the
30-day auto-del ete had been turned off.

Q And had your 30-day auto-delete
been turned off prior to March 15?

A. | believe a couple of days prior.

Q How much earlier than March 15
did you turn off the auto-delete feature on

your i Phone?

A. | think it was probably around
the 12th.
Q What caused you to turn off the

aut o-del ete feature on your i Phone?

A. | didn't realize that it was on.

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.

com
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And | was talking to Harold about infornmation
that | was -- needed to preserve for another
matter. And so in that process, we realized
that the 30-day auto-delete was on and turned
it off.

Q Any ot her docunents you searched
to provide in response to the subpoena?

A. Ch, ny Twitter account. They
searched the DMs in ny Twitter account.

Q Did you give your counsel access
to any other social nedia accounts?

A Yes. But there was not hing.
They only have I nstagram and there's nothing
related to this. And then | believe that they
al so went through nmy -- the hard drive on ny
conputer, both in New York City and Al bany, to
see if there were any rel evant docunents.

Q When you say "the hard drive on
your conputers in New York City and Al bany, "
are those executive chanber-issued devices or
personal devices?

A. Executi ve chanber devi ces.
They' re ny deskt ops.

Q So your counsel, M. Hecker, and

hi s col |l eagues went through your executive

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.

com
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chanber hard drives?

A | actually don't know if they did
or if the executive chanber did.

Q Ckay. And do you have any
personal conputers?

A. A | apt op.

Q And what happened with that?

A. | gave it to Kaplan Hecker and
they inaged it.

Q And goi ng back to social nedia,

do you have Facebook?

A No.

Q Snapchat ?

A No.

Q Any of the other snap platforns?
A. Not hi ng.

Q Do you use Linkedl n?

A No.

Q Anyt hing el se we haven't covered

that you did to respond to the subpoena for
docunent s?

A | think that's it.

Q kay. Can you take us through
your educational background, starting with

uni versity or college?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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A | attended Cornell University in
| t haca, New York, received a bachel or's degree
in industrial and | abor rel ations, graduated
in 2004, and then | returned to Cornel
Uni versity a couple of years |ater and got a
master's in public adm nistration and

graduated in 2009.

Q I"mjust going to ask you to sl ow
down. Ckay?

A. Sorry. It's the pace of ny --

Q | understand but she has to

record it, and otherwi se we're going to nake
her day very difficult if we don't slow down.

O her than the master's from

Cornell, do you have any advanced degrees?
A No.
Q Have you taken any advanced
cour ses?
A No.
Q Can you outline your enploynent

hi story for us, starting with your first
position after graduating from Cornell in
20047?

A | was a fashion publicist out of

school for a year at Theory, which is a

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.

com
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fashi on house here in New York, ny rebellious

phase. | then worked for Bolton-St. Johns,
which is nmy father's firm | was there for a
year.

| worked for one of his partners
on a coupl e of canpaigns, a transportation
bond act initiative and a congressional
canpai gn.

| then worked for -- as a
canpai gn manager for a worman runni ng for
congress in Upstate New York, |GGG
at which tine | was doing that while
si nul t aneously attendi ng graduate school and
goi ng back and forth.

And at the conclusion of that
canpai gn, | becane the director of
comruni cations and | egislation for public
affairs from Cordo & Conpany.

After that | was naned New York
State director of President Cbama's political
organi zation in New York, Organizing for
Aneri ca.

After that | was named deputy
chief of staff to the attorney general when it

was Eric Schneiderman | served as his acting




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P P PR R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021

chief of staff for a brief period of tinme, and
then | becanme communi cations director for
Gover nor Cuono.

In 2015 we anended ny title to be
comruni cati ons director and strategi c advisor
to the governor. The next year | was naned
chief of staff, and a year and a half later,
secretary to the governor.

| also serve as the chai rwonman on
t he Council on Wnen and Grls.

Q When did you becone the

communi cations director for the executive

chanber ?

A. April 2013.

Q And just to nake sure | got this
right: In 2015 is when you becane -- you
added the title -- | think you said strategic
advi sor ?

A. Yeah, in January of 2015,

strategic advisor. And then | believe that
Decenber is when | was nanmed chief of staff.
Q Decenber of 20167
A | think it was 2015 or
January 2016.

Q Tell us about how it is that you

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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becane the comuni cations director for the
executive chanber.

A | had known Governor Cuono for
years just through political circles. | knew
alot of his top staff. So | was on their
radar .

When he was running for attorney
general and won, they actually tried to hire
me to cone in and be director of
i ntergovernnental affairs. Joe Percoco and
Josh Viasto and |l cnoaged ne on that.

| declined because | had an offer
to be deputy chief of staff to the attorney
general, and | thought that | would get nore
hi gh-1 evel experience being, you know, fewer
chiefs situation. And so | declined that.

And then two years |l ater, when
t he position for conmunications director
opened up, they reached back out and recruited
me. And it was an offer | couldn't pass up.

Q When you say "they reached back
out," who reached back out?

A Josh VI asto, Joe Percoco, and
Larry Schwartz.

Q And you said it was an offer you
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couldn't pass up. Wiy is that?

A Bei ng communi cations director to
t he governor of the State of New York is, you
know, for nme, growng up in politics and
al ways sort of dream ng of being at the center
of the political world was sonething that |
couldn't say no to.

Q Tell us about the interview
process.

A. It wasn't an interview process.
| was recruited,.

Q In the recruitnent process, did

you neet with Governor Cuono?

A. No. Not until after | accepted
t he j ob.

Q How | ong was the recruiting
process?

A. I'"'m-- 1 want to say it was

probably, like, a week and a half. They
needed an answer qui ckly because their
communi cations director was leaving, and if |
wasn't going to take the job, then they were
going to nove on to other options.

| had al ready been working for

the state, and so the background revi ew

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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process was able to be expedited.

Q What was your starting salary as
communi cations director?

A. I think it was Jjjj- It was

conmensurate with the woman who had the job

before e, NN VoS paid.

Q Did you negotiate that salary?

A. | believe | said, "I expect to be
paid what |l vas paid."

Q Did you talk to anybody el se as

part of the decision-nmaking process?

A. What do you nean? Like, |
consulted with famly.

Q O her than famly, did you talk
to anybody el se?

A. Friends, reporters.

Q And which friends did you talk to
during that recruiting process?

A | spoke to |G o was

the attorney general's chief of staff when

was deputy chief of staff. | spoke to
I, o served as
communi cati ons -- or camnpai gn manager to the

governor's 2008 run. People like that who

just were generally in politics.
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Q Anyone el se you can renmenber
talking to during the recruiting process?

A. Li ke coll ege friends,
girlfriends.

Q And what did you talk to |}
B about?

A. | asked himif he thought that it
was a good i dea.

Q And what did he say?

A He thought that | should stay in
the attorney general's office and be, like,
t he youngest chief of staff to the attorney
general, and that | would have a | ot nbre room
to run and grow, and that if |I went over there
as communi cations director, | could get
pi geonhol ed, and in ny tinme in the attorney
general's office, I had grown to be nmuch nore
t han that.

And so he thought that | should

stay and do that versus going to be

communi cati ons director.

Q So he was trying to convince you
to stay?
A Yes.

Q Didn't work?
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A No.

Q And you said |l -- o !
think it was || I \hat --
A I

Q What did you talk to her about?

A. | mean, sane thing, what do you
think, and she said it's going to be a | ot of
work. It's 24/7. It's very intense. He
works really hard. He expects everyone around
himto work really hard.

Al t hough | was al ways, sort of,
hardwired that way. So it wasn't -- that
wasn't sonething that di ssuaded ne. That was
sonet hing that excited ne.

Q Anyt hing el se you renenber she
sai d?

A No.

Q Did either Ms. | o'
M. I say anything about working wth

Larry Schwartz?

A No.

Q O working with Joe Percoco?
A No.

Q And you said --

A Not that | recall.
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Q -- said you spoke to sone coll ege
friends. Wat did you talk to the coll ege
friends about ?

A. What do you think, what shoul d I
do. And they were |ike, of course you should
do this. This is the kind of thing you' ve
want ed your whole life. Like, you're not a
| awyer. Being chief of staff in the attorney
general's office not as a |lawer, |ike, you're
ultimately going to, you know, reach a ceiling
and what's the point.

So go be in the governnent's
office. It's what you love. It's what you

care about. So they encouraged ne to take the

j ob.

Q Anyone di scourage you fromtaking
the job?

A No, other than |l

Q You said, before you took the

role as communi cations director, that you had
known Governor Cuonp for years.

A. M hmm

Q When was the first time you net
Gover nor Cuono?

A | mean, in rope lines and things
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like that fromthe time | was a kid. One
instance that | renmenber neeting himin a nore
substantive way was in 2008 when | worked for
— Epuy ]

They threw a fundrai ser for him
at the Capitol Gille, which was a very snal |
event, 20 people, sit-down lunch. And so it
was a real opportunity to exchange ideas and
hear from hi mon his phil osophy of governing

and get to ask questions.

Q And that was in 2008 you sai d?
A. Mm hmm
Q It was the first substantive

interaction you had with Governor Cuonp?
A M hmm
Q Were you seated at his table
during that |unch?
A. There was only one table.

Q What do you renenber himtalking

about ?

A. I remenber himtal king about
chal | engi ng bureaucracy. | renenber him
t al ki ng about how broken Al bany was. It was,

i ke, very clear back then he was thinking of

runni ng for governor.
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So he tal ked a | ot about his
vision for noving Al bany forward and the
dysfunction and on-time budgets and
| egi slation that would just wean on for years
and years; and that he believed that Al bany
is, sort of, where good ideas cane to die, and
that didn't have to be the way.

And he tal ked a | ot about his
time in Albany in the '80s with his father and
how governnent could be a vehicle for good.

And if you get good, smart, dedicated public

servants, the sky is the limt. It was very
i nspiring.
Q Did you say anything to Governor

Cuono on that occasi on?

A. No. | just listened. | was a
ki d.

Q How ol d were you?

A In 2008 | was |

Q Who el se was at your table?

A. It was the partners at the firm

and sone clients. So G

I od sone other partners -- or sone

other clients of the firm | can't tell you

specifically who. | don't recall
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Q Were you actually introduced to

t he governor on that occasi on?

A. He went around and shook hands
wth everyone. It was a very small event.
Q And after that event in 2008,

when was the next tine you had a substantive
interaction with hinf

A. In 2010, ny father hosted an
event for him and I net him-- renet him
again at that event and had a pretty | engthy

conver sati on.

Q When in 2010 was that event?
A. | don't recall the nonth, but it
had to be -- like, it was before the el ecti on.

It had to be, |ike, August, Septenber of that
year.

Q And you said you had a
substantive interaction. Tell us about that
i nteraction.

A. | was serving as New York State
director for Qhama's political organization.
And so | was point person between N
B " the Wite House and the DNC and
al so the state party here in New York.

We had just done Obanmcare, and
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so we had a | ot of marginal congressional
menbers who were being challenged. This was
during the Tea Party rise. So it was ny job
to, sort of, be the go-between, the politica
eyes and ears, and run the canpaigns uniformy
for the White House.

And so | had access of a
tremendous anount of polling information. |
knew a | ot about what was going on on the
ground and a |l ot of these, |ike, marginal
areas. And he was running for governor.

So we started tal king about that,
and | started telling himwhat | was seeing on
t he ground and where | saw trouble and how I
t hought the trend line were going to go, where
peopl e were not just going to go vote down
bal l ot, but potentially vote across ballot.

And so we just had a very quick

political conversation.

Q How [ ong did that conversation

| ast ?
A Probably, like, ten, 15 m nutes.
Q What was the entry price to

attend this fundraiser?

A. | don't renenber.

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Q Do you renenber how nuch was
rai sed?

A No.

Q When was the next substantive
interaction with Governor Cuono?

A. He called ne a couple of days
|ater to follow up on that conversati on.

Q Where did he call you?

A On ny cell phone.

Q How di d he get your cell phone
nunber ?

A From I

Q How do you know t hat ?

A Because G

texted ne and said, "Stephanie Benton just
asked for your phone nunber. | think the
attorney general is going to reach out."

Q Did you know who Stephani e Benton
was at that tine?

A. | knew that she was the attorney
general's executive assistant.

Q And when was this outreach on
your cell phone fromthe governor?

A. It was shortly after that event.

| don't renenber specifically.
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Q And he call ed you on your cel
phone, and how |l ong did that conversation
| ast ?

A. Probably about ten mnutes. He
wanted to nmake sure that | was talking to his
canpai gn, which was being run at the tinme by

the late | 2nd also the state

party coordi nated effort which was bei ng done
by | sc that all of the resources
wer e bei ng shared and i nformati on shared and
that we were being -- that they were being
hel pful to us, that we were all working
together, which | was happy to do. And that
was actually how | net [N

Q Did he try and recruit you during

that call?

A No.
Q You have amazi ng nenory of these
occasions. Did you -- were there docunents

that you | ooked at that that refreshed your
nmenory about these nonents?

A No.

Q When' s the next substantive
interaction you had with Governor Cuonp?

A. Presi dent Gbhama was conming to a
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CGE plant in Schenectady, and | was the |ead on
the ground for the event. And it was shortly
after the governor had been sworn in.

And so | was charged with, sort
of, corralling all of the elected officials
and maeki ng sure that the event went snoothly
in coordination with the Wite House.

And | saw himat that event and
chatted with himand Senator G |Ilibrand and
Senat or Schumer. It was, like, the first big

event after President Ghama was sworn in in

New Yor k.
Q So that nmkes this when?
A January 2011
Q And you said you chatted with

Governor Cuonop at this event in January of
2011. What did you chat about?

A He asked nme what ny plan was, if
| was going to go on the presidential reelect
canpai gn, which was sort of the natura
guestion at that nonent.

Q And what was your answer?

A | had been offered to be the
deputy national political director, but it

nmeant relocating to Chicago, and | didn't want

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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to do that.

And | thought that it was
exciting that Eric had just been el ected
attorney general, and that he was in the
governor's office. And so | thought there
coul d be an opportunity for nme closer to hone.

Q Did you talk to Governor Cuono
about that opportunity?

A. | just said that, basically, that
| didn't think I wanted to go to Chi cago, and

| wouldn't have a choice if | wanted to take

that role.
Q Did he try to recruit you then?
A. He said, "Wy don't you cone to
work for us? |I'msure there's sonething in

our operation. W're staffing up right now
Talk to Josh and | 21d Joe and
see if there's sonething that nakes sense.™

Q Did you do that?

A. Joe Percoco called nme shortly
afterwards and asked ne if | would be
interested in director of intergovernnental
affairs.

Q How nmuch -- how |l ong after the

neeting with the governor at the event in
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January 2011 did M. Percoco call you?
A. A coupl e of days.
Q And tell us about the

conversation with M. Percoco.

A. He just said, "Hey, reaching out,
followng up. | know you spoke to the
governor at the event in Schenectady. 1Is this
sonet hing you m ght be interested in? | think

you could be great for it."

Q And what did you tell hinf

A. | appreciated the outreach and
the followup, but I had actually accepted an
offer in the intervening period for the
attorney general .

Q Did he try to persuade you to
change your m nd?

A. "Ch, conme on, you want to be in
the governor's office. That's where the rea
stuff happens. W' re going to do marriage
equality. W're going to tane the beast in
Al bany," you know, kind of thing.

And | was like, "I appreciate
that and hopefully down the line | won't mss
an opportunity to join the teamlater on. But

right now!l think this is what's best for ne.

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Q So you're |l eaving the door open a
little bit?

A Yeah.

Q So after the neeting with
the -- well, the chat with the governor in

January 2011, what's your next substantive
interaction with Governor Cuonp?

A. | believe it was the foll ow ng
year, in 2012. W were negotiating |-STOP,
which is this prescription drug package. It
was a big initiative for the attorney general.
And | was his point person on negotiations.

And so it becane pretty clear
pretty early that, if | wanted to get it done,
| had to win the governor's office over.

And so | worked wth Jim
Mal atras, who at the tinme was his policy
director, and Larry Schwartz, who was
secretary to the governor, and, sort of,
brought them along and said this is sonething
that we could do together. People don't
generally think of our offices as working well
together. Here is an opportunity.

And they agreed. And so Jim

Mal atras and | together worked on that. And

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.
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t hrough the course of negotiating that

| egislation, | would be in Jims office. The
governor would wal k in occasionally and say,
"Hell o. How are the negotiations going?" you

know, just snall talk.

Q How di d the negoti ations go?
A. Great. W passed the package.
Q How often were you in neetings

wth M. Malatras or M. Schwartz during that

ti me when the governor popped by?

A. | would say it's sporadic. |
nmean, | was in neetings with JimMal atras
constantly. But it was |like -- you know, it
was incidental. Like, if he happened to be

passi ng through, he would stop in and just
make smal | tal k.
Q And which office were the

nmeetings in?

A Jims office.
Q In 633 --
A No. Up in the state capitol.

During | egislative session, typically we're in
Al bany. And then nonsession days we're in the
city.

Q Were is M. Malatras' office in

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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relation to the governor's office?

A Across the hall.

Q So after the negotiation of
| - STOP, when's your next substantive
interaction with the governor?

A | don't think again until they
recruited nme to cone over in 2013. |'msure
that | saw himat events and said hell o, but
not hi ng that stands out.

Q kay. And you joined as
comruni cations director. Wat was your
responsibility?

A | oversaw the second
floor -- second floor shorthand for the
executive chanmber, the second floor's press
operation, and | was also responsibility for
t he conmuni cations of 56 state agencies and
aut horiti es.

| would hire and fire PIGCs at the
agencies. It was ny job to do overal
strateqgy, rapid response, press. If we were,
you know, trying to pass a nmassive piece of
| egislation, it was nmy job to win over the
editorial boards and push back on detractors

and nmake the best argunent. | spoke to

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.
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reporters frequently.
Q You said "PIGs at agencies." Can

you tell us what "PlIGs" stands for?

A. Public infornation officer. [
apol ogi ze.
Q It's okay. D d you have

responsibility for hiring or firing anyone
el se other than the Pl Gs?

A No. | nean, within nmy press
shop, sure. But not outside of
conmmuni cati ons.

Q So within the conmuni cations
team you had hiring and firing authority?

A. Yes. And that was deputy press
secretaries, press secretary, deputy comms
directors, assistants.

Q What about the briefers, were
they part of your responsibility and
oversi ght ?

A No. | didn't interact with the
briefers really at all.

Q And then you said at sone point
you added strategic advisor as a title?

A Yes.

Q What was your responsibilities as

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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strategi c advi sor?

A. They didn't really change. It
was nore a reflection publicly that ny role
was broader than just doing comms. | had a
very predom nant role in what issues we woul d
take up during State of the State or during
the | egislative session.

I would run a I ot of the
canpai gns, be point person. And so the
t hought was that if we tacked that on, it was
reflective of the fact that | was his
strategi c advisor, but also that in the
out si de worl d, people would be nore responsive
and recognize that ny role wasn't limted to
conmmuni cati ons.

Q Di d soneone have the role of

strategi c advi sor before you?

A No.

Q It was a new role created for
you?

A M1 hmm

Q You got to say yes.

A. Yes. | apol ogi ze.

Q How did it conme about that you

were going to get this newly created rol e?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.
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A Fred Dicker did a New York Post
colum at the very end of 2014, as we were
transitioning fromTerm1l to Term 2, and he
wote that it was runored that | was | eaving
t he adm ni strati on.

And so the governor and | spoke
about how best to rebut that runor. And I
said, "I'mhappy to just say that |I'm staying
here." And -- but | said to him you know, "I
woul d al so appreciate if you entertai ned ne
adding on this additional title to ny role. |
want to continue to grow. |'mnore than just
coms. "

| was, you know, Eric's chief of
staff. | was state director for Obama. LiKke,
| don't want to just be pigeonholed in comrs.
And so if we did that, it would not only say
|"m staying here, it affirmatively, |ike,
al so, you know, send a nmessage that | wasn't
goi ng anywhere.

So it's not just that |I'm not
| eaving this mnute, but that |I'm not going
anywher e.

Q So creating the role was your

i dea?
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A. Yeah. Creating the -- it was
still comms director. It was comms director
and strategic advisor.

Q Sorry, creating the title was
your idea?

A. M hmm

Q Had you tal ked about the creation
of that title with anyone el se before you
raised it to Governor Cuonp?

A It was actual ly ] | dea.

Q And you said there was a New York
Post article wwth a runor that you would be
| eavi ng the executive chanber.

Had you been consi dering | eaving

t he executi ve chanber?

A. No.
Q So no truth to that runor?
A. No. But Fred Dicker doesn't

really care about the truth.

Q So you added the title of
strategi c advisor, but your duties renmain the
sane?

A. Largely yes. It was nore
actually reflective of what | was al ready

doi ng.




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P P R R R PR PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Q And when you were the conms
director, did you do the role nore expansively
than the prior comms director? So these
strategic responsibilities you were just
tal ki ng about, were those responsibilities the
prior conms director had?

A. Every comrs director does the job
alittle bit differently, but yes. | would
say that |l Vo had the job
before me, who is now the, you know, VP at
CNN, Ri ch Banberger who had the job before
her, like, he was a TV guy.

So they were nmuch nore focused on
tell the story, who's the victim how do we,
you know, in the nost conpelling way, convey
the nessage. And | think I was nuch nore
tactical, strategic, hand-to-hand conbat with
the reporters.

These are the issues we should be
focusing on, the party is shifting this way,
we should get there first. It was just a
di fferent approach.

But | think that that was al so
because traditionally ny role was | arger

than -- oh, I'"'msorry, can | go back? |
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forgot, when | was in nmy resune, | served as
deputy press secretary to Nydia Vel a&zquez as
well. So |I'msorry.
MR. HECKER: \What year was that?
M5. KENNEDY PARK: | got that.
THE WTNESS. 2006. So it was
right after the denocrats took back the
house.
A. So there, like, was, you know,
some comms in ny background. And when
wor ked for Cordo & Conpany, it was director of
communi cati ons and | egi sl ation. People knew
had very good rel ationships with reporters,
but | wanted to be nore than that.
Q Were there any reporters at that
time you didn't have good rel ati onshi ps with?
A. | mean, you always fight with
certain reporters.
Q Who were the certain reporters

that you were fighting with?

A Fred Di cker.

Q Anyone el se other than Fred
D cker?

A. | mean, Brendan Scott

occasionally. He was also a Post reporter.
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Liz Benjam n. But, you know, when you say
“fight with," it's, you know, hand-to-hand
conbat, and then everybody goes out and has a
drink afterwards.

Q |'"mnot a coms person. So when
you say "hand-to-hand conbat,"” | don't know
what you nean.

A. It's, you know, everyone has a
job to do. And they want to wite a story,
and it's your job to shape the story or kill
the story. And so a lot of tines that can be
cont enti ous.

Q And then after you took on the

role of strategic advisor, you becane

secretary to the governor. |Is that right?
A. Chi ef of staff.
Q Chi ef of staff, sorry, to the

governor. How did that happen?

A. The rol e had becone open. It was
first held by |l \ho was viewed
| argely as, like, a political comrunications

person in the adm nistration. Then it was
hel d by Josh VIl asto, who had been press
secretary and al so, you know, did a |ot of

politics.
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And so | thought that it was the
next natural step for ne, follow ng, sort of,
the sane path as the two mal es that were
before ne. And so | asked for it.

Q When you say you asked for it,
you asked Governor Cuono for it?

A Yes.

Q And what did he say?

A. He said, "Do you think it's going
to disrupt the teamat all? Howwll Jil
feel about it? How w Il Joe feel about it?
How wi | | |jjjij feel about it?"

And | said, "I don't know but |'m
happy to have those conversations with your
blessing. | don't want to do anything to,
sort of, disrupt the apple cart, but | think
|'ve earned it."

And he said, "Have sone

conversations and if you still feel like it's
what you want, then I, you know, |'m on
board. "

Q What is your understandi ng of why
t he governor thought it mght disrupt the
t eanf?

A Chief of staff is a very tricky
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title in our adm ni stration, because really
the chief of staff is the secretary to the
governor. Chief of staff in our

adm ni strati on was nore focused specifically
on executive operations, politics, coms,
advance, |ike, that side of the world, not
just running, you know ...

When you're chief of staff to the
governor, you run all the agencies. You're
responsi ble for the agencies. You're
responsi bl e for the working of governnent.
Chief of staff is sort of a unique, carved-out
role.

So when peopl e woul d get that
title, sonetinmes it ruffled other people's
feat hers because they would think, Onh, are you
now ny boss, or where does this put ne in the
world vis-a-vis you? And |like any

organi zati on, you have to nmanage, you know,

egos.

Q So did you go and talk to Jill
Joe, and

A | did.

Q Tell us about the conversation
with Jill.
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A. Jill was excited for ne. She was

i ke, "Congratulations. Absolutely, you

deserve it. 1'Il do anything | can to support
you. "
Q VWhat was her title at the tine?
A. | think that she was at that

poi nt director of scheduling. But Joe was
just about to | eave, and she was going to take

Joe's title, which was executive deputy

secretary.

Q And what about the conversation
wth Joe?

A. Joe thought it was great. |

nmean, he was |leaving, and so | think he wanted
to make sure that he could | eave feeling good
that the organization was fully intact and
running in a way that the governor could rely
on.

And | think that he viewed ne as
soneone who was very steady, that would help

that transition.

Q  And I think you said |

A Mm hmm
Q Tell us about that conversation
A Il had just been naned
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secretary. | had known [Jjjij since | was a

kid. | had actually gone to himfor advice
out of college for, like, what to do with ny
life.

And he had al ways, sort of, been

a mentor to me. And he said that he thought
that it was the obvious next step and a
wel | -deserved title that woul d suggest nore
about what | was doing and nore reflective of
nmy value to the organi zation, and that |
shoul d absolutely take it.

Q Did you talk to anyone el se about
taking the role of chief of staff?

A No.

Q So what happened - -

A. Vell, | nmean |l ' ke, ny
husband.

Q Q her than your husband and Jill,
Joe, and ] did you talk to anyone el se
about taking the role of chief of staff?

A. | don't have any specific
recollections, but I"'msure | talked to ny
sister. I'msure | talked to ny best friend

B You know, like, people like that.

Q Anyone else in the
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adm ni strati on?

A No.

Q Did you talk to Stephani e Benton
about it?

A No.

Q Josh VI ast 0?

A He wasn't in the adm nistration

at that point.

Q Did you talk to Josh VI ast o about
it?

A No.

Q Ri ch Banber ger?

A No.

Q St eve Cohen?

A No.

Q Larry Schwartz?

A No.

Q So after you have those
conversations, you take the role. |Is that

right? D d you go back to the governor to
tell himabout the conversations?

A Yes.

Q And what did you say?

A. | said, "I had the conversations.

Everyone's really supportive. |'mexcited.
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They're excited. |If you really feel like it's
okay, it's an opportunity I would |ike."

Q And what did he say?

A. He said that's great. It was a
monent of transition. | o
had been our budget director, was departing.
We had just successfully recruited Robert
Mujica to cone in as budget director. And so
we t hought we coul d announce those two changes
at the sane tine.

Q And is that what you did?

A Yes.

Q So what was your official start
date as chief of staff?

A | think it was Decenber of 2015
or January of 2016, in that range.

Q And as chief of staff, who
reported to you?

A So there's the, |ike, who was
supposed to report to nme versus the in
practice. Wen | took that job, Jill got
el evated to deputy executive secretary, which
had been Joe's role.

And traditionally, the chief of

staff did nore of the, |ike, personnel,
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hiring. But Jill had been training to do that
under Joe. And so she kept that portfolio.
| took legislative affairs,

i ntergovernnental affairs, communications, and
policy. And she kept comng from-- you know,
she had been the director of scheduling. She
t ook briefings, advance, staffing, personnel.
And so we, sort of, split the responsibility.

Q So in your -- in your oversight
of legislative affairs, coms,
i ntergovernnental affairs, and policy, were
you responsible for hiring and firing of

peopl e who served in those rol es?

A Yes, | certainly had a role in
it. It wasn't -- you know, it depended on
what | evel obviously. | wasn't involved in

every hiring and firing.
Q But ultimtely, you had say over
who got hired and fired into those teans?
A. | certainly had input, yes. |
mean, there were sone tinmes | would not fee
i ke they needed ny input. There were sone
times when | felt like | wanted to have a say.
Q But it was up to you whet her you

had the say or not had the say?
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A. Yes. Not solely up to ne but up
to me. Secretary to the governor is the
person that has the ultimte say in those
things. So if i wanted to exert hinself,
and | deferred a lot to Jill.

Q kay. So secretary to the
governor ultimately has responsibility for

hirings and firings in the executive chanber?

Yes.
Q Does that include transfers as
wel | ?
A. No. | mean, when | say
"ultimately has discretion,” it's |ike they

are the ultimte boss so they can have the
discretion. But the -- like | IIGGGEGEGE '

can't imagine was involved in any hiring or
firing decisions or transfer decisions.

Like, it's a role you can, sort
of , defer, or you can interject, depending on
whet her or not you see fit.

Q And in --

A. But Joe was primarily the person
that did the personnel decisions, and then
when he left that becanme Jill. And then we

have an appoi ntnment secretary who right nowis
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I /o previously was held by a
nunber of people, | ot hers. and

they play a role in those decisions as well.

Q So when you were serving as chief
of staff, the secretary to the governor had
ultimate oversight over hiring and firing.

But on a day-to-day basis, that
was handl ed by Jill DesRosiers?

A Correct. And then the state
operations director is the person that's
chiefly responsi ble for the agencies. And so,
you know, if we were hiring a dep sec or if
you're hiring a comm ssioner, generally
speaki ng, you defer to those people, to the
state operations director.

It was Howard G aser, |
B ovit's I Because
t hose are the people that they nmanage.
They' || oftentinmes ask for your input or sit
for an interview, tell ne what you think, but
you defer to their judgnent.

Q So then you becone secretary to
t he governor. How did that happen?

A. B ad told the governor

he woul d serve for two years. H's two years
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were comng to an end. And, sort of, as |
imagine howit is in other organizations, you
find your replacenent.
So | cane to ne and said,

"You're the obvious choice. You should take
over as secretary. | want to recommend to the
governor that you becone secretary.”

Q Anything nore said in that
conversation?

A. | told himl didn't want the job.

Q Why not ?

A. Because every tinme that | have
nmoved up in ny professional career, there is a
focus on ny father. And it's attention |
don't like. And | knew that going from chi ef
of staff to secretary, because it's such a big
j ob, because ny father is who he is, that it
woul d all becone about him

Q You said in the past that the
focus had been, when you had been pronoted, on
your father. Can you give us sone exanpl es of
t hat ?

A. When | was nanmed acting chief of
staff in the attorney general's office, the

New York Tines did a wite-up, and they
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described me in two sentences. The second
sentence was, "She's the daughter of powerful
Al bany | obbyi st |G

Whenever people wote articles
about anything that | was doing, they would
al ways tack on a line -- sorry, |, like, get
enotional about it -- tack on a |line about,
i ke, who ny father was and --

Q Do you want to take a break?

MR. HECKER:. Do you want take two

m nut es?

THE WTNESS: No, it's okay. |I'm
okay.
A. So anyways, it was just -- it was

unwant ed attention.

Q And when you told M. -- are you
sure you don't want to take a break? When you
told I that you did not want to take
t he position because the focus would be on
your father, what did he say to you?

A. He said that inlife, if you were
going to advance, you had to be prepared to
take hits and keep going, and that if you
showed people who you are, that's all that

would ultimately matter.
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And so, like, he wanted to push
me to do it. I'"mokay. |'mokay. 1'll get
it together. Gve ne just one second.

Q Did you talk to anyone el se about
taki ng the position or not taking the
position?

A Yeah. [l nvy husband.

Q QG her than ] did you talk to
anyone el se about it?

A My father.

Q kay. And tell us about the
conversation with your father.

A He thought | was crazy not to do
it. He was like, "You would be the first
wonan secretary. You' ve earned it. You're
smarter than everyone. You wake up earlier.
You run faster. You junp higher. Like, you
should -- you would be crazy. This is, |ike,
one of those things you get in life and, you
know, you al ways have that."

Q Did that change your m nd?

A. It was encouraging but | still
wasn't conpletely sold. And then | had a
conversation with the governor and |}

t oget her where they, sort of, tag-teanmed ne,
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and they were like, "You're going to do this,

and you're going to be great."

Q Tell us about the conversation
that you had with |l 2nd the governor.

A. They were saying that | was the
only -- they were like, "You aren't, |ike, an

option, you are the option. Like, you already
in alot of ways play the role internally.
Peopl e respect you. Wen you speak, everybody
listens.

"Li ke, you're so assertive. You
have good judgnent. You | ook around and you
can see where the policy is going. You know
how to nove | egislators. You know how to deal
with press. Like, this is what you should be
doi ng.

“"And then you do this, and for
the rest of your |life, you' ve done this. And
you don't have to do it forever, but it's
sonething that you really can't pass up."

Q “"Did you raise to -- in front of
t he governor the concern about your father and
the focus on your father if you took the role?
A. He and | have had many

conversati ons about that over the years.




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P P PR R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021

Q And tell us about --

A. It's not all that dissimlar to
his situation with his father. So he's
anot her, you know, voice who al ways says to
nme, like, you can't spend all of your tine
wor ryi ng about how people are going to judge
you vi s-a-vis your dad.

Q Anyt hing el se you renenber the
governor saying during that conversation?

A. No. They were just very
supporti ve.

Q O her than being concerned about
the focus being on your father if you took the
role, did you raise any other concerns about
t aki ng the position?

A. Wll, | nean, for half a second,
| was like, | already work so nuch. 1'm going
to have to work so nuch nore. But that was,
sort of, like, a joke because there was no way
to work nore than | already was working. It

was just going to be alittle bit different.

Q Did you say that, though?

A Yeah.

Q Ckay. What did they say in
response?
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A You're young. This is when
you' re supposed to work. You know, public
service has a shelf life at a certain point.
You go into the private sector and nake lots
of nmoney, and you go on vacations and you read
a book, but that's not what you're supposed to
do at this point in your life.

Q | can't tell whether you're
telling this is what the governor and

I said to you or this is what you're

sayi hg about your view. So --

A. No, this is what they were saying
to me.

Q kay. Al right. So how does
the conversation with | ] and the
gover nor end?

A. | said, "Ckay. | wll doit."

And I ou know,

cel ebrated because he got to go back to
Bl ackst one and get on a plane to Bernuda.

Q Did you negotiate salary at that
poi nt ?

A No. Actually, JJjjij said to ne,
“"You're going to be getting the salary that |

have. "




© 00 N o o A w N Pk

N N NN NN P P PR R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Q And what was the salary that |}
got ?

A. | don't renmenmber. It mght -- it
was like jJjjij. . but it wasn't a discussion.

B ves like, "You will get the salary that |

have. "

Q You didn't ask for nore than he
got ?

A No.

Q Did you renenber talking to
anybody el se about -- other than peopl e that

we' ve tal ked about about taking the role of
secretary to the governor?

A. No. | nean, frankly, it was a
smal|l circle, because | didn't want it to
| eak. So ...

Q How | ong between the first ask
and you sayi ng okay?

A. A couple of weeks. It started,
like, in the mddle of March, probably. And I
think I accepted the mddle of April, and we
announced it the end of April.

Q And what changed goi ng from chi ef
of staff to being secretary to the governor?

A. There was a | ot nore focus on the
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agencies, which | didn't really |ove out of
the gate, in terns of, you know, all of a
sudden I'mthrust into negotiating the capital
plan for the MIA and dealing with New Jersey
on Port Authority matters, you know, dealing
wi th DEC and DOH when Hoosick Falls happened.

It just -- it becane a lot |ess
about the day-to-day on the governor's
novenents and the events and the comms and the
politics and a broader shift to the actual
runni ng of governnent.

Q Did you still have legislative

affairs, intergovernnent affairs, policy, and

comms reporting to you?

A. No. Those went under Jill.
Q Ckay.
A. W -- well -- oh, I"'msorry.

think first Linda got that title, and then we
named Jill chief of staff when Linda went to
DFS. So for a short period of tine, Linda
becanme chief of staff.

And | actually think when Linda
becanme chief of staff, we sort of redid the
roles, and we shifted those over to Jill as

deputy executive secretary.
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And then a short tine after that,
Li nda becane head of DFS, and we pronoted Jil
to chief of staff, which was a very
wel | - deserved pronoti on.

Q When you say "Linda," you nmean
Li nda Lacewel | ?

A. "' msorry, Linda Lacewell.

Q And you say "we pronoted." \Wen
you say "we pronoted,"” who do you nean?

A. | mean the organization at |arge,
but | consulted the governor on those noves,
of course.

Q And was that in your capacity as
secretary to the governor, consulting himon
t hose changes?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So is that part of the
role of secretary of the governor?

A. Yes. Not always but, | nean, we
wer e tal king about the governor's chief of

staff, yes.

Q So hi gh-1evel changes in roles?
A Yes.
Q kay. So any ot her aspects of

bei ng secretary to the governor that we
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haven't covered?
A. No. | nean, it really is just

you' re responsi ble for the day-to-day

functioning of governnent. | don't really
know how to be nore specific than that. |It's
not really -- you know, it's |ike being chief

of staff to the Wite House
Q Maybe we can flesh it out a

little bit. Who did you report to?

A The governor.
Q Who reports to you?
A. The chief of staff, state

operations director, senior advisors, policy

director, and the deputy executive secretary.

Q Who doesn't report to you?

A. Everybody el se.

Q Who does that include?

A. So the dep secs, which a dep sec

is a deputy secretary. They each have a
portfolio. So there's, like, a dep sec for
Heal th and Human Services, and they have
Agi ng, OIDA, DOH And they all report up to
t hem

So it's like there's 56 agenci es.

So it's broken up by portfolio. And then
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t hose commi ssioners report up to a dep sec.
The dep secs then report to the state
operations director, and the state operations
director reports to ne.
And | had conmms director, which
wasn't necessarily traditional, but --
Q So just hold -- let's pause

there. So actually, the dep secs do report to

you?
A Wll, no. They report to | N
Q Through the state operations
di rector?
A Yeah. Yes.
Q kay. So I'mtrying to figure
who - -

MR. HECKER: Do you nean direct
reports as opposed to indirect reports?
Q Anyone who doesn't have a chain

of reporting that ultimtely goes to you.

A. Everyone does.

Q Ckay.

A Except counsel .

Q Who does counsel report to?
A. Directly to the governor and

St ephani e Benton, or executive assistant.
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Q She reports directly to the

gover nor ?
A Yes.
Q Are there any counsel roles that

reported to you?

A. No. It all flows up through
counsel's office. And that's a statutory
posi tion.

Q VWhat's the protocol for being in
communi cation with the governor?

A. What do you nean?

Q So is there a protocol for
communi cating with the governor?

A. | don't understand the question.

Q Is there a protocol for getting a
neeting with the governor?

A You woul d ask, like, | R
I o is our current chief of staff.
| f she wants a neeting with the governor, she
w Il ask Stephanie, she'll ask ne, she'll ask
t he schedul er.

You go to one of the people that
talk to himthe nost directly, and you say,
"This person's requested a neeting."

In a perfect world, it all flows
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t hrough the scheduler. But that's not how it
al ways happens.

Q kay. So the other ways that it
happens are you can either go through the
schedul er, you can go through you --

A. You go through the secretary, go
t hrough the schedul er, or you go through
St ephani e, who's his executive assistant. But

ideally, the protocol is you go through the

scheduler to avoid mayhem 111, |ike, do
one-of f s.

Q Say that again?

A | said I'll do, like, one-offs,
but it's not -- you can't run an operation
l'i ke that.

Q What's a one-off?

A The head of the AFL-CIO calls ne
and says, "I really need to get the governor
on this Teansters bill. Can you get ne five
m nut es?"

And I'Il go directly to him and

say, "G 'ca!/ !y wants to talk to

you. Can you squeeze in five m nutes?"
And he'll say, "Yeah, tell him

"Il call himin an hour."
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And then | will tell the
schedul er and say, "FYl, had this
conversation, so at noon he's planning to cal
I

But that's not the way it's
supposed to worKk.

Q Anyone el se who can do that?
Anyone el se who can do a one-off?

A Anybody el se can in theory do a
one-of f and sonetines people do. The way that
t he governor functions is he's a very flat
nmanager .

So if he runs into a deputy
counsel in the | obby of 633 and that person
rai ses a subject with himand says, "Governor,
| really want to make sure you have this thing
on your plate,"” he'll say, "Geat. Let's set
up a neeting on that, you know, call Jill."

And then I'Il get a call from
t hat person's boss and say, "I'mso sorry.
Thi s person saw the governor, asked for this
thing. It's totally not baked. Like, can we
undo this, or can we do a neeting quickly to
try to get ready for it?"

But he will, you know -- if given
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the opportunity, he'll engage w th anyone.
But it becomes mayhemif you run an

organi zation |ike that.

Q But that happens?
It does.
Q Oten?
A. Not often but it happens.
Q Regul ar | y?
A Sonet i nes.
Q What do you nean --

A. | wouldn't say regularly. |
would say it is the exception, not the rule.
But it happens.

Q But "exception," how often?
A. | don't know, once a week. Once

every coupl e of weeks.

Q So if you want to get a neeting
wi th the governor, you go -- you can have a
one-off -- right? -- you run into the governor

and you ask for a neeting or raise a topic
he's interested in.

You could talk to Stephanie
Benton. You could talk to you. You could
talk to the scheduler. Any other way to get a

neeting with the governor?
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A. Those are the ways. But again,
like, if someone went to [Jjjij Wwho is our
chief of staff, and said, "I really need ten
m nutes,"” |Jjjij coul d, because she speaks to
himall the tinme, raise it with himdirectly.

W just as a teamtry to keep
each other infornmed or do it in a uniformway
to avoid crazi ness.

Q So we just added the chief of
staff as someone who can -- you can go to to
get a neeting with the governor. Anyone el se?

A. | mean, when you say "can," Iike,
again, like, any senior staff person, if |}
B 'c'c to see the governor, she could
say, you know, "We really need to do a neeting
with DOT."

She doesn't traditionally. And
if she did, she would tell us beforehand or
flag it right afterwards. It's not the usua
way. But there are people that have access to
t he governor. Robert Mijica chiefly, Beth
Gar vey.

Q So in the normal course of
events, if someone on the senior staff said

they wanted a neeting with the governor, said,
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"We should tal k about X with the governor,"
t hey should informthe schedul er afterward?

A. Yes. W do staff neetings every
day at 9 a.m, and traditionally on those
calls is a time where i Who runs the call
right now, or | used to do it when | was chief
of staff, Jill did it when she was chief of
staff, wll say, "Does anyone have anything
that they need to raise with the governor?"

And that's supposed to be the
opportunity when people say, "I really need to
get a neeting with himon X, Y, or Z " or "I
saw this person at an event, and they really
want to talk to him You know, |'Ill del egate
it down, but | think he should know that that
person wanted to reach out."

And then the scheduler is
responsi ble for going to himand sayi ng,
"These five people want to neet with you."
And that's generally done, you know, on that
call. W'll say, "No, no, no, that person
doesn't need that neeting. Melissa wll cal
t hem back, or Robert will call them back."

But we'll all, sort of, agree as

a group which things actually need to be
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raised to himso you keep the knuckl ehead
stuff off his desk. And then it will go to

hi m t hrough the schedul er or through the chi ef
of staff.

Q Wat are the roles that attend
the everyday 9 a.m staff neeting?

A. It's a senior staff neeting. So
it's cooms director, it's legislative affairs
director, it's policy director, it's state
operations director, it's counsel, it's budget
di rector.

| join when | can, which is, sort
of, howit's always been with the secretary.
Secretaries, like, join when they can. So not

every single day.

Q Anyone el se attend those
nmeeti ngs?
A. The schedul er. Stephanie tries

to join when she can

Q Anyone el se?

A. | may be m ssing sonebody, but
not that cones to top of mnd. Press
secretary.

Q So we just, kind of, tal ked about

the way in which you get a neeting with the
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governor. What's the protocol for staffing
t he governor?

A. The -- it's sort of changed over
time. But generally speaking, it was al ways
Jill. | nmean, whether she was schedul er,
whet her she was chief of staff, whether she
was first deputy secretary, it was
primarily -- or whether she was -- |I'm
sorry -- executive deputy secretary.

She was chiefly responsible
for -- I mean, we have a saying. It's like,
in our office, you change jobs but it's |like
you take your responsibilities with you, and
then you just get nore responsibilities.

That had al ways, sort of, been
Jill"s role since she was schedul er when |
first got there in 2013, and that was never
really a role that she shook. So, you know,
we do staffing plan for any event.

If we do a neeting, you ask the
governor who he wants in the neeting, or you
ask the neeting | ead who woul d be the
appropriate people to be in that neeting, and
then you run it by the governor to nake sure

he's confortable with that.
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But it was really Jill who al ways
didit, and nowit's |Jjjjjj who has taken over
for Jill since GGG

Q Maybe we shoul d step back and
define staffing the governor. So when you say

"staffing the governor," what do you nean?

A. | mean for any event that you do,
there's a staffing plan. So who's the advance
person? Who's the press |l ead? W' s the
lights person? Wo's the sound person?

Who's the body person? Wo's the
person on the ground who gives himthe
acknow edgenent card? There's a full staffing
pl an.

In terms of staffing him 1ike,
in the capitol, it's traditionally Stephanie,
and then she has a couple of assistants who
sit outside of her desk in Al bany and one
person who sits outside of her desk in New
York. And it's generally Stephanie and then
wi th the support of whoever those people are.

Q And if the governor needs
coverage or staffing outside of -- fromthe,

sort of, executive assistant perspective,

out si de of normal working hours, recognizing
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t hat maybe there aren't normal working hours,
how does that happen?

A. So there's always, |ike, an
on-call list. 1've never been directly
involved in howit happens. But from what |
understand, they will ask, you know,
the briefers, anyone who is generally
around who's avail able this weekend or who's
avai l abl e after seven, in case you need
sonebody to either junp on the phone with him
and take dictation or go staff himwhile he's
writing his speech.

And so they, sort of, self-select
into who's available. | know sone people
prefer to do it because they have overtine and
it's nore noney. And then sone people are
just happy to do it because they |ive around
t he corner.

You know, they are all friends
with each other, and so | think that they try
to coordinate wth one another to be
respectful of each other's personal tine.

Q How di d you conme to this
under st andi ng?

A. Just osnosi s.
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Q And when you said "ESNZI do

you mean ENZEN
A Yes.
Q And when you said "ENEI you
mean EAHN
A Yes.
Q Do you have any role in staffing

t he governor?

A No.

Q Have you ever had input into who
was going to staff the governor?

A. No. Except if he's doing, like,
a Power Point. The governor has a way, a
tendency of, in my opinion, caring about
things he shouldn't care about. Like, ] is
avail able. That kid works every weekend.
Don't make hi mwork this weekend.

VWiich | say, "But [jjjij i s the
person who is best at PowerPoint. So with all
due respect, I'mgoing to overrule you because
it will make ny life and everyone else's life
easier if he is the person working with you."

So if there's a situation Iike
that, | may potentially intervene. But

ot herw se, no.
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Q So sonetines the governor has
input into who is going to staff hinf

A. Yeah. He'll say, "Wio can junp
on the phone?" | think that there are sone

peopl e he's nore confortable with than others

based on their skill |evel, based on their
past performance. |f sonebody doesn't do a
great job once or twice, he doesn't -- he's

not going to ask them back.

And then, you know, he's also,
like, very wary. |It's the sane thing with the
mansion staff. "Ch, | hate to have them

wor ki ng this weekend. Let them go hone at

three.™

“It's their job."

"No, but they have famlies."

He tries to be sensitive to other
peopl e' s schedul es and personal lives. And so

if Stephanie says or |Jjjij says or Jill says
"So-and-so is available this weekend," he'll

say, "[@¥:ZIN and FNEXJ work all the tine.

Don't -- find sonebody else. Gve themthe
day."
Q How many tines has that happened?

A It happens. | wouldn't say it's,
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i ke, an every-week occurrence but it
certainly happens.

Q How do you know about it if
you're not involved in staffing?

A. I"'mcc'ed on pins with the draft
in confidential that go out every night, and
so generally those conversations that happen
on those pins.

Q W haven't covered this but
what's a pin?

A. A pinis a direct nmessage from
Bl ackBerry to Bl ackBerry.

Q Have you had a Bl ackBerry your
entire tine as secretary to the governor?

A. |'ve had a BlackBerry mnmy entire
time in governnent, when | worked for Eric and
the entire tine |I've worked for the governor.

Q Did there cone a point in tine
where sonme people in the chanber switched from

Bl ackBerrys to i Phones?

A Yes.

Q And you kept your Bl ackBerry. Is
that right?

A Yes.

Q Who el se kept their Bl ackBerrys?
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A Anyone who commruni cates with the
gover nor .

Q And why is that?

A So we were changi ng over from
Bl ackBerry to i Phone because all egedly,
al though | just think Harold makes it up, the
Bl ackBerry server was going to cone down. So
it was no | onger going to be an option.

So they started to transition the
chanber and the agencies from Bl ackBerrys to
i Phones in anticipation of that change
happeni ng. The governor is very
t echnol ogi cal Iy i nept.

The thought of having to train
hi mon a new devi ce was sonething that all of
us were very apprehensive about. So we said
to Harold, "Wen is the drop-dead that the
governor has to change over? And |eave us,

i ke those of us who comunicate with himon a
regul ar basis with Bl ackBerrys, and then when
he actually has to change over, we'll al
change over."

So they issued us the iPhones.
It's what | nentioned to you earlier. But

|'ve never turned it on. So me, Robert
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Mujica, Beth Garvey, Rich Azzopardi, Peter
Ajem an before he left, Stephanie, the
scheduler, |l there's a handful of senior
staff that kept their Blackberrys with the
antici pati on of when the governor sw tched
over to the iPhone, that's when we woul d al
switch over to the i Phone.

But Howard was bl uffing and the
i Phone server was not going down. And so we
still have them Although as recently as a
nmont h ago, he tells nme "For real this tine
it's happeni ng soon."

Q You say Harold was bluffing, and
then | think earlier you -- so you didn't
trust Harold' s advice on this point?

A. | mean, | | ove Harold, of course
| do. But he kept saying that the Bl ackBerry
was going to stop working one day, that one
day we would turn on our Bl ackBerrys and they
woul dn' t wor K.

And | was |ike, "Ckay, Harold.
Wel |, when that day cones will be the day that
we nove over to the iPhone."

Q O her than the governor being

technologically inept, is there any other
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reasons that he and the team -- the senior

staff kept their BlackBerrys?

A No.

Q Wiy does this governor use pin
nessages?

A It's a secure way to conmuni cate.

Q And by "secure,"” what do you
understand that to nean?

A It doesn't go across servers.

Q And what's the advantage of it
not goi ng across servers?

A. Well, we have had several hacks
at nmy tinme being secretary to the governor.
Just before COVID, for exanple, an agent of
the Irani an governnment actually hacked into
the New York State server. Qur technology is
terrible.

Harol d has been trying his best
to transition all of us over, but it's very
vul nerable. And we comuni cate on highly
sensitive topics routinely.

And what Harold had told us
al ways was that the pin to pin was the nost
secure way to communicate. So if God forbid

there was a hack, it wasn't sonethi ng we had
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to worry about.
Q So how do you tell staff that
t hey shoul d communi cate confidenti al

i nformati on on pin? How does everyone know

t hat ?

A. It's not confidential
communi cation. It's like, instead of texting,
you pin. If -- there's a docunent retention

policy that the state dictates on certain
docunments that have to be retained. It's
nostly official nenos.

But beyond that, there's no
requi renment to save anything, and so it
doesn't matter. Unless you' re under
l[itigation hold or you're involved in a
| awsui t.

Q Sorry, maybe | didn't make nyself
clear. So you were saying that the reason
that you wanted to use pin nessages or the
executive chanber uses pin nessages i s because
they're nore secure and to prevent
confidential information from being hacked?

A. And just generally sensitive
information. You're conmmunicating with the

governor. You're communicating with the
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budget director.

Q Right. And so how did staff
under st and what they should and shoul d not
conmuni cate over pins versus what they should
communi cate over e-mail?

A. Wl |, people that were
comruni cating with the governor primrily
conmuni cat ed over pin. I, if I was
communicating with Jill or Rich or Peter or
St ephani e, woul d maybe send a pin. A pin has
a different noise and a pin stands out.

| get inundated with thousands of
e-mails every single day. And so the pins
were sort of easier to flag. And when they
came in, it was nore like, this is an interna
conmuni cati on you need to respond qui ckly.

Q kay. So now | understand. You
guys are using pin nessages both because
they're nore secure and because the noise is
nmore obvious. Is that right?

A. It's not just that. But it's
like, for me, for ny organi zati onal stuff.

Li ke, when | see ny e-mail, I'll see 2,000
e-mails. And | may not scroll through them

If | see a pin, I'lIl look at it
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i mredi ately because | knowit's Jill or Peter
or Stephanie or the governor or sonebody
comruni cating, and it's sonmething | shoul d get
back to.

Q Right. G rcling back, though, so
what | was asking about is you explained to
that you're using pin nessages because you're
concerned that other nodes of communication
were not as secure. Correct?

A. No. | said it is a secure node
of communi cati on.

Q Ckay. But then you gave ne an
exanpl e about the New York State server being
hacked. Right?

A. Right. | understand you guys
don't like pins.

Q | didn't say | liked pins or
didn't like pins. Wuat I'mtrying to
understand i s, when you're using pins because
they're nore secure, what is the executive
chanmber communi cati ng about the use of other
conmuni cati ons devi ces?

A. Vell, there's a | ot of people
that don't have Bl ackBerrys, and so you j ust

use e-mails. Sone peopl e use text nessage.
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You' re not supposed to use your personal
e-mail in order to communi cate about
governnent-related matters. So that's
supposed to stay on your executive e-mail.

Q Ckay. And so when people are
using e-mails, are you giving them
i nstructions about being sensitive around the
ki nd of information they conmmuni cate over
e-mail ?

A "' m not giving anyone instruction
over what they're comuni cati ng over e-nail.

Q s there any gui dance given to
anyone in the executive chanber about using
e-mail and --

A. When you first --

Q -- sorry -- and being sensitive

to issues around confidentiality?

A When you first conme into the
chanber, you have a -- what is it
called? -- you go through an orientation where

you do a training. And then every year, |
believe that there's a training that you get
on | TS matters.

But people are responsible to

understand the docunent retention policy and
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what nmenos or specific things have to be saved
and archived, and otherw se you're, sort of,
free to do whatever you want.

Q Ckay. You're free to do whatever
you want. So you're explaining to ne that the
concern is that -- you have the concern that
if you don't use your BlackBerry, it's not as

secure. So what is --

A. | understand that using the
Bl ackBerry --

Q Can | finish the question?

A. Wel |, because | think you're

m scharacteri zing what | said.

Q Let me just finish the question
Ckay?
Yup.
Q Let ne just finish the question

MR. HECKER: And when you finish
this question, can we just take five?
W' ve been going, |ike, an hour and 15.
M5. KENNEDY PARK: Yeah, sure.
Q So you said that you're using the
Bl ackberry because it's nore secure. So |I'm
asking: D d anyone in the executive chanber

do anything to communi cate to executive
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chanmber staff how to use | ess secure fornms of
comruni cation to protect sensitive

i nformati on?

A. | don't understand the question.
Q Ckay. So you told ne that you
were using the BlackBerrys in order -- because

they were nore secure. Right?

A Mm hmm

Q And you were concerned that
information that wasn't on the Bl ackBerry
coul d be hacked, for exanple. Ri ght?

A Mm hmm

Q Right. So what did the executive
chanber do to conmunicate to peopl e about
usi ng conmuni cati ons devi ces ot her than
Bl ackBerry pin to keep them secure?

A | don't think anything.

Q kay. And did anyone in the
executive chanmber, for exanple, tell anybody
there's certain topics you shoul dn't
conmuni cate over e-nmil about because they
coul d be hacked?

A | know that the health -- |iKke,
certai n agenci es have concerns about certain

sensitive information with identifying nunbers
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for, like, DOH, for exanple.

| know t he tax departnent has
certain restrictions over what they'll send
over e-mail and not send over e-mail. But
it's traditionally sonething that's involved
i n soneone's personal identifying informtion
which, if were to get out into the public,
coul d be very danagi ng.

Q Ckay. Did anyone in the
executive chanber explain to anybody what
topi cs they should comuni cate about using
pi ns and what topics they --

A No.

Q -- and what topics they could
comruni cat e using ot her conmuni cati ons
met hods?

A. No. It's just the standard. |If
you' re tal ki ng about government things, it
shoul d be on your governnment device. It
shoul d be through pin. It should be through
your executive e-nail.

And then to the extent that you
were texting about it, you had to be prepared
to have to turn that over, like, all of your

texts over, because our executive Bl ackBerrys
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don't have text nessage. The function is
di sabled. So there is no ability to text on
t hat .

So inevitably, | nean, you could
choose not to. But a |lot of people text on
their iPhone, but you're told that if you do
that, you have to be prepared that, should
there be a foil or should there be a
litigation, that you have to turn your i Phone
over.

Q Did you ever give any
instructions to anyone on topics that they
shoul d not use e-mail communications to
communi cat e about ?

A Not that | can recal
specifically.

Q Did you ever give anybody
instructions that they had to use Bl ackBerry
pi n nmessages to conmuni cate about certain
t opi cs?

A No.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: W can take a

br eak.

MR. HECKER: Thanks.

THE VI DEOCGRAPHER: The tine is
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10:18 a.m This concludes Media 1. Of

t he record.

(Recess taken from10:18 a.m to

10:31 a.m)

THE VI DEOCGRAPHER:  The time now

Is 10:31 a.m This begins Media 2. On

t he record.

BY M5. KENNEDY PARK:

Q Ms. DeRosa, before the break, we
wer e tal ki ng about your role and what you did
and did not have oversi ght of.

What was your role as secretary
to the governor with the PSU?

A The PSU primarily works with the
schedul er and Stephanie. It's largely a
coordi nati ng function, where he's going, when
he's going, we need the helicopter, you know,
we shoul d have a driver on standby.

And | talked to -- you know, when
Vi nny Straface was the head of the PSU while |
was secretary, | would chat with himregularly
when | saw him | don't have any, |ike,
oversi ght function of the PSU.  But | would
see them obvi ously constantly.

Q Ckay. As secretary to the

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN R PR R R R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021

governor, did you have any role in any of the
hiring decisions for the PSU?

A. | don't think hiring decisions.
| think sonetines they wll run things by ne
and say, you know, we're going to do this, and
| will say okay. But |'mnot naking decisions
about the PSU.

Q What ki nds of things would they
run by you?

A. There was a period where there
was a |lot of transition on the PSU. There
were a bunch of nmenbers who wanted to go do
i nvestigative work. And so they were
rel ocating them

And Vinny woul d say, you know,
"For this position, |'ve got this person.
They' ve staffed a bunch of events before. |If
you saw them you'd know them " You know, | ust
tal ki ng through what the changes were.

Q And - -

A. But | don't know any of them
l'i ke, individually enough to ever really weigh
in in a neaningful way.

Q WAs there any issue with PSU that

you ever weighed in on in a neaningful way?
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A | don't think so.

Q Any transfer decisions you ever
wei ghed in on?

A | don't think so.

Q Any firing decisions you ever
wei ghed in on?

A | don't think so. | ves
head of the PSU for a period of tine. And
| -- when he said he was going to quit, |
tried to convince himto stay |onger because |
was concerned that there wasn't enough
transition tinme to get sonebody properly
trained up. So | had a one-on-one
conversation with him But otherw se, nothing
t hat comes to front of m nd.

Q Any policy decisions you ever
wei ghed in on?

A. | don't think so except when
COVI D happened of having the governor drive
hi nsel f and how they woul d | eave the cars and
sanitize the cars before he got in.

Q And tell us about what is the
change with the governor driving hinmself?

A The governor used to be driven by

a PSU nenber, and it would be a PSU nenber and
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anot her menmber of the detail in the car, and
t he governor would sit in the front seat.

When COVI D happened, obviously we
were trying to limt the governor's exposure
to anyone. And so the governor started
driving hinmself, and |I talked to Vinny about,
you know, when a trooper would drive a car to
sonepl ace where the governor woul d then get
it, that they would wi pe down the steering
wheel and wi pe down anything that anyone could
have potentially touched, because early on it
was, |ike, we were especially unclear on the
transmssibility of the virus.

Q Did M. Straface object to the
governor driving hinself?

A. Straface, no.

Q Was there any debate about the
governor driving hinself?

A Not that | recall

Q Did you have any input in any
policies regardi ng how | ong soneone had to be
in service before they could join the PSU?

A No.

Q Are you aware of any changes t hat

were made to the policy regardi ng how | ong
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soneone had to be in service before they could

join the PSU?

A. Only because of a press inquiry.
Q Ckay. And what was that press

i nquiry?
A. There was a Tines Uni on press

i nquiry back in Decenber, and they raised
exactly that point, which | was unfam i ar
with. And | believe the answer was that there
had been a change that was nmade in a prior

adm ni strati on.

Q And what was the change that had
been nade?

A. | think it shortened the | ength
of time that sonebody needed to be a nenber of
the state police before they could be
consi dered for the protective unit.

Q And when you say "prior

adm ni stration,"” what do you nean?

A Li ke the Paterson adm nistration
or the Spitzer adm nistration.

Q And how did you cone to
understand that the prior admnistration had

shortened the tinme that you had to be in

service before joining the PSU?
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A. Because in the context of that

press inquiry, | asked |l 2and Vinny

Straf ace.

Q And what did |GG t¢'!
you?

A | don't renmenber if it was |
or Vinny who told nme, but they said yes, there
had been a policy change years prior on the
l ength of tine that soneone had to serve in
order to be considered for the PSU.

Q Did they tell you what year that
change was nade?

A. |"msure they did at the tine,
but | don't recall off the top of ny head.

Q Did they tell you why that change

was nmade?
A No.
Q Did you ask thenf
A No.
Q What i nformation was conveyed

back to the Tines Union reporter?

A The Times Union reporter was
calling about a particular detail nenber, this
worman, UESEEEE. And they had had a source

that said that the governor saw her on a
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bridge and then said, "Hire her."

So | called Vinny and said, "What
happened here? W have to get back to this
reporter.”

Q And what did Vinny tell you?

A Vinny said that's not what
happened at all. There was an event. | don't
remenber if it was, |like, an RFK event or a
Kosci usko Bridge event. It was sonme event in
the city.

It wasn't, like, that they
saw -- like, the way that the Tines Union
reporter portrayed it was, |like, you saw
soneone at a traffic stop, and you were, |ike,
hey, like, you know, chicky, get in the car,
ki nd of thing.

It was like -- no. It was an
event that there was in the city. She was a
| ead trooper on the ground. | think she was
menber of Troop NYC, which is the state police
troop in the city, and that she had been on
t he ground doi ng the event.

She had done the advance worKk,
and she had done the event work that day, and

that she was really talented and direct and
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spoke assertively and had, |ike, a great
presence about her in terns of, |ike, being
abl e to understand where the governor was
goi ng to nove and how the troopers needed to
nove in response to that, and that she was
very good and that Vinny said at the tinme, "W
shoul d hire her."

Q So Vinny told you it was his
decision to hire her?

A Yes.

Q And he was the one who
recommended her to get hired?

A Yes.

Q And what was her nane?

A UEEEE | don't know her | ast

nane. | believe she's still on the detail.
Q Still on the governor's detail?
A Yeah.
Q And what year was this?
A. | think -- and, like, thus the
recollection, and again, this is, like, in the

context of getting information for a press
inquiry, so this isn't frommy origina
menory, | think it was 2018.

And | think Vinny said that at
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the tine, he had said to me that he wanted to
do this. And | said, "Geat. Mre wonen on
the detail. There's, you know, absolutely no
diversity or gender bal ance on the detail. So
if you think this person is great, great."

Q So after the Tinmes Union reporter
called in Decenber of 2020, M. Straface told
you that he had consulted you about her
hi ring?

A. Yes. He said, "I told you about
it at the tinme, and you thought it was great

to increase the gender bal ance.™

Q And what was the connection
bet ween HGEEEE:! and this policy change

| was aski ng about?

A. | don't think there was any
connection. The Tinmes Union believed that
t here had been a change nade for that purpose,
and it becane pretty clear that they had a
source who was feeding them bad information.

And once they understood that, they didn't run

t he story.

Q Anything else M. Straface told
you about EEEEGEGEG

A No.
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Q Did he tell you how many years
she had been in service prior to joining the
pPSU?

A. No. And | didn't ask. | got the
information that was relevant to respond to a
press inquiry and didn't have any further
di scussi on about it.

Q It wasn't relevant how | ong she
had been on PSU, when one of the questions

bei ng asked was whether there was a change in

policy --
A She net the criteria --
M5. KENNEDY PARK: Can you j ust
wait until | finish --

THE W TNESS: Sorry.
M5. KENNEDY PARK: -- because
she's going to go crazy if we don't do

t hat .

Q -- so whether there had been a
change in policies shortening the tine soneone
had to be in service before joining PSU?

A. It wasn't rel evant because the
change in policy had occurred in a prior
adm ni stration. So the way that the source

had been conveying it to the Tinmes Union was

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.
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to appear nefarious, as if there had been a
policy exception nmade for this one person,
when in reality that change had been nmade

years prior.

Q Anyt hi ng el se you renenber about
t he conversation with -- I'"'mgoing to call him
Vinny for ease of this discussion -- Vinny?

A No.

Q You said |l You spoke
to himas well. Wat did you speak to |l
about ?

A. | don't recall. | just
remenber -- like, any tinme there's -- we have
i ncom ng about the state police, | make sure

that the head of the state police is aware.

But | don't think that -- |
just becane the head of the state police. And
so | don't think he had any specific
information about it. | think it was -- Vinny
had the information.

Q Wiy were you handling this press
i nquiry?

A. Rich Azzopardi canme into ny
office and said, "The Tines Union just called

about this issue,”" and it nmade ne really nmad.
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Q And why did it make you nad?

A. Because | thought it was sexist.

Q Way did you think it was sexist?

A. Because the perception | had was
t hat sonme trooper went to the Tines Union and
tried to say that this woman only had her
positi on because she was attractive. And so |

said, "Let's get Vinny on the phone and get

the facts,” and Vinny gave ne the facts. And
when | |earned the facts, | got even nore
angry.

Q Did you convey that to the Tines
Uni on?

A | did.

Q What did you tell thenf

A. | said, "You don't have your
facts straight. This woman, from everything |
hear, is strong, smart, incredibly qualified,
and does a phenonenal job. And you guys are
trying to reduce her hiring to being about her
| ooks. And that's what nen do.

"If there is an attractive wonan

seem ngly near any nal e-dom nated field, you
assune it has sonething to do with either

their attractive |level or who they are

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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sl eeping with."

Q That's what you said to the Tines
Uni on?

Yes.

Q And what did they say?

A. Casey Seiler actually agreed and
said he wasn't going to run the story, that
clearly they had a bad source.

Q Did you | ook for any docunents
related to the policy around how | ong soneone
had to be in service before joining the PSU?

A No.

Q After that phone call with the
Ti mes Uni on, have you had any ot her
conversati ons about that policy?

A No.

Q Had you | ooked at any docunents
about that policy?

A No.

Q After that call fromthe Tines
Uni on, have you had any conversations with
anyone el se about a trooper naned QEEISEER"

A. No. Only with counsel.

MR. HECKER: No, she's not asking

about that.
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Q O her than conversations with
counsel, have you had any conversations with
anyone about a trooper nanmed JEESEIER"

A No.

MR KIM Can | ask a question?

MS. KENNEDY PARK: Yes.

MR. KIM Have you talked to the
governor about the inquiry?

THE W TNESS: About the press
I nquiry?

MR KIM Yeah.

THE WTNESS: | notified him
after it was dealt wth.

MR KIM After you -- they

reported back?

THE WTNESS: After Casey told ne

that he wasn't going to run the story,

told the governor what -- he said to ne,

"What's going on? | hear you getting
animated in your office," because our
offices are, |like, connected through a
Sui te.

And he said, "Wat's going on?
coul d hear you getting ani nated. "

And | said, "This is so crazy.




© o0 N o o A w N PP

N NN N NN P PR R R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

The Tines Union called and then | spoke
to Vinny and it was" -- 1|, like, you
know, gave hima summari zed version

And then the governor called
Casey Seiler.

MR KIM Hinself?

THE W TNESS:  Yeabh.

MR KIM And what did he say?

THE WTNESS. He said, "Don't get
mad at Melissa for being so anped up.
This is one of those topics that sends
her off a cliff,” and they, like, had a
ni ce tal k about the holidays.

| was like -- | only know t hat
because then Casey called ne back and
said, "It's an unusual day when you're
the bad cop and he's the good cop.”

MR KIM D dyoutalk to him
about the way in which this trooper,
UCREE#, was hired?

THE WTNESS: No. I, like -- it
was nore of a just straight retelling of
this is what happened, and this is what
Vinny told ne, and | dealt with it and

the story is not going to run.
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MR KIM D d he say anything
about how JEIEEEE was hired?

THE WTNESS: No. He just said,
"Get Casey Seiler on the phone."

MR KIM But that's the extent
of the conversation that day?

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

MR. KIM How about after that?
Any conversations with the governor
about

THE WTNESS: No. There wasn't a
reason. | hadn't even, you know,
remenber ed who was until the
press inquiry.

MR. KIM Have you seen her
si nce?

THE WTNESS: | f is who |
think she is, I think I saw her. W had
an event for a bill signing on the tenth
anni versary of marriage equality, and I
t hi nk she was at the event.

MR. KIM Have you ever spoken to
her ?

THE WTNESS: |'msure in

passi ng, hello, goodbye. But | don't




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N NN N NN P P R R R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021

really -- I'"'mnot, like, a small talk

per son.

MR KIM Thanks.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Turn to

Tab 160 in the binder. W'Ill mark this

as the next exhibit.

(Exhibit 3, The New York Tines

article entitled "Wio Can Say 'No' to

Cuonmo? Melissa DeRosa, Hi's Top Aide,"

dated May 14, 2020, marked for

identification, as of this date.)
BY M5. KENNEDY PARK:

Q Do you want to take a ook at it?

A I"'mfamliar with the article.

Q And if I'"'mright, this is an
article in the New York Tinmes from May 14,
2020, the title of which is "Who Can Say ' No
to Cuono? His Top Al de, Melissa DeRosa."

Did you speak to any reporters in
advance of this article being published about
this article?

A Ruth La Ferla | spoke to. Like,
| did an interview

Q And did you know that Lis Smth

was being interviewed by Ms. La Ferl a?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.
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Yes.

Q How di d you know t hat ?

A Because Ruth asked NG
who was managi ng article, for friends of m ne,
col | eagues who knew ne well that she could
speak to.

Q Did you speak to Ms. Smith in
advance of this article being published about

the article?

A Yeah.

Q And tell us about that.

A | just said, "Thank you so much
for talking to her. | really appreciate it.

| "' m nervous about this piece comng out, and
|"mgrateful that you're talking to her."

Q Did she tell you what she told
Ms. Ferla?

A. |"m sure that she did, but
| -- the specific conversation doesn't,
like -- it wasn't anything so significant that
| recall.

Q Were you involved or consulted
about any fact checking on this article?

A. After the fact, when they ran it,

there was a m scharacterization of ny
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husband's role at Uber. And so we tal ked
about how to get that fixed. And a press
person from Uber called the Tinmes and they
updated it.

Q I n advance of the article being

publ i shed, were you given a preview of the

article?
A No.
Q Were you consulted in advance of

the article being published about any fact
checking for the article?

A No.

Q Did you work with anyone in
advance of this being published on the fact
checki ng?

A. | don't know what you nean by
that. | did an interview and then they pulled
fromthe interview, and they clearly had done,
like, a clip job on other stories about ne.

And i f they had questions, they
worked with |l Ad if she had a
guesti on about sonething, she would ask ne.

Q o is "

A B Uscd to work for us.

She does conmmuni cations, social nedia. She's
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a good friend. She worked for us a few years
ago. She left the adm nistration and then
during COVI D cane back to help.

Q When you say "us," you nean she

wor ked at the executive chanber?

A Yes.

Q And where does she work now?
A She's currently not working.
Q O her than the

m scharacterizati on of what your husband's
role is at Uber, were there any other factual
i naccuracies in this article?

A | don't renmenber. | don't think
so.

Q kay. In this article, Lis Smth
IS quoted as sayi ng:

“*1f you're an Al bany | awraker
and you get a call from Melissa DeRosa,
you're essentially getting a call from
t he governor."'"

Is that accurate?

A. | mean, that's a perception from
peopl e.

Q Is that accurate?

A No, it's not accurate. Sone
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people | think have that perception.
Q And what's not accurate about it?
A. The governor and | are not the

sane person. And if the governor is calling

you, the governor is calling you. If I'm
calling you, I"'mcalling you. It's not the
sane.

Q Have you ever nade a call that

t he governor didn't know about?

A Sur e.

Q Did you ever nake a call that you
lied to the governor about?

A | don't think so.

Q It goes on in the bottom of the
article to say:

"It is not easy to match his
confidence.'"

Do you see that sentence? On,

you have to go back to the first page.

" Confi dence. "
MR. HECKER: Sorry, where are you
poi nti ng?
Q "'It's not easy'" --

M5. KENNEDY PARK: The second

paragraph fromthe bottom
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Q ( Readi nQ) :

“'"It's not easy to match his
confidence, his sense of control during
those briefings, but she does,"

Ms. Smith said. 'She is by no neans a

yes" wonman. As you nay i nmagine, he

does not relish hearing no.""

s that an accurate description
of the governor, that he doesn't relish hearing
no?

A. | think that any person in power,
you know, there's a give and take. But |
actually think that the governor takes
constructive criticismwell and asks for it
all the time. He actually doesn't |ike people
who just "yes" him

Q Who does he take constructive
criticismfromwell?

A. Seni or staff people that he
respects, outside advisors who he respects,
| ongtine friends.

Q Then why, when Ms. Smth said,
"As you may i magi ne, he does not relish

hearing no," why didn't you correct that as

factual ly i naccurate?
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A. It's a quote. | nean, you' d have
to ask her about it.

Q Did she preview for you that she
was going to say that?

A No.

Q If you turn to the next page, the
second paragraph fromthe bottom

A. Mm hmm

Q It says:

"Ms. DeRosa is known to be
unyi el ding in her support of the
gover nor."
s that an accurate

characteri zation?

A. | amvery supportive of the
governor, yes.

Q Are you unyielding in your
support of the governor?

A | don't know if I'd use that
characteri zation.

Q How woul d you characterize your

support of the governor?

A. "' mvery supportive of the
governor. | don't really understand the
guesti on.
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Q It says --
A. | understand what it says, but I
don't really understand the question. |'m

very supportive of the governor.
Q You can put that binder aside.
A. W' re not going to tal k about

Karen? She's right there on the page.

Q W'l talk about Ms. Hinton |ater
t oday.
In the executive chanber, do
you -- you tal ked earlier about

training -- right? -- when you joined the
executive chanber.

What kind of training do you

recei ve?
A When you first cone onboard, you
do, like, an onboarding, and you get a

training on all kinds of different topics

that's required.

Q Who does t he onboardi ng?
A Lauren Grasso does it now, but,
you know, | think she's had that job for a

coupl e of years. There have been different
peopl e who have had that job over the years.

Q Who di d your onboardi ng?
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A | don't renenber.
Q And what does the training cover?
A. There's ethics training, there's

| TS training, there's sexual harassnent
training. And the trainings have grown over
the years as we' ve added additi onal
conponents. There's now, |ike, a gender
identity training.

Q So you're not -- you just said
t hat the onboardi ng includes sexual harassnent
training. 1Is that right?

A Yes.

Q So when you got onboarded, did

you get sexual harassnent training?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And tell us about that
training.

A It was so long ago. | don't
remenber if | took it on a PowerPoint -- like

on a video at that point or if |I used the --
there's |like a packet that they give you that
you read, and then you certify that you' ve
read.

Q And you don't renenber when you

onboar ded whi ch one you did?
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A No.

Q Have you ever done the video
trai ning on sexual harassnent?

A. |'ve done the video training on
ethics a couple of tinmes. | don't renenber if
| also did the sexual harassnent one early on,
but certainly not for a few years.

Q Do you understand that the sexua
harassnent training is a yearly requirenent?

A Yes.

Q Have you conpleted it every year
you' ve been in the executive chanber?

A | believe that | have. Although,
| know through this process that they don't
have records of everything. But | don't know
if that's because | didn't do it or it's a
record retention issue.

Q When was the last tine you did
t he sexual harassnent training?

A I n May.

Q When do you normally do the
sexual harassnent training?

A. There's generally a deadline and
our assistants are pretty good about standing

over you until you do it. So whenever, you
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know, you're com ng up on the deadline, you
get constant rem nders.
Q What's the deadline?

| actually don't know.

Q Is it at the end of the year?
A | think so but I'mnot sure.
Q Who woul d know?

A Lauren G asso.

Q So was the deadline in May?
A No.

Q Did you do sexual harassnent

training in May of this year?

A Yes.

Q And why did you do that?

A The assistants had all of the
different trainings printed out, and they were
offering themup to people, and | said, "I
shoul d just get this done now."

Q Did you understand why the
assistants had all the trainings printed out?

A | think the people were becon ng
nore aware of everything, obviously given the
situation. And we didn't do any trainings in
2020 because of COVID. And so | think that

there was a bi gger push earlier on.
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Q Did you have any role in the
executive assistants bringing out the sexual
harassnent training and other trainings in My
of this year?

A | don't think so.

Q Did you instruct anyone to do the
sexual harassnent trainings in May of this
year ?

A | don't think so.

Q Were you involved in any
conversations in which it was discussed the
need to do sexual harassnent trainings in My
of this year?

A | don't think so.

Q You said, | think, that there's a
vi deo option and then there's a paper option?

A Mm hmm

Q Can you tell me who gets to do
t he paper option and who does the video
option?

A. | believe senior staff gets the
option to do the paper -- the, like, packet
that you read and then certify.

Q kay. And why does senior staff

get the option to do the packet?
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A. Because everyone's schedul es are
so fluid that when they schedul e the
trainings, there was this constant issue of
people mssing them And so this was a way to
ensure that people were absorbing the nateri al
or reading the material if they couldn't make
one of the trainings.

Q The vi deo sessions have to be
schedul ed?

A. The vi deo sessions are schedul ed,
yeah.

Q You can't just click and do it at
your | eisure?

A. | have no idea but, earlier on, |
know t hat they were scheduled. And to this
day, like, the ethics one, for exanple, I|ike,
there's a scheduled tine slot when you can do
it.

Q kay. And is -- to your
under st andi ng, the sexual harassnent trainings
were al so on sonme sort of schedul e?

A Yes, | think so.

Q Were you a part of the decision
to offer the sexual harassnent training to

senior staffers in paper fornf
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A. | don't think I was a part of the
decision. | think maybe | was notified, but
| "' m not even sure what year it happened.

Q And you told ne earlier you
t hought there m ght be a paper trail problem
wi th you doi ng your sexual harassnent
training. Wiy don't you turn to Tab 146 of
your bi nder.

(Exhibit 4, Certification for
mandat ed sexual harassnent training from
January 4, 2016, narked for
Identification, as of this date.)

M5. KENNEDY PARK: We'll mark
this as the next exhibit.

Q Tab 146 is, it |looks like, your
certification fromJanuary 4, 2016, for the

sexual harassnent trainings. Right?

A. It appears that way.

Q And on that date you certified
that you had read the course material. |Is
that right?

A M hmm

Q And that you had conpleted the
| earning activities. Do you see that?

A. | see that it says that.
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Q VWhat | earning activities did you
conpl et e?

A | don't renenber.

Q Have you ever conpl eted | earning

activities as part of sexual harassnent

t rai ni ng?
A | don't renenber.
Q Have you conpl eted any surveys as

part of sexual harassnent training?

A. | mean, | renenber reading the
scenarios. Like, this person says this, this
person says this, and then you read through
the questions. |Is that what you nean, or is
it sonmething separate than that?

Q Did you do that? D d you read
t hrough scenarios and then read through
guesti ons about those scenarios?

A Yes.

Q And did you have to pick the

answers for those questions?

A. You -- like it says, like, "yes
or no." And then you just say continue to
read.

Q kay. And in the reading, does

it tell you what the right answers are to
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t hose questions?
A Yes.

Q kay. And do you renenber doing

t hat ?
Yes.
Q And you did that on January 4,
20167?
A | believe so. |If that's what was
required in that year, | know that | have done
t hat .

Q Okay. Wiy don't you turn to the
next tab. It's 147.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: We'll mark
this as the next exhibit.

(Exhibit 5, Certification for
mandat ed sexual harassnent training and
equal enpl oynent opportunity, rights and
responsibilities training from
Decenber 14, 2016, marked for
Identification, as of this date.)

Q This appears to be your
certification of having done two trainings,
one is the nmandated trai ning on sexual
harassnment in the workplace, and one is on

equal enpl oynent opportunity, rights and
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responsibilities.
s that right?

A. It appears that way.

Q Ckay. And this is from
Decenber 14, 2016. Do you see that date?

A M hmm

Q kay. Tell nme what did you
remenber about the equal enpl oynent

opportunity rights and responsibility

t rai ni ng?

A | don't renenber from 2016.

Q Do you renenber ever having taken
it?

A Yes.

Q And what do you renenber about
the contents of it?

A. It's about enpl oyee fairness and
how you treat one another in the office and
you nmake sure that you're not discrimnating.

Q And was there a
guesti on-and-answer part of that training?

A. | don't renenber.

Q Do you renenber anything that was
di fferent about this sexual harassnent

training than the one you took in January of
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t hat year?
A | don't renenber.
Q Go to Tab 245.

(Exhibit 6, Certification for
mandat ed sexual harassnent training,
dated May 5, 2021, nmarked for
identification, as of this date.)

M5. KENNEDY PARK: We'll mark
this as the next exhibit.

Q This is a certification from
May 5, 2021, signed by you, to the 2021

mandat ed sexual harassnent training in the

wor kpl ace. Is that right?
A Yes.
Q And this is the training we were

just tal king about that you took in My of

this year. |Is that right?
A Yes.
Q And do you renenber reading the

course material ?

A Yes.

Q And how is that course materia
any different than course material you studied
previously on sexual harassnent?

A. | don't renenber.
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Q And do you renenber what the

| earning activities were for this course

mat eri al ?
A. It was the questions.
Q The hypot heticals you were just

telling nme about?

A Yeah. Yes.

Q Ckay. There's no certification
that's been produced for training for you for
t he years 2018 and 2019. D d you take sexual
harassnent training in 20187

A | think so. But there's no
record of it, so | can't be certain.

Q Ckay. And how woul d the record
have gotten | ost?

A | don't know.

Q Did you take sexual harassnent
training in 2019?

A I think so.

Q And there's no record of it.
Have any idea of what happened to that record?

A. No i dea.

Q Do you have an actual nenory of
taking the training in 2019?

A. | have nenories of ny assistants
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every year comng in and saying, "W have to
make sure that this gets done.”™ So | don't

know why it woul dn't have happened in those

two years.

Q And are your assistants
responsi ble for making sure you sign the form
after you' ve conpleted the training?

A. | don't know that they're
responsi ble for it, but they've, |ike, taken

on that responsibility.

Q And who does the certification go
to?

A | believe to Lauren G asso.

Q Any reason to believe she threw

out your certification?

A. | don't know that there was,
i ke, nmeticulous attention to record retention
or that it didn't happen. But | find it hard
to believe that, when these things cone around
and everyone is very focused on we have to
neet these deadlines, that it wouldn't have
happened.

Q So you believe the training
happened in 2018 and 20197

A. Yes.
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Q Didn't happen in 2020. R ght?

A No.

Q And why didn't it happen in 20207
A. In COVID we suspended a | ot of

the mandated rules and responsibilities around
t hese trainings.

Q And why did you do that?

A. Because we were battling a gl obal

pandem ¢ and no one had a m nute to breathe.

Q When was it -- that suspension
lifted?

A. | don't renenber.

Q Who was involved in the decision

to make the suspension?

A. Beth Garvey and |'m sure nyself.

Q And who was involved in the
decision to lift the suspension?

A Sane.

Q And tell us about why you made
the decision to lift the suspension.

A. Well, it wasn't a specific
decision to lift the suspension. As COVID
i nproved, we just began lifting all kinds of
suspensi ons, unless they were absolutely

necessary to fight the pandem c.
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Q And do you renenber when the
suspension on training was |ifted?

A No.

Q Did you ever talk to the governor
about the suspension on training?

A No.

Q Did you ever talk to the governor
about lifting the suspension on training?

A No.

Q What do you know about the
governor having taken sexual harassnent
traini ng?

A Sane, simlar situation. | know
that every year we have to do the trainings,
and | know that Stephanie would go in there
and make sure that he read the packet and
signed the certification.

Q How do you know t hat ?

A. Because |'ve gotten the question
in the context of press inquiries.

Q Ckay. And what was the question?

A "Did the governor take a sexual
harassnent traini ng?"

Q Ckay. And who did that cone
fronf
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A | don't renenber originally. It
may have been Norah O Donnel |

Q And what did you do to find out
the response to that inquiry?

A. | asked Stephanie and the
gover nor.

Q kay. And what did Stephanie
tell you?

A. That every year she would get a
rem nder about the trainings, and that she
woul d make sure to print out and give themto
him and that he would review them and t hen
sign them and then she would give themto
whoever, whether it be Lauren Grasso or

whoever had her role before that.

Q Did she watch hi mreview t henf

A No.

Q And what did the governor tel
you?

A. That every year he would get the

trai nings, and that he had to read a packet
and si gn sonet hi ng.

Q Did she tell you that he did, in
fact, read the packet?

A. Yes. He said he believed that he
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didn't renmenber a year when he didn't have to
do that.

Q And he said -- did he tell you
that he recalled the packet containing sexua
harassnent training?

A Yeah.

Q kay. Did you --

A. Al | of trainings. | mean, we
generally do themall at once.

Q Did he tell you anything el se

about the sexual harassnent training?

A No.
Q Who went back to the reporter?
A. | don't renenber if it was ne,

Peter, or Rich. One of the three of us.

Q And what was the reporter told?

A. That he conpl eted the sexua
har assnent trai ni ng.

Q Was there any di scussi on about
whet her the governor had signed his own
certification or soneone else signed it for
hi nf

A No.

Q That question wasn't raised by

the press?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.

com




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P P PR R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021

A | don't think so.

Q s that sonething you talked to
Ms. Benton about?

A No.

Q Is it sonmething you tal ked to the

gover nor about ?

A No.

Q Have you tal ked to anyone about
that topic?

A | don't think so.

Q After the question from Norah

O Donnel | on whether the governor did his
sexual harassnent training, has there been any
ot her di scussions you've been a part of about
t he governor doing his sexual harassnent

traini ng?

A No. Again, like anything on this
topic, | feel |ike conversations were had
around the context of incom ng press
I nquiries.

Q l"mnot sure -- what is that in
response to?

A. You are asking about if there was
ever any other conversation around this. So |

think the only other tinme there could have
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been conversation around it is if there was an
addi ti onal press inquiry, but the answer
di dn't change.

Q Ckay. Was there an additiona
press inquiry about whether the governor had

done the sexual --

A | don't renenber.

Q We just can't tal k over each
ot her.

A Sorry, sorry.

Q WAs there an additional press

i nqui ry about whether the governor had done
hi s sexual harassnment training?

A. | don't renenber but there very
wel | may have been.

Q kay. O her than press
inquiries, were there any other conversations
you were a part of about whether the governor

had done his sexual harassnent training?

A. No, not that | recall.

Q Have you ever seen the enpl oyee
handbook?

A Yes.

Q Do you do training on the

enpl oyee handbook?
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A | don't think so.

Q Does the equal opportunity
enpl oynent training that we just |ooked at,
does that cover the enpl oyee handbook?

A | don't renenber.

Q Who's responsible in the
executive chanber for making sure that the

enpl oyee handbook is conplied wth?

A | don't know.
Q Do you have that responsibility?
A. No. | think that it's personal

responsibility.
Q Everyone in the executive chanber

either directly reports to you or indirectly

reports to you. |Is that right?
A. Mm hmm
Q But you don't think you have

responsibility for ensuring that the enpl oyee
handbook is conplied with?
A No.
Q Way don't we turn to Tab 153.
(Exhi bit 7, Enpl oyee Handbook,
marked for identification, as of this
date.)

Q Before we | ook at the handbook

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N NN N NN R R P R R PR PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021

does the governor have a role in making sure
that this handbook is conplied wth?
A. | think that when you get the

handbook, you're supposed to certify that you

have read the handbook and that you wll [|ive
up to the responsibilities therein. | think.
Q Did you do that?
A Ei ght years ago probably. |

don't think it's sonething we do annually. |
think it's sonmething you do onboardi ng.

Q | apol ogi ze for interrupting you

It's sonmething that happens when
soneone i s onboarded to the executive chanber?

A. | believe so, yeah.

Q And what is done within the
executive chanber to make sure that people do,
in fact, conply with their obligations under
t he enpl oyee handbook?

A | don't think that that's how the
worl d works. Like, you -- there's not one
person standi ng over soneone's shoul der,
sayi ng, "W have to nake sure that you're
adhering to every single one of these things."

You' re supposed to read it and

take your own role and personal responsibility
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to make sure you're adhering to it.

Q I s there anyone who has
responsibility for ensuring that the enpl oyee
handbook is conplied wth?

A | don't know.

Q Is there any sort of conpliance
function within the executive chanber?

A. I n which regard?

Q In ensuring that the handbook is
conplied wth.

A. There's lots of things in a
handbook. Li ke, what specifically? There's
an ethics officer. There's sonebody -- you're
supposed to clear things through counsel.

You' re supposed to clear things through JCOPE.

| mean, there's not one person
that's charged with standing over soneone's
shoul der and maki ng sure that every line in
this book is adhered to, no.

Q So there are people who have
responsibility for ensuring that parts of this
handbook are conmplied with. |[Is that what
you' re sayi ng?

A Sur e.

Q Ckay. And who are the peopl e who
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have responsibility for ensuring that parts of

t hi s handbook are conplied w th?

A. Vell, really it's really
your sel f.

Q | think you just told ne that it
was - -

A. Yeah, there's counsel. |If you've
got --

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Hold on just a
second.

MR. HECKER: Hey, Melissa, wait
for her question.

Q | think what you just told ne
there's an ethics officer, there's counsel,
and now you're saying it's primarily yourself.

So, again, who has responsibility
for ensuring that parts of the enpl oyee
handbook are conplied wth?

A. You' re asking an open-ended
guestion when | think that there are specific
answers. So there's soneone that's supposed
to make sure that you do your trainings every
year. That's Lauren G asso.

It's supposed to be that, if you

have a potential conflict, that you run that
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t hrough counsel's office, and that you get the
okay through counsel's office and if that
needs to be taken through JCOPE. So there are
di fferent pieces.

But | think ultimtely people
have personal responsibility. Because it's
not as if the counsel is standing over your
shoul der, saying, "Did you do this, did you do
this, did you do this" every day.

Q ' m not asking about soneone
standi ng over your shoulder. You said that
Lauren Grasso has responsibility for certain
aspects of the handbook, and that the
counsel's office has responsibility for
certain aspects of conpliance with the
handbook.

Is there anyone el se or any ot her
function that has responsibility for ensuring
conpliance with aspects of the handbook?

MR. HECKER: And just before

answering that, you may just want to

| ook at the table of contents so you can

see if that pronpts a thought about

whet her there are peopl e who have

responsibility for aspects of this.
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A (Docunent review. )

These are all the different
trai nings that get broken out every year. |
think it's generally a supervisor who is
supposed to nake sure your enpl oyees are
adhering to these. There's not, like, a
one-stop shop.

Q kay. So supervisors have
responsibility for ensuring that the people

t hey supervise conply with this handbook. |Is

that right?
A. Yes.
Q Are you a supervisor in the

executive chanber?

A I am

Q Ckay. So you have responsibility
for ensuring that the people you supervise
conply with this handbook. Is that right?

A Yeah.

Q What did you do to ensure that
t he people who you supervise conplied with
t hi s handbook?

A. If an issue canme to ny attention,
| would make sure that it was addressed.

Q Can you give nme an exanpl e?
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A No.

Q No i ssues have ever cone to your
attention that raise --

A. Not top of m nd.

Q Can you wait for nme to just
finish the question, because then she's really
going to get nad.

There are no exanpl es that cone
to your mnd of issues that were raised to
your attention that called into question

whet her thi s handbook was being conplied wth?

A. Not top of m nd.
Q  Wo's [
A | don't know.
Q You' ve never heard the nane
I
A | may have heard of it, but it
wasn't sonething that was -- sticks in ny
m nd.
Q Where did you hear the nane?
| don't know.
Where may have you heard the
name?

| have no i dea.

Who' s
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A S s somebody who

wor ked on the floor doing health policy and
now wor ks at the Departnent of Health.

Q How did he cone to work at the
Departnment of Heal th?

A He was transferred to the
Departnent of Health after he had an issue
wth ne.

Q And what was the issue?

A. W had a phone call about COVID
in schools. He was responsible for naking
sure that we had all of the updated
informati on and that conpliance was occurring
st at ew de.

And there had -- you know, we did
t hese phone calls every day, every other day.
And after about half a dozen of them when he
didn't have answers to any of the repeated
guestions that he would get every norning,
said, "I don't understand how it is that at
this point you don't have the answers to these
guestions. You're talking about matters of
life and death. You're tal ki ng about people's
children. And yet you cone to these calls

every day conpletely unprepared. And if you
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can't do this, then we're going to need to
find sonebody el se who can."

And then following that, it was
rel ayed back to ne that he, apparently after
the call, called ne a nunber of things
including a bitch. | got a phone call froma
| obbyi st that said that he had said it to
mul ti pl e people, and that a bunch of the
| obbyi sts were tal king about how |l
B 'as running around calling ne a bitch,
and | believe |l \ho was soneone t hat
he worked with, nmay have reported it.

Q When you say "reported it,"
reported it to who?

A. | think told a supervisor but |I'm
not sure who.

Q And you said he called you a
nunber of things. What else did he call you?

A. Al'l | know specifically was bitch
but that was enough.

Q And after it was reported, what's
the next involvenent you had with | N
I

A. | don't think I did. | spoke to
Judy Mogul and Beth, and | told them what had
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happened.
Q And what did you tell Judy Mogul ?
A. Exactly what | just told you.
Q And what did you tell Beth

A. They were on the phone together.

Q Did you ask that he be
transferred?

A | said | didn't feel confortable
wi th himworking under me if, in reaction to
me asking himto do his job and pushing himon
gquestions of life or death, that his response
to that was to say | was a bitch and say it to
a nunber of people.

Q Did you ask for himto be renoved
fromthe second fl oor?

A. Yes. | said | was no | onger

confortable with him

Q Sorry. You said --
A In that position.
Q -- you were no | onger confortable

with him and you wanted himoff the second
fl oor?
A. | don't remenber the exact words

that | used, but |I said, "in that position."
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So that's the sum and substance of the
t akeaway.

Q kay. And himcalling you a
bitch is the thing that nmade you
unconf ort abl e?

A Yes.

Q And t hen what happened?

A. And then | believe that they
counseled him and I think he requested the
transfer to DOH

Q Okay. When you say "counsel ed
him" what do you know about his counseling?

A. | don't know anythi ng about it
beyond the fact that Beth Garvey spoke to him
and | believe counseled him

Q How do you know that Beth Garvey
spoke to himand counsel ed hi nf

A Because she told ne afterwards.

Q kay. And what did she tell you
happened at the counseling?

A. That he acknow edged it and that
he wanted the opportunity to apol ogize to ne.

Q And what else did she tell you
happened at the counseling?

A Not hi ng.
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Q Di d he apol ogi ze to you?
No.
Q Did you tell Ms. Garvey that you

did not want himto have that opportunity?
A. | said it was unnecessary.
Q And why did you think it was

unnecessary?

A Because it was unnecessary.

Q Wiy was it unnecessary?

A. It just was.

Q Can you hel p ne understand that?

He had nmade you feel unconfortable. Wy was
it unnecessary --

A Because | didn't think him
apol ogi zing --

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Sorry, we
just -- let ne nake sure she got the
guestion. Hold on a second.

MR. HECKER: Melissa, you got to
sl ow down.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

Q | said, "Can you help ne
under stand why you think it was unnecessary?"
A. It just -- | didn't think that an

apol ogy woul d do anything to resolve the
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situation. It was what it was. It was just
unnecessary.

Q But you thought transferring him
woul d resol ve the situation?

A. | thought that it was
i nappropriate to have sonebody who was wor ki ng
for me, after having a difficult conversation
where they were held accountable, to then
react to that by running around and calling ne
a bitch.

Q Did you talk to anyone el se about
this incident with | other than
Ms. Mogul and Ms. Garvey and the | obbyist?

A. Not that | recall.

Q Who was the | obbyist?

A

Q I think you said that NG
requested a voluntary transfer. |1|s that
right?

A I think so.

Q How di d you cone to that

under st andi ng?
A | think that's what Beth told ne.
O Judy. One or the other.

Q Earlier you told nme that one of
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t he purposes of the enpl oyee handbook is to
make sure people, | think you said, behave
appropriately. W can go back and | ook. But
words to the affect of behave appropriately in
t he executive chanber and show respect.

Can you think of any other
occasi ons when you've been involved in a
situation where soneone wasn't behaving

appropriately or with respect in the executive

chanber ?
A. Not off the top of ny head.
Q Ckay. Do you know N X
A Yes -- well, no. But | know the
nane. | don't know him but | know the nane.
Q Ckay. How do you know |
I
A He had an incident with
]
Q kay. And tell us about that
i nci dent .
A. | don't know anythi ng about it.

| just know that there was a conference cal
where | think that she asked a question, and
in response to that he called her |

Q And how did you cone to that
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record.

BY Ms. KENNEDY PARK:

Q Bef ore break we were talking

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021
under st andi ng?
A. Judy told ne.
Q Why was Judy telling you?

MR. HECKER: Can we j ust
establish -- is that a privileged
conversation? | just don't want to --

M5. KENNEDY PARK: |'m not aware
that it is. But we can take a break,
and you guys can think about it.

MR. HECKER: Do you know t he
answer ?

MS. CROWLEY: Yeah, | think it
Is. Can we just take a break now?

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Sure. Wy
don't we go off the record.

THE VI DEOGRAPHER: The tine is
11:16 a.m This concludes Media 2. Of
t he record.

(Recess taken from11l:16 a.m to
11: 22 a.m)

THE VI DEOCGRAPHER: The tine is
11: 22 a.m This begins Media 3. On the
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cLellig = EEUllSenior Staffer #2 . CGan

you tell me what you know about that incident.
MR. HECKER: Yeah, to the extent
the information is only through
di scussions either with your counsel or
with Ms. Mogul, | instruct you those are
privil eged di scussions.
So you can tal k about any ot her
di scussi ons or information you have
I ndependent of discussions with counsel.

Q Do you have any information about

t he i nci dent between _ and

Senior Staffer #2 that did not cone either
t hrough Judy Mogul or through your personal

counsel ?
A No.
Q Ckay. Are you aware of any

occasi ons on whi ch anyone in the executive
chanber made a report to GCOER?

A. Yes. | 'ho was
formally our counsel, nmade a report to GOER
about an agency matter, but | can't recall the
specifics. | think Jill may have done a

report to GOER on an enpl oyee, G

years ago.
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|"msure that there are nore, but

those are the only ones that cone to top of

m nd.

Q Ckay. Tell us about the report
to GOER that was nade by NN

A | don't renmenber. | renenber

that at sonme point in June she asked for a
conference call. | don't renmenmber what the

specifics of the incident were.

Q In June of what year?
A 2020.
Q And you said it was related to

sonebody at an agency?

A | believe so. | don't think it
was an executive chanber enployee. | think it
was an agency natter.

Q You said she asked for a call. A

call with whon?

A | remenber this based on,
admttedly, like rereview ng docunents. So ny
knowl edge of that is not, |ike, a unique
menory. It's fromlooking at e-mails. It

was, | think, me and Judy and |l raybe
Beth, but I'mnot 100 percent sure.

Q Ckay. And do you recall what you
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were told on this phone call?

A | remenber -- | don't renenber
t he exact incident of what occurred, but I
know that -- | believe that it resulted in the
person being referred to GOER, | think maybe
ultimately fired. | don't know.

Q The person who was conpl ai ni ng

being referred to GOER, or soneone el se being
referred to GOER?

A No. A person, like, that had

alleged to do sonething. But again, | don't

remenber any of the specifics.

Q Ckay.

A So | don't want to say sonething
| don't know.

Q Was t he governor briefed on

anyt hi ng about this incident that | N

was reporting on?

A No.

Q What was your under st andi ng of
why that incident was being reported to GOER?

A I think it was a sexual
harassment incident, but | don't renenber the
speci fics.

Q Because it was a sexua
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harassnment incident, it was being reported to
GCER?

A Yes.

Q And is that consistent with your
under st andi ng of what the enpl oyee handbook
requires?

A. So fromthe training, fromwhat |
understand, is that it can either go to GOER
or you can report it to your supervisor or you
can report it to counsel wthin your agency.

And then once one of those people
are aware, they can help you navigate. But
ultimtely GOER does sexual harassnent
i nvesti gati ons.

Q kay. So ultimately it's GOER s
responsibility to do a sexual harassnent
i nvesti gation?

A Yes.

Q So whet her soneone brings it to
you directly or brings it to their supervisor

or brings it to counsel, ultimately it reports

to GOER?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. And you say you cane to

t hat understanding fromthe training?
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A Yes.

Q When did that becone your
under st andi ng?

A. Al ways.

Q The entire tinme you' ve been in
t he executive chanber?

A. | think so, yeah

Q There's no point in tinme at which
the | aw changed regardi ng the reporting of
sexual harassnent issues to GOER?

A | don't think so. The
| egi slature has a different nmechanism They
report to JCOPE. | know that we changed the
| aw around the standard of sexual harassnent,
but I don't think we changed the | aw around
the reporting nechanism But | mght be
W ong.

Q Ckay. We'll cone back to the
change in the law in a few m nutes.

But then the second incident you
said you were aware of that went to GOER t hat
i nvol ved the executive chanber cane through
Jill DesRosiers and was about [lIEENG

Tel | us about that.

A. | think, and this was a long tine
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ago, but ny -- | think that there was an
incident where | had been on the road
at an event and invited sonebody to his room
and answered the door wearing, |ike, boxer
shorts, with a drink in his hand.

And then that person | believe
went to Jill, and then Jill reported it. |

thi nkilll eybe quit or sonething. |

think this led to his di sm ssal.

Q How di d you becone aware of this?

A | believe Jill briefed ne at the
tinme.

Q And what was your understandi ng
as to why Jill was briefing you?

A Because this incident had

occurred and it needed to be dealt wth.
Q And what was |l ' ¢~
A He -- | think he did

i ntergovernnental affairs but, |ike, our

regional position. He was in her |ine of

command.

Q So he worked in the executive
chanber ?

A. | don't know if technically he

worked in the executive chanber or if he was
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on an agency line, but he certainly did work
supporting the chanber.

Q Who was the conplainant in that
situation?

A | don't renenber.

Q Do you remenber if it was an
enpl oyee of the executive chanber?

A. It was certainly an enpl oyee. |
don't know if it was of an agency or the
executive chanber.

Q What el se do you renenber about
Ms. DesRosiers telling you about that
i nci dent ?

A. | remenber just that, that she
told me about the incident and that ultinately
he was dismssed. | don't renmenber if in the
between -- | don't know if he quit on his own,
he was fired. | just don't renenber the
det ai | s.

Q And she told you it was being
reported to GOER?

A | believe so.

Q kay. Did you brief the governor
on that incident?

A. | think afterwards. | think
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after he was gone.

Q kay. And what did you tell the

gover nor ?

A. | don't renenber specifically but
| assune -- well, | shouldn't assune. | let
hi m know t hat he was gone. | don't renenber

how | conveyed the exact circunstances.

Q But did you tell him him being
gone related in some way to him having engaged
in the behavi or you described?

A. | don't think I was specific, and
|"'mnot even sure | said, "sexual harassnent,"

but I think I told himit was a disciplinary

I Ssue.
Q And was it your conclusion that
B 2d engaged in sexual harassnment?
A. It's not ny job to interpret, but

it seened |like inappropriate behavi or.

Q Let's go back to -- you said
there was a change in the | aw on sexual
harassnment. Tell us what you know about t hat
change in the | aw on sexual harassnent.

A. In 2019 we changed the law to go
from severe and pervasive to no | onger having

to be severe and pervasive. So it could just
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be in the mnd of the person who's being
harassed, like, if you feel unconfortable.

Q Make sure | understand this. So
before the aw that was passed in 2019, in
order to be sexual harassnent under New York

State | aw, the conduct had to be severe or

pervasi ve.
Is that right?
A Correct.
Q And the |aw that was passed

el imnated that requirenent?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And what was your
i nvol venent in getting that | aw passed?

A. | was a chief proponent of it,

t hrough the Council on Wnen and Grls.

Q And what does it nean to be the
chi ef proponent of it?

A. Internally, a lot of tines
different staff people will take a lead on a
certain policy matter or issue area, and this
was one that | was very vocal on.

Q And why did you think this policy
change needed to be nade?

A. Conversations with stakehol ders
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within the Council on Whnen and Grls, they
t hought that the standard legally was set in a
way that discouraged reporting or that was too

murky for plaintiffs to be able to cone

forward
Q Did you agree?
A Yeah.
Q And so, in part, you wanted the

| aw t o get passed to encourage reporting?

A. | wanted the |law to get passed so
that victins would be able to have an easier
time reporting.

Q And how does that |aw make it
easier for victinms to report?

A. It's not actually about the
reporting. | guess that's the wong word.

Just the standard, so that if there is an

i nci dent of sexual harassnent, that the
standard is | ower so that people would be held
accountable in a different way.

So it wasn't on the victimto
prove and, |ike, what does "severe and
pervasi ve" nean and have the courts
interpreted it.

Q What was the governor's role in
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this change in the | aw?

A He signed the bill

Q Q her than signing the bill, did
he have a role in the change of the | aw?

A | don't believe it was an issue
that he personally negotiated. | think that
that was ne and Al phonso David. But obviously
he was of -- like, always briefed on what we
were doi ng, and that was a conponent of the
wonen' s agenda that | spearheaded that year.

Q Do you renenber briefing himon
this change in the | aw?

A ["'m-- not specifically. But |I'm
sure it happened. |'msure that in the
context of negotiations -- | think we did it
in a budget -- we explained to himthat this
was one of the things that we were noving
forward on.

Q Are there docunents reflecting
that briefing?

A | don't think so. They're
verbal, not witten.

Q What do you renenber about that
verbal briefing?

A | don't. | nean, | just know --
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| just know that on high-I|evel issues,
especially when you're comng down to it at
the end and it's, like, what are we going to
get, what's falling off the table, that that
woul d have been one that we nentioned.

Q Did you brief himon why the |aw
needed to be changed?

A | think Al phonso briefed himon
why the | aw needed to be changed, |ike, before
an event on it, to explain so he understood.

Q Do you know what event that was?

A. | think we did a bill signing
with a bunch of the wonen's rights advocates.

Q Wiy don't we -- can you turn to
Tab 1537

MR. HECKER: 153 again? The
handbook?

M5. KENNEDY PARK: 153. The
handbook.

MR. HECKER: The sane handbook?

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Yeah.

Q Turn to page 17. So if you | ook
at the prior page, just so we're all oriented,
the prior page has "Sexual Harassnent" at the

top. This is a section of the handbook that
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is on the definition of "sexual harassnent.”
Do you see that?
A M hmm
Q Ckay. And you see on the -- page
17 the definition of "hostile environnment."
You see that?
A Yes.
kay. And the definition says:
"Hostil e environnent sexual
harassnent includes, but is not limted
to words, signs, jokes, pranks,
I ntimdation or physical violence which
are of a sexual nature, or which are
directed at an individual because of
that individual's sex."

Did you understand that to be
part of the definition of sexual harassnent
whil e you were working in the executive
chanber ?

A. ( Readi ng):
"Which are directed at an
I ndi vi dual because of that individual's
sex. "
| thought that there was al so,

i ke, an unwant ed conponent of that.
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Q That's a separate part of the
definition on the prior page. Do you want to
| ook at that?

A Sure.

Q On the bottom of page 16, it
says:

"Sexual harassnent includes
unwel cone conduct."
Do you see that?

A. M hmm

Q So that's one part of the
definition. On page 17, there's a different
part of the definition:

"Hostil e environnent sexual
har assnent incl udes."

Do you see that?

Yes.

Q I s that your understanding of a
part of the definition of sexual harassnent
whil e you worked in the executive chanber?

A | know that there is sex-based
harassnent, and then there is, like, quid pro
guo sexual harassnment. So | think this would
fall under the category of the sex-based

harassnent. Right?
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Q And do you know what hostile
envi ronment sexual harassnent is?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And is this the definition
of hostile environnent sexual harassnent?

A Yes.

Q And so when you were working in
t he executive chanber, this was your
under standi ng that part of -- this was your
under standi ng of the definition of hostile
envi ronnment sexual harassnent?

A. Yes. | mean, | don't know it,
you know, word for word but the thrust.

Q kay. And when were you nade
aware of this definition?

A | mean, | just have al ways known
what a hostile work environnent is. It's
just, like, a termthat I"maware of. | don't
remenber as, |ike, a nonent -- you know what |
mean? -- |like a nonent where | becane aware of

what that term neant.

Q Thi s handbook, you said you read
it when you were onboarded. |Is that right?

A. No. | said you're supposed to
read it when you' re onboarded. | believe that
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| had, |ike, went through it. | don't know
that | can say | read it word for word.

Q But you told ne you had to
certify that you had read this when you were
onboarded. |Is that right?

A That you had to reviewit, yes.

Q You told ne that you had to
certify that you had read it. Right?

A I think so.

kay. And you told ne that you
had, in fact, certified that you read this
handbook. Is that right?

A Yes.

Q kay. So you read this handbook

when you were onboar ded?

A Yes.

Q Ckay.

A | nmean, a version of this. |
think this is a 2018 version. | don't know

how it changed from 2013.

Q Yup. After you were onboarded,
have you had any occasion to review this
enpl oyee handbook?

A. What do you nean, "had an

occasi on"?
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Q Was there a tine when you | ooked
at it?

A | don't think so.

Q So since you were onboarded,

you' ve never | ooked at this enpl oyee handbook?
A | don't think so. | think we
just do the annual trainings.
Q You told ne there's no annua
training on the enpl oyee handbook. Ri ght?
A Sexual harassment has its own
training.
MR. HECKER: Hang on. | don't
think there's --
Q You told ne there's no annua
training on the enpl oyee handbook. Correct?
MR. HECKER: Actually, she said
that the conponents of this are what
they train on.
M5. KENNEDY PARK: Let's ask the
questi on.
Q So is there a training on the
entirety of the enpl oyee handbook?
A | don't think so.
Q kay. There's sexual harassnent

training. Correct?
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A Yes.

Q Ckay. So other than the sexual
harassnent training, have you had occasion to
read this enpl oyee handbook since you were
onboar ded?

A | don't think so.

Q If you go further on page 17,
into the fifth full paragraph, see the
sentence that begins "Furthernore"?

MR HECKER: Page 177

Q Fifth paragraph, the |ast

sentence. |t begins "Furthernore."
A Yes.
Q Ckay:

"Furthernore, any supervisory or
manageri al enpl oyee who observes or
ot herwi se becones aware of conduct of a
sexual | y harassing nature nust report
such conduct so it can be investigated."
Did you understand this to apply
to you?
A Yes.
Q You are a supervisor or
manageri al enpl oyee?

A. Yes.
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Q I s there any occasi on on which
you have reported conduct of a sexual
har assi ng nature?

A Yes.

Q What was that occasi on?

A There was a wonan, |G
B o | believe was at DCJS, who, after
| gave a speech on sexual harassnent, sent ne
a letter detailing to ne a situation that was
happening with her. | consulted with counsel
at the tine and referred it to the inspector
general's office.

When | becane aware that
Charl otte Bennett said sonmething at a bar
about an interaction she had with the
governor, | imediately called Judy Mogul and
reported it.

Q Any ot her occasions?

A Those are the two | renenber

specifically.

Q Ckay.

A Oh, and -- I'msorry -- Brittany
Conmi sso.

Q Any ot her peopl e?

A. | don't know how Al yssa McGrath
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was handled. | don't know if ultimately she
was cl ai m ng sexual harassnent or not. But
t hat was handl ed by counsel's office and |
believe referred to the attorney general's
of fice.

Q Anyone el se?

A | think that's it.

Ckay. Let's start with || ]

B You said she worked for DCIS.
What ' s DCIS?

A. It's a state agency that handl es

crimnal justice issues.

Q And what did the letter say?

A. | don't renenber.

Q Can you tell me the thrust of the
letter?

A | honestly don't even renmenber

except that the thrust was that she believed
she was the victimof sexual harassnent.

Q And the victimof sexua
harassnment by who?

A. | believe it was her supervisor.

Q Do you renenber any of the
details of what she all eged had happened to

her ?
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A. | don't know. |If you asked ne
four years ago, | could recall them but I

don't renmenber.

Q And did this occur in 20177
A. 2017 is when she reported it to
me. | don't remenber if it happened in real

time or if it had happened earlier.
Q So this was a letter you

received. Was that a physical handwitten

letter?
A | think it was an e-mail.
Q On your executive chanber e-mail ?
A Yes.
Q Have you seen a copy of that

e-mail recently?
A No.
Q And what did you do after you got

the e-mail ?

A. | went to Al phonso David, who was
our counsel at the tinme, and said, "l just
received this e-nail. How -- what's the best

protocol to handle this? Gven that it's not
an executive chanber enpl oyee, they don't
report to nme, but | have now becone -- made

aware of the situation.”
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Q And what did he tell you?
A. He advised that we refer it to
the i nspector general's office for
I nvesti gati on.
Q Do you renenber why he said to
advise -- to gotothe IGs office?
MR. HECKER: Sorry, can we j ust
pause for a second?
THE WTNESS: Is this counsel
conversations?

MR. HECKER:. This is while he

was - -
THE W TNESS: Counsel ?
MR. HECKER  -- counsel ?
THE W TNESS:  Yeabh.
MR. HECKER: | think that's
privil eged.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: All right.
BY MS. KENNEDY PARK:
Q Are you aware of how t hat

conpl ai nt was handl ed other than from Al phonso

Davi d?
A You nmean the aftermath?
Yes.
A. | believe he -- the supervisor
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was ultimately fired.

Q How di d you cone to know t hat?

A. | think it was reported in the
paper .

Q Ckay. Did you brief anyone on
the letter from | "

A. No. Except | think there was a

press inquiry about it.

Q And what did you say in response
to the press inquiry?

A | don't renmenber but | think in
that context, | had to talk to the
conmuni cati ons team about it.

Q In preparation for today's

testimony, did you | ook at any docunents

related to "

A No.

Q Did you brief the governor on
I

A. | think at the tine | told him

because it was right after | had given a

speech that this had cone through and that he
m ght get a press question on it at an event,
and that the matter had been referred. But |

don't believe | told himthe specifics.




© o0 N o o A W N PP

N N NN NN P P R R R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Q Meani ng the specifics of what --

A The al | egati ons.

Q -- | had al |l eged had
happened to her?

A Yes, correct.

Q Any ot her conversations with the
governor about |IEGEGN"

A. Not to ny know edge.

Q W'l |l come back to the other

t hr ee.

If you | ook at that sane
docunent, let's turn to page 40. Just so
everyone's follow ng al ong, on page 40 there's
a section that has a bold heading that says
"Retaliation.”

Do you see that?

A Mm hmm

Q kay. Were you nade aware of
this section on retaliation as part of your
role in the executive chanber?

A ["msure that | read it at sone
poi nt, yes, back when | onboarded. And I
think it's also a part of the annual sexua
harassnent training. | think there's a

nodi fi ed section on it.
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Q QO her than during your onboarding
when you read the enpl oyee handbook or during
t he annual sexual harassnent training, have
you had occasion to review this definition on
retaliation?

A | nmean --

MR. HECKER: Qutside di scussions

W th counsel

THE W TNESS: No.

Q Qut si de of discussions with your
private counsel, have you had occasion to
review this definition of retaliation with
anyone in the executive chanber?

A | don't think this definition of
retaliation, no.

Q So is there any occasi on, other
t han the onboardi ng or the annual training,
where you | ooked at this definition of

retaliation?

A. | don't think so, no.
Q Ckay. And at the bottom of page
40, it says:

" Adver se enpl oynment acti on.
Retaliati on occurs when an adverse

action or actions is taken against the
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enpl oyee by the enployer. The action
need not be job-related or occur in the
wor kpl ace.  Unlawful retaliation can be
any action, nore than trivial, that
woul d have the effect of dissuading a
reasonabl e wor ker from nmaki ng or
supporting a charge of discrimnation.”
Did you understand that to be the
definition of retaliation while you' ve been

enpl oyed at the executive chanber?

A. | don't know word for word but
the thrust.
Q You understood that that

subst ance was the substance of the | aw on

retaliation. |Is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And that this was the executive
chanber's policy on retaliation. 1Is that
correct?

A. The thrust of it, yes.

Q Ckay. And at -- flip over to the
next page. It says:

"Actionable retaliation by an
enpl oyer can occur after the individual

I's no | onger enployed by the enpl oyer."
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Did you understand that to be
part of the executive chanber's policy on
retaliation as well?

A Yes.
Q And it goes on to say:

"This can include giving an
unwar rant ed negative reference for a
former enpl oyee. ™

Did you understand that to be
part of the executive chanber's policy on
retaliation?

A. | don't know specifically but the
t hrust.

Q So you understood substantively
t hat an unwarranted negative reference for a
former enpl oyee could be a form of
retaliation?

A. Yeah, unwarranted, yes.

Q You can go ahead and put that
asi de.

VWhat is the process for sonebody
getting a transfer fromthe executive chanber
to a state agency?

A | think it's person by person.

There's no set process.
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Q And when you say "person by
person,” you nean you'll work it through
individually with any person who wants to
transfer to a state agency?

A. Not anyone who wants to, but if
sonebody wants -- you know, has an interest in
going to an agency, either because it's |ess
hours or it's an area of interest or they
think it could be a better fit, if that person
is qualified and there's an opening avail abl e,
we're generally happy to facilitate that.

Q Does the executive chanber try to
pl ace people into state agencies or generally
keep themin state governnent rather than
going to private?

A. If they're, like, a good,
tal ented person and they say that they want to
| eave, of course, you, like, |obby themto see
if you can keep them Public service
obvi ously doesn't pay as nuch as the private
sector, and when you have soneone who i S
skilled and tal ented, you want to try to hold
on to them

Q Have you ever called a state

agency and asked themto, in substance, revoke
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an offer that had been made to soneone in the
executi ve chanber?

A | don't think so.

Q Have you ever called anyone in a
state agency and told them you wanted themto
stop trying to hire sonebody fromthe
executive chanber?

A. | don't think so.

Q Are you aware of either of those
t hi ngs occurring on anyone else's behalf in
t he executive chanber? Meaning did sonebody

el se in the executive chanber do those things?

A Not specifically.
Q General ly?
A. | know that when, |ike, earlier

in the adm ni stration, when Joe did personnel
matters, that sonetines that he would weigh in

on those kinds of things but not anything

speci fic.

Q When you say "Joe," you nean Joe
Per coco?

A Yes.

Q And what do you know about Joe

wei ghing in on those things?

A Not hi ng specific, just general,
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that, like, he would get involved.
Q And get involved how?
A. And deci de whet her or not he

t hought people should be transferred into
agenci es.

Q kay. Was there anyone specific
that you're aware of that M. Percoco deci ded

could not be transferred to a state agency?

A Not specifically.

Q General ly?

A. | mean, just what | just told
you.

Q kay. How did Andrew Ball | eave

t he executive chanber?

A VWi ch tinme?

Q How many tines has he |eft the
executive chanber?

A. He changed rol es a nunber of
different tines.

Q Wthin the executive chanber?

A | don't know if he was noved on
to agency lines during his tinme in the
executive chanber.

Q Are you aware of himleaving the

executi ve chanber?
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A Yes.

Q What do you know about the
ci rcunst ances under which he left the
executive chanber?

A. He had a really difficult tine
after the Percoco case. He had to testify. |
think it was really hard on him
psychologically. He -- followng that was a
very disruptive force internally,
interpersonally, and in ternms of substance.

And we kept trying to give him
different roles and nothing fit. Nothing
wor ked. And he spoke to Judy Mogul a great
deal during his tinme there in trying to figure
it out.

And then ultimately | sat him
down with soneone naned | and Jil|
to try to cone up with a new system for
events, where | nade each of thema captain
and they woul d each have their own teans.

And | thought it would be really
productive for the governor, for Jill, for the
operations team | thought it would give each
of them a | eadership opportunity to grow. And

Andrew was not happy about that, and then
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basically said that he wanted to | eave.

Q And where did he want to go?

A Just go.

Q Did he want to go to a state
agency?

A | don't think so.

Q Is there any point at which

M. Andrew Ball expressed or you becane aware
of himexpressing a desire to go to the MIA?
A. He wanted to go be -- I'm
sorry -- you're refreshing ny nenory. He
wanted to go be chief of staff to | N

Q And why didn't that happen?

A Because he wasn't G
Q And how did they cone to

understand that he wasn't _?

A Il didn't want to hire himas

his chief of staff.

Q How do you know t hat ?
A. Because | spoke to |l
Q kay. Tell us about the

conversation with |l
A. | don't renenber it specifically,
but I know that Jjjij -- it was, like,

of f boar di ng sonebody at a certain point and
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saying, like, will you take this person.
And he thought that Andrew Ball

was someone who GG 2nd

that if he went over to the agency, that he
would be really |l And he woul d have
this big title, and that it wouldn't be
productive, and that he woul dn't be | N
as his chief of staff in the agency.

Q So you were trying to convince
I to take Andrew Ball and he was resisting?

A. Early on. And | think |I even
asked the two of themto sit down and have
cof fee at one point.

Q And did they?

A Il think so.

Q And so from your perspective, the
reason M. Ball did not get that positionis
because Jjjjj didn't want himto have the job?

A I didn't want himto have the
job. It would have to be sone other different
job. And then | don't renenber how it
ultimately canme to a flat-out end with trying
to find Andrew sonething, but it becane clear
that it was tine for Andrew to go.

Q Ckay. And | think you said
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earlier that it became clear it was tinme for
Andrew to go because he was |l and he
had i nterpersonal chall enges.
What did you nean by that?
A He had a history of | 2
|l ot of the staff. He would get on conference
call s and speak over people. He wouldn't take

direction from|jjjjij- He thought he shoul d

have been |l boss. He had an R
B of his role in the chanber.
| had himwork for | IIIGEGEE 2t

one point, who was state operations director.
He's like a pros pro. And he went to go work
for I and I said, like, "Andrew, |I'm
going to -- you're going to |l earn sone

t hi ngs."

And then he said to il i n
response, "You're going to |learn sone things
fromnme."

And ]l canre to ne and said,
"I"'mnot dealing with this |- Ui ke, |
don't know who N

| tried to put himw th ||
B 2t one point. There was a simlar

negative back and forth. | think Andrew




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P PR R R R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

bel i eved that he shoul d have been her boss.
And at a certain point, | was

very exasperated with himand how |} N ] ]GgEbH

he was to the team Any tinme she did calls on

events or tried to nove any project forward,

it was alnost |ike he would be | for
the sake of bei ng | EGEGEGEGEG
Q You said he was | staff.

Can you tell ne what that neans?

A Vell, | nmean, it was in the
Percoco case. Like, he would just -- he would
belittle, be nmean to, neke fun of, openly
condescend to staff, both his contenporaries
and his juniors. | think he thought of
hi nsel f as a m ni Joe Percoco.

Q And you said that he, | think you
sai d, had negative back and forth with |l

B \Wat was that?
A Simlar to the |G

situation where she would give hima project
or ask himto do sonething, an assignnent, and
he would be flip about it. It was beneath
him It wasn't sonething that was up to his

| evel of sophistication.

And he was, you know, like a
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younger staff person. | think he felt a
certain level of | because of the
amount of time that he had been with the
state. But it didn't match with his
I

Li ke, for the first five or six
years he was there, he really was, like, an
advance person, a body person. And so we kept
trying to give himopportunities to grow that
were a little bit separate fromthe governor.

You know, go work for the state
operations director, go work for | 2at
one point. And he -- at any tine you did, it

woul d just blow up. And the person would cone

back and say, "I'mnot taking this anynore."
Q How ol d was he?
A. | want to say Andrew was, |iKke,
e e |
Q Did you view this course of

conduct that he engaged in as consistent with
t he enpl oyee handbook?

A. What do you nean?

Q VWell, so earlier you told ne that
one of the purposes of the enpl oyee handbook

was to ensure that there was respect in the
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wor kpl ace. Right? D d you view his conduct

as consistent with respect in the workpl ace?

A No.

Q So what did you do about it?

A The Andrew issue, | nean,
ultimately | said it's tinme to go. | tried

himin a nunber of different positions, but
Andrew s [ " t he
wor kpl ace far predated ny being in a senior
role.

Li ke, this was when | was conms
director. It's when | was chief of staff.
You know, he really was |ike a Joe person.
And | think that he |GGG
accordi ngly.

Q So you were the person who
ultimately decided that Andrew needed to | eave
t he executive chanber?

A. | just said that | was done
trying to find himanother position.

Q Did you ever consider naking a
report to GOER about Andrew s conduct ?

A. No. | reported it to Judy. At
one point | actually said to Andrew, "I'm not

confortable being in a roomwth you without a
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| awyer anynore," because he grew increasingly
I And | told Judy and
reported it to Judy.

Q And what did Judy do about it?

MR. HECKER: You don't have to
descri be di scussions you had with Judy.

Are you aware of Judy taking any action

after you reported it to Judy?

A | think -- | don't think official
action. | think that she tried to nentor him
and support him She had been his | awer
during the Percoco stuff, and so she had a
relationship with him And | think that she

encouraged himto try sonethi ng new.

Q Meaning new in terns of his
I

A No. | nmean new in terns of,
l'i ke --

Q Leave?

A. Yeabh. | mean, not in a, |ike,
you have to |eave but in a, |like, you' ve been

here for ten years. Like, if you're going to
grow, you need to be in a different
environment. Try sonet hing new.

Q So counsel ed hi mout ?
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A She wasn't -- | don't think that
that was her -- like, | didn't tell her to
counsel himout. But | think in counseling
him he cane around to that deci sion.

Q Ckay. |I'mactually asking a
slightly different question. Apologize if
this wasn't clear. But while he was in the
executive chanber, were there any efforts that
you were a part of to try to get himto change
the way he interacted wth other nenbers of
the staff?

A. Jill spoke to himnmultiple tines.
| spoke to himnmultiple tinmes. Al phonso David
certainly sat with himnultiple tinmes. Judy
sat with himmultiple tines.

Q And when you sat with Andrew to
tal k about the way he was treating other staff

menbers, what did you tell hinf

A. That you -- just because you're
in a position where you can nmake decisions, it
doesn't -- like, that doesn't nean that your
role is to constantly berate people, talk over
people. Like, part of your job is to foster

their own gromh, get themto lift thenselves

up.
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Ateamis only strong as its
weakest link. You don't want to push people
down. Trying to give himpositive -- like,

different ways that he could be to be

positive.
Q Li ke coachi ng?
A Yeah.

Q And is what Jill and Al phonso did
to your understanding simlar?
Yes.
kay. And that coaching didn't
stick?
A No.
Q And that's ultimtely why you
deci ded he had to | eave the executive chanber?
A. Again, | didn't tell himhe had
to leave. But | was done trying to find him
another -- like, we had noved hi maround nine
tinmes in eight years. |t was
counterproductive at a certain point. He
wasn't showing up to work. He would cone in
for half days.
Q Where we started tal ki ng about
Andrew Ball, we were tal ki ng about enpl oyees

who | eft the executive chanber and any role

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.
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you had or you were aware of in the executive
chanber preventing soneone fromtaking anot her
j ob or sayi ng soneone shoul dn't have anot her
job. W started tal ki ng about Andrew Ball.

"' mgoing to butcher his | ast

name, but SEUEES , What do you know

about how he left the executive chanber?

A. He went to the Port Authority.

Q kay. And how did that cone
about ?

A | think he worked with Jill. He

really wanted to go to the Port Authority, and
she helped facilitate after years of sitting
on this desk outside of Stephanie's office.

Q Do you know how -- you said,
"years." So it took hima long tine to go to
the Port Authority. |Is that right?

A | nmean, | don't know how | ong he
had been requesting the transfer to the Port
Authority. But I'msaying | know that he sat
out si de of Stephanie as, like, Stephanie's
assi stant for years.

Q You have no know edge about how
| ong he had been asking for the transfer to

the Port Authority?
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A No.

Q Do you have any know edge of any
calls that Jill nade to the Port Authority
about hi nf?

A Not firsthand.

Q Secondhand?

A. No. | nean, | can inmagine that
he cal | ed NN

Q Not imagine. Do you have any
know edge?

A No.

Q Ckay. Prior to |jjjjij going to the
Port Authority, had there been any ot her

positions that you're aware of he had
expressed an interest in?
A. | don't renenber.

Q How about > How di d

she | eave the executive chanber?

A | don't renenber.

Q Do you know who she is?

A Yes.

Q Do you have any know edge about

where she went ?
A. No.

Q VWhat was her role in the
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executive chanber?

A She was an assi stant working on
that sane desk that [Jjjjjlj wor ked on. And
she was al so a press assistant for a period of
tinme.

Q You have no idea where her next

job was after the executive chanber?

A | don't renmenber.

Q You knew she left. Right?

A. Yeah, years ago but | don't
remenber .

Q Was there any di scussion about

why she was | eavi ng?

A No.

Q Was she good at her job?

A Sur e. | mean, she was a press
assistant. It wasn't, you know, soneone |

came into a |l ot of contact wth.

Q Did you field any calls about her
when she was | eaving the executive chanber?

A | don't think so. | don't
remenber .

Q VWat about |GG \at
was your role, if any, in his leaving the

executi ve chanber?
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A | don't think | had a role in his
| eavi ng the executive chanber.
Q What do you know about why he

| eft the executive chanmber?

A. | don't renenber. It was after
all the Joe stuff. | don't renenber.
Q You don't have any nenory of

havi ng di scussi ons about why |G

was | eaving the executive chanber?

A | don't renenber.

Q Were you part of any discussions
about his potential future enployers?

A | don't renenber.

Q Were you part of any discussions
about contacting his potential future
enpl oyers?

A | don't think so.

Q How di d Annabel Wal sh | eave the
executive chanber?

A She quit.

Q And what's your understandi ng of
why she quit?

A She -- | told her that | didn't
t hi nk that she was succeedi ng as scheduler. |

wanted to nove her into a different role. She
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could stay in the chanber, she could go to the
canpai gn, she could go to an agency, but that
it was tinme to have a new scheduler. And she
made the decision to seek outside enpl oynent.

Q Were did she end up?

A. | think WWor k. | don't think,
obvi ously, that she's -- she was working with
my friend | | don't renenber
where she went. | thought it was WeWrk, but
t he expression on your face leads ne to
bel i eve ot herw se.

Q That was that expression. But
she went to a private enpl oyer?

A Yes.

Q Did you have any contact with her

private enpl oyer?

A No.

Q Did you tell her she shouldn't
go?

A. | told her | really wanted her to
go to the canpaign. | |ove Annabel. She's

like a little sister. And | wanted to keep
her in the famly, and just because the
scheduling role didn't work out, | didn't want

her to interpret that to nean that she needed
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to | eave.
| wanted to keep her ar
sonehow, but that's not what she was

interested in.

ound

Q Sorry, | think you said -- you

just said, "keep her in the famly."
you nmean by that?

A. Just |ike, you know, I

What did

have,

like, alittle core group of staff people

that, like, |I consider like little brothers,
little sisters. And she's like alittle
sister.

Q Who el se would you put in that
category?

A Dani Lever.

Q Anyone el se?

A Peter A em an.

Q Anyone el se?

A. | mean, over the years, sure.
But those are the ones that, |ike, conme to
m nd of the nost recent.

Q Sure. Over the years, who el se

has been in that group?

]

Q Anyone el se?
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A I
Q Anyone el se?

A IS I

Q Anyone el se?

A That's all | can think of off the

top of ny head.

Q And so just to be clear, this is
a group of people that you think of as, sort
of, part of a famly. Like, you think of them

like little brothers or little sisters?

A Yeah.

Q Are all these peopl e younger than
you?

A Yes.

Q And if you're part of this group
of people, so what do you do to support this
group of people?

A |"ve tried to nentor them over
the years, give them advice about their career

trajectory, personal relationships.

Q Anyt hi ng el se?
A No.
Q Have you ever tried to | eave the

executive chanber or thought about |eaving?

A. For, like, five mnutes after the
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canpaign in 2014 but it was fleeting. And
right now I' m considering ny options.
Q Who did you talk to in 2014 about

your fleeting idea of maybe | eavi ng?

A | think Joe at the tine.
Q Joe Percoco?

A Yeah.

Q Anyone el se?

A | think the governor.

Q And tell us about the
conversation with the governor.

A. It wasn't -- it wasn't, like, a
menor abl e conversation. | think at the tine
B had just left -- ny husband had j ust
| eft. He had gone to the canpaign, and he had
deci ded he wasn't com ng back, and then | was
trying to deci de whether or not | should go or
st ay.

And | think both Joe and the
governor said, "You have so nuch growng to
do, you know, you should stay and continue to
be in public service.” But it was never,

i ke, a real conversation.
Q Did you talk to anybody el se

about potentially leaving in 20147




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P PR R R R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

A1 think, like, D
Q  And who's |

A. A friend of mne who is in public
rel ations.

Q Were you considering going to
work wi th |-

A. He offers ne a job once every six

mont hs. You know, it's |ike one of those

peopl e t hat

Q And had he offered you a job in
20147

A. | think he was, |ike, when the

time is right, you know, which is the sane

thing he says to when | see him |ike, two

weeks ago.

Q Two weeks ago did he offer you a
j ob?

A. No. |'mbeing facetious, |'m
sorry.

Q Any ot her occasions in which

you' ve consi dered | eaving the executive
chanber ?

A. No. | thought about going over
to the canpaign in 2018 but ultinmately deci ded

not to.
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Q And why not ?

A agreed to do the
reelect, and so there -- it wasn't -- they
didn't need both of us.

Q Any ot her occasions in which

you' ve consi dered | eaving the executive

chanber ?
A No.
Q You said you're exploring your

options right now \Wat did you nean by that?
A. There's possibility, given where
we are in the election calendar, that | would
go work on the reelect or pull together the
coordinated effort for denocrats statew de,

which is, sort of, the sane conversation we

had in 2018.
Q | see. \Wen took the
rol e?
A Yeah.
Q So it would be that role?
A Maybe or sone hybrid of --

was really focused on the canpaign. This
woul d be nore gl obal .
Q And who are you tal king to about

t hat ?
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A ' ve had sone conversations wth
t he governor about it.

Q Tell us about those
conversati ons.

A Literally just that. W're at
the point in the cal endar where we have to
t hi nk about the political apparatus and who's
going to run that. And we've got a bunch of
congressional -- | nean, Nancy Pelosi is
hol ding on to the majority by four seats. W
can't afford to | ose any of the congressional
seats. W should try to shore up a couple.

And so we've had very prelimnary

conversations around that.

Q When does that decision have to
be made?

A There's no deadl i ne.

Q When is that decision normally
made?

A. It depends on the year. | think

it'"s going to be a really tough year

politically next year, with crinme rising and

wi th, you know -- everything is now so
controll ed by denocrats. | think there's,
like, a swng -- nore center that we have to

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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consi der.

So | would think that we shoul d
be getting sonething up and runni ng sooner
rather than |l ater.

Q. Wien BN t ook the role,
when was she appoi nted or announced to that
rol e?

A She cane in -- she did just the
reelect. But she canme in -- | want to say it
was sonething |ike February or March. But at
that point the primary cal endar was different.
The primaries took place in Septenber. W've
si nce changed the law, and they take place in
June. So everything, |ike, bunps back.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Wiy don't we

go off the record.

THE VI DEOGRAPHER: The tine is

12: 07 p.m This concludes Media 3. Of

t he record.

(Lunch recess taken from

12:07 p.m to 1:01 p.m)

(Continued on the next page.)
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AFTERNOON SESSI ON

(Tinme noted: 1:01 p.m)
THE VI DEOGRAPHER: The tine is

1:01 p.m This begins Media 4. On the

record.

MELI SSA DEROSA resuned and
testified further as follows:

CONTI NUED EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. KENNEDY PARK:

Q Let's shift the focus of our
conversation a little bit and tal k about sone
specific people. GCkay. Do you know who
Li ndsey Boyl an is?

A Yes.

Q Okay. When did you first neet
Ms. Boyl an?

A. | don't renenber specifically but

sonetinme | would say 2016i sh, 2017i sh.

Q And when you net her, what was
her rol e?
A. Chief of staff to Howard Zensky,

who was the CEO of Enpire State Devel opnent

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Cor por ati on.

Q Can we call Enpire State
Devel opnent Cor porati on ESDC?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Geat. And do you
remenber the first tinme you net her?

A. | don't specifically.

Q kay. And when she was the chief
of staff to Howard Zensky in his role at ESDC,
how often did you interact with her?

A. Not frequently. She would cone
to -- on sone trips. She would be in sone
group neetings.

But | didn't ever focus that
heavily on econom c devel opnment as a portfolio
of mne, like, in the division of |abor and
senior staff. That nore went to the budget
director. So | wasn't -- | didn't interact
with her a ton.

There were many nore people on
t he second floor who interacted with her nore.

Q Who are the people that
interacted with Ms. Boyl an nore?

A. | would say Jill DesRosiers,

Annabel , Rob mainly. Because, you know, she
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woul d be involved in projects and events. So
she woul d conme to briefings with the governor
about what those projects or events were.
Soneti nes she would cone to
events. And so it was, sort of, |like, the
events side of the world, like, nore of the

| ogi stics, or, like, Robert Miujica who did the

fi nances.
Q Ckay. So Lindsey's interactions
were nore with Jill and Annabel on the event

side or on the briefing side, and then with
M. Mijica on the, sort of, policy economcs
si de?

A That's correct.

Q And 2016 and 2017, was budget
part of your portfolio?

A Everyone works on the budget.

But Robert is the point person. In 2016, |

was chief of staff, and then 2017, | was --
after the budget, | becane secretary.
Q And you said she went on trips.

What kind of trips did Ms. Boylan go on?
A. Econom ¢ devel opnent
announcenents. W traditionally have rel evant

comm ssioners and their senior staff attend
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announcenents. And they're generally part of
briefing the governor beforehand, and then
wor king with the press office on the back end
to answer any questions fromthe nedia.

Q Were you ever present when
Ms. Boyl an briefed the governor on one of
t hose events?

A ["'msure that | was. | don't
have any specific recollection, but |I'msure
that | was.

Q kay. You have no nenory of what
happened during that briefing or how they
i nteracted?

A. No, not a specific nmenory.

Q Did there cone a tinme when you
had nore interaction with Ms. Boyl an?

A When she transitioned over to the
second fl oor.

Q kay. And how did it cone about
that she transitioned over to the second
floor?

A. W needed sonebody on the second
fl oor who could be nore focused on econom c
devel opnent, and she was seem ngly very

conpetent. And it seened like it would be a
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good fit.

She cane over to be dep sec,
which was a little bit tricky because
technically a dep sec is then the boss of the
comm ssioners that are under their portfolio.

So it was a little bit strange
because she's going frombeing chief of staff
to Howard Zensky to them being technically his
boss.

But we thought that she would be
a good fit, so she becane dep sec for economc
devel opnent, and | think we al so gave her a
title of senior advisor to the governor, which
i s sonet hing she had want ed.

Q Was the dep sec for economc
devel opnent a role that was created, or did

t hat exi st beforehand?

A It existed.

Q And who filled that role?

A. Li ndsey.

Q Bef ore Li ndsey?

A O, | think |GG 'ich

| woul d never have renmenbered except that you
mentioned himearlier.

Q And you sai d she becane dep
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secretary and you said senior advisor to the

gover nor ?
A Yeah.
Q | think you said that was a title

she want ed?

A | believe so, yes.

Q kay. And what's your
under st andi ng of why she wanted that title?

A. | think that it projects that
you' re doing nore than just that portfolio.
know t hat she had an interest in |earning
about and being involved in nore than just
econom ¢ devel opnent.

And it wasn't an unconmon thing.

We have a nunber of people who have the title
seni or advi sor.

Q Is it simlar to when you had
your title of strategic advisor?

A. | think so. [It's conparable.

Q And you said, "we" decided she
woul d cone over. \Who's the "we"?

A. W had the opening. So we had to
fill it. 1 think -- | believe that it was ne

in consultation with Jill and | S

who at the tinme was state operations director,
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and the governor.

Q And what do you renenber the
governor saying about filling that role, the
role left by |G-

A | don't renenber anything
specific, but he, | think, also believed that
she was conpetent and strong and woul d be a
good fit.

Q Are you aware if the governor had
any conversations with Ms. Boylan in advance
of her taking the position?

A | am aware that he tal ked to her
about comng to the floor.

Q kay. And how did you becone
aware of that?

A Because he tol d ne.

Q Ckay. And what did he tell you?

A Not hi ng specific nore than, "I
spoke to Lindsey, she's open to the role. |
t hink she'd be great."

Q So this was around the tinme she
was bei ng considered for the role?

A Yeah.

Q And do you renenber anything el se

he said about the conversation with Lindsey?
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A Not hi ng specific.

Q Do you renenber the governor ever
telling you that Lindsey Boylan had conveyed
t hat she thought you didn't |ike her, and that
made her worried about taking the position?

A No.

Q Anything |ike that the governor
said to you?

A No.

Q Any conversations the governor
had with you about concerns Ms. Boyl an had
about taking the position in the executive
chanber ?

A No, other than the trickiness
around Howar d.

Q Any concerns, other than the
trickiness around Howard, that M. Boyl an
rai sed about taking the position in the

executi ve chanber?

A Not with ne.
Q So she took that rol e when?
A January, February 2018 | want to

say, which | only renenber nore specifically
because everything that's conme back up.

Q Just to go back a second, you
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said the governor had a conversation with
Ms. Boyl an about the role that he told you
about .
Was that a one-on-one
conversation?
A. I think so.
Q And do you know if that

conversation was in person or over the phone?

A. | have no idea.
Q Did you ever ask?
A No.

MR. HECKER: Sorry. Just so the
record is clear, which conversation
one- on-one?

M5. KENNEDY PARK: The
conversation that the governor had with
Ms. Boyl an about taking the role.

Q WAs that in person or was
t hat --

MR. HECKER: Do you know?
Q -- over the phone?

| don't know.

You don't know.

And you never asked anybody

whether it was in person or over the phone?
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A No.
Q kay. So she takes the role in
January, February, sonetine of 2018.
Did you observe her interact with

t he governor?

A Sure.

Q kay. And tell us about what you
observed.

A That she was generally a, like,

conpetent voice in the room There are
certain people that interact with himbetter
than others. |If you speak in an assertive
way, if you're able to answer second questi on,
the third question, the fourth question, you
tend to be nuch nore successful with him
People who are a little bit nore

meek or unsure of thenselves or don't have
that information don't succeed as well. And |
remenber being in briefings with her where
qguestions would conme up about specific
projects, and | renmenber thinking, |ike, she
can handl e these questions.

Q And why were you involved in
those briefings? |If it's, sort of, her area

is under your portfolio, why do you end up in
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the briefings?

A Soneti mes when we're getting
ready to do an event, you'll go through the
whole day. So it'll be, like, prep for
Thursday, pull everyone in that has sone piece
of Thur sday.

And so he'll run through, you
know, neeting by neeting, and then the person
who has to be in the roomhas to answer the
substance. You have, |ike, the substance
person, the |ogistics person.

And sonetinmes | would work on
t hi ngs that she was involved in, just not
predom nantly.

Q QO her than the interactions in
whi ch you observed her briefing the governor,
did you observe any other interactions between
her and t he governor?

A. Not really.

Q Did you observe her and the
governor ever touch?

A No. | nean, it wouldn't be a
crazy thing if he hugged her because he's
sonmeone who hugs people in the office. But

not hi ng specific that stands out.
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Q Did you ever observe hi m hug
Li ndsey Boyl an?

A. | can't specifically recall, but
| wouldn't be surprised.

Q Al right. But you don't

remenber it happening --

A No.

Q -- yes or no?

A No.

Q kay. And did you ever observe

t he governor yell at M. Boyl an?

A There was one call that | was on.
| don't renenber if she was in the roomor on
the phone. | wouldn't say it was yelling, but
he was stern with her.

Q kay. And what was that call
about ?

A | think it was about an
MIA-rel ated project.

Q And what happened?

A She didn't have the answers to
t he questions that he was asking.

Q And what did he do?

A | think he said, "Everybody go

back and get your act together before you cone
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talk to ne again."
Q I s that sonething out of the norm

for the governor?

A No.

Q And what happened after that with
Ms. Boyl an?

A. | don't renenber anyt hing

remar kabl e i nmedi ately foll ow ng that.
Q You were present for that?
A Again, | don't renenber if it was

on the phone or in the room

Q But you overheard it?
A Yes.
Q Did she ever speak to you about

t hat occasi on?

A No.

Q Did she ever speak to you about
any occasion or any issues or concerns she had
about her interactions with the governor?

A No.

Q Did she ever speak to you or
rai se any concerns she had about her
interactions with anyone in the executive
chanber ?

A. No, not that | can recall -- oh,
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Q And what did Ms. Boylan raise to
you about |
A. It was bizarre. W were on the

second floor of the Capitol in Al bany, and
sonet hi ng happened between the two of themin
the hallway. And Lindsey cane to ny office
and said, "I'"'mnot dealing with that little
shit anynore. He is so disrespectful. | just
asked him for sonething, and he snapped at

me. "

Q And what happened after that?

A | called NN | nto ny
of fice.

Q And what happened?

A. | took her side, like, with the
perspective that that wouldn't be an unconmon
thing that |l -- how |l vwoul d behave.
| was perhaps not the best manager in that
nmonment and didn't ask hi m questions.

| assuned that what she told ne
was correct. And | said to him "You can't
speak to Lindsey that way. |It's unacceptable.
She's a senior person in this office. She is

soneone who i s above you."
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And he started saying to ne, "She
went il on nme. | did not say anything to
her. | literally just wal ked by and said,

"Hi, Lindsey,' and she started scream ng at ne
like a |l 't s not fair that you're
assum ng that what she said was correct."”

Q And how did you resol ve that
situation?

A | apol ogi zed to |} f or not
hearing himout first, and | said that | would
go back and talk to Lindsey, and that | wanted
the two of themto be respectful to one
anot her, and that there shouldn't be a
situation where people are yelling at each
ot her in the hall way.

And then | went back to Lindsey
and | said to Lindsey, "|Jjllll says that
sonet hing different happened,” and she was
very defensive. And it was alnbst a situation
of, like, agree to disagree. Like, the tw of
them their versions of the story could not
have been nore bl ack and white.

And the ultimte outcone in both
of their conversations with ne was |i ke, we

have to nove forward. Watever it i s that
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happened here, like, we're all adults, and we
have to nove forward and we have to be
respectful .

Q Was it an isol ated incident
havi ng two senior nenbers of the governor's
staff yelling at each other?

A. Li ke that, yes.

Q And what made that different than

ot her occasi ons?

A. | woul dn't say people yell at
each other, and like, there -- it's a very
hi gh-stress environnent. |It's very

hi gh- pressure jobs. People go through I ong
periods of tinme where they don't get a | ot of
sl eep.

There are tines when peopl e can
be short with one another or be stern with one
another or raise their voice. But it's not
comon that you woul d just see two adults
scream ng at each other in the hallway of the
second floor of the Capitol wth absolutely no
basi s.

Li ke, that was a very -- the fact
that I|'mrenenbering that is, |like, that was a

very specific thing.
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Q What about scream ng at each
other in their offices? |Is that an occurrence
that you've seen in the executive chanber?

A. Early on in ny tenure.

Q And who was involved in those

occasi ons?

A. Joe and Larry, Howard and Joe.
Q Anyone el se?
A. Those are the people that |

recall nost specifically.

Q Have you ever screanmed at anyone
in the executive chanber?

A. | don't think I scream at peopl e.
| certainly have raised ny voi ce.

Q And who have you raised your

voi ce at?

A Rich Azzopardi, Howard Zucker,
B | ean, | don't viewit as
yelling. | get animated, | get short with

peopl e sonetines, but it's not |ike gratuitous
scream ng for the sake of scream ng.

Q And on the occasion that G
and Ms. Boyl an were engaged in the hallway,
you thought that was gratuitous scream ng?

A. It was nonsensical. There was no
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basis for an argunment. There was no -- it was
just two people were scream ng at each other
in the hallway.

Q Ckay. And so the line you're
drawing i s between, sort of, it doesn't nmake
sense to be scream ng versus we're having sone
sort of legitinmate di sagreenent --

A Policy -- sorry -- | don't mean
to speak over you.

Q It's okay. A legitimte
di sagreenent about sonething, and then that's
okay to raise our voices about that?

A. l'"mnot saying it's ever okay to
rai se your voice, but I, in nm mnd,
differentiate between if you're having a
di sagreenent over a policy or if
you're -- sonmething is going on and you're
attenpting to hold soneone accountable for,
you know, a subject nmatter, versus just

grat ui tous eruption.

Q Have you ever had a gratuitous
eruption?

A. VWll, | guess that's in the eye
of the beholder. | don't think so.

Q Has anyone ever told you that
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t hey thought that you had erupted at thenf
A Not -- no.
Q Anyone ever told you that they

t hought you had treated them di srespectfully?

A Li ndsey Boyl an.
Q Anyone ot her than Ms. Boyl an?
A. | think Kelly Cumm ngs on one

occasi on. | think _ on one

occasi on. No one else | can recall
specifically.
Q Have you ever had soneone nentor

you about your managenent style?

A Yes.

Q Who?

A I I
| nmean, like lots of nentors over the years.

Q And on what occasion -- well,

what occasi on | rentored you on your

managenent style?

A There were instances where he
t hought that people were too siloed and that
it would be beneficial to do nore than just
the 9 a.m norning neeting, to do |unch
neeti ngs once every three days.

He thought that on -- you know,
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if we didn't have to be working 24 hours a

day, perhaps we shouldn't be, like, you know,
you' ve got to let people put fuel in the tank,
you' ve got to | et people unplug every once in

a while, |like those sorts of things.

Q  What about |
A I mean, | vas -- this is

such a digression but she, you know, was the
nost powerful woman in New York politics.
When | was a kid, | |ooked up to her.

She was the one that taught ne,
sort of, the opposite of those things, which
is like, 24 hours a day, you sleep with the
Bl ackBerry next to your head. Like, if you
get an e-mail, within five mnutes you
respond.

As a woman in this business, you
are always going to be held to a higher
standard. You have to work harder. You have
to know nore.

Q Did anyone in the executive
chanber ever offer you nentorship or coaching
about your nmnagenent style?

A No.

Q Did Jill DesRosiers ever speak to
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you about the way you treated anyone in the
executive chanber?

A. Jill would give ne feedback.

Q Let's tal k about this feedback
What ki nd of feedback did Jill DesRosiers give
you?

A. Jill would say, "I think you're
being a little bit too hard on that person,
i ke. You know, we've got to give themtine
to get roomto run." O, "if that person
doesn't get back to you right away, call ne,
and I'll track down the answer."

| think she understood that |
was a little bit -- | think that Jill thought
that | was a little bit too hands-on and
m cromanagi ng i n sone regards, and so she
sought to put a little bit nore cushion
bet ween ne and sone of the people that she
felt |like that nmanagenent style wouldn't be
effective wth.

Q So who are the people that Jil
was trying to put a cushion between you and
t henf

A. | don't renenber specifically.

Q Do you renenber any specific
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person that Jill canme to speak to about and

gi ve you feedback about?

A | feel like Andrew Ball at one
point. | hate that that nane keeps com ng up,
but, I think, that's it.

Q Anyone el se?

A. It's possible, but not that I

remenber specifically.

Q And let's circle back to Lindsey
Boyl an. You said that there had been -- |
can't remenber your words exactly and | don't
want to scroll through.

But there had been sone negative
interaction wwth Ms. Boylan. Can you tell us
about what happened?

A. Li ndsey, when she cane to the
floor, any tinme that | heard about Lindsey, it
was in the context of Lindsey being a problem
It was | coning to nme and saying,
"I amnot going to work with this wonman
anynore. She treats ny assistants terribly.
She is a bully. She refuses to cone to
nmeetings. "

It was Jim Mal atras, who at the

time wasn't even working for the chanber, but
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| brought himin to help with the State of the
State process. He used to be our state
operations director -- I'msorry, I'mgoing to
speak nore slowy -- and our policy director.

He's sonmeone | lean on a
tremendous anount in terns of his brilliance,
and | brought himover as a favor to help us
wth State of the State. She was really nasty
with him "You re just over here because
you're a man, and | should be | eading these
di scussi ons. "

She just had this natural
tendency to be very aggressive and obnoxi ous
to people, regardless of their station, age;
it didn'"t matter. It was everything fromthe
assistants to the comm ssioners and to her

boss, who was the state operations director,

I
And I as zero ego.

She is just not sonebody who needs to be
recogni zed or acknow edged or praised. She
just really genuinely cared about the
functioning of government. And this was a
constant issue.

And then she al so had a nunber of
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altercations with Annabel and Stephani e and
Jill

Q Can we focus on that interaction
she had wth you?

A Sur e.

Q So what was the interaction she
had with you?

A. | rarely interacted wth her.
There's one interaction with her, which has
been reported, which was in July of 2018.

Jill called ne and she was very upset. |
don't -- let ne stop.

| don't renenber if it was over
t he phone or in person, but | believe she
called nme from I|ike, across the office. She
was sitting in her office.

And there was sone project event
t hat they had been working on, the events
team and Lindsey had gone around the group,

the team directly to the governor

And Jill called ne and said, "I'm
not doing this anynore. It's her or ne.
She's so out of control. She's not a team
pl ayer. She does this all the tinme. |'m not

doing this anynore."

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P P PR R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021

Q Were those Jill's words?

A Pretty -- | nean, | don't -- not
necessarily verbatim but that was the sum and
subst ance.

Q kay. And it was because --
sorry -- Jill's corment that it's her or ne
stemmed from you said, Lindsey had gone
around the team and gone to the governor.

Can you tell us alittle nore
about that? What happened?

A. | don't renenber specifically if
it was a project or an event, but, like, the
way that it works with the governor, the way
it's supposed to work, is that we reach
consensus as a teamand then we go in unified.

If you don't do that, it
doesn't -- it doesn't function. And everyone
has an opportunity to raise their perspectives
or objectives, opinions, but, ultimately, you
conme to a group consensus, and then you're all
together. You don't underm ne one anot her.

And t he whol e system breaks down
when people go directly to himand undermn nes
peopl e, and then, he has a different

expectation or he thinks sonething is ready
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that's not ready. And this was a recurring
thenme wth Lindsey. And Jill had reached her

br eaki ng poi nt.

Q What was the specific incident
that Jill was tal ki ng about?
A. | don't renenber, as | said, if

it was a project or an event. But it was
sonet hi ng where she had gone around.

Q And earlier you told ne there
wer e occasi ons on which people would go
directly to the governor. Right?

A Yes.

Q And that wasn't the preferred
protocol, but it happened. In fact, you did
that. Right?

A. Well, I'"msecretary to the
gover nor.
Q Right? And you said other people

did that to you. R ght?

A Sur e.

Q. Ckay.

A But -- but --

Q Coul d you just pause for a

second? Wat nmade Lindsey's attenpts to speak

to the governor different?
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A Wll, as | said, that was the
exception, not the rule, and it was not the
preferred protocol. And generally, it
happened with people not in the executive
chanmber. It would be a deputy comm ssi oner
sees himin the | obby, and it's there one
opportunity to speak to him

The peopl e inside the chanber,
especi ally, have a synpathy to nmaki ng sure
t hat the whol e team succeeds and maki ng sure
that we're all on the sanme page.

And so, especially, within the
executive chanber, people don't do that. Wth
Li ndsey, it was chronic.

Q Was there any other individual in
t he executive chanber who had broken protocol

the way you are describing Ms. Boylan did?

A Not chronically, no.
Q Anyone ever do it?
A Sure. As | said.

Q Wo else did it?

A. As | said, you know,

occasionally, Rob Mijica. GCccasionally, you
know, the state operations director.

Q Who at the tine was who?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.
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A I ut very rarely.

She was very good about that.

Q kay. And when you say
Ms. Boyl an broke this protocol chronically,
what do you nean by "chronical ly"?

A Exactly what the word neans. She

didit all the tine.

Q Ckay. Al the tine. So, I|ike,
ever day?

A Miultiple tinmes a week.

Q Multiple tinmes a week. Ckay.

Prior to the call in July 2018
fromJill DesRosiers, did you speak to
Ms. Boyl an about your preferred protocol for
reaching -- bringing issues to the governor's
attention?

A When she cane over to the floor,
we tal ked to her -- ne, Al phonso, Jill --
about how we operate as a team and i nteract
with him

Q And what did you tell her?

A That we reach team consensus. We
go to himw th one unified voice. W don't
al ways get our way, but, you know, sonetines

you do, sonetines you don't.
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You stand with the team You
present an idea. |If he calls upon you, of
course, you should answer himdirectly and
gi ve your perspective. But that it didn't --
it wasn't functional for people to go to --
run to himconstantly with i deas and work
outside of the protocol. There's just too
much goi ng on

Q Is that a normal part of the
onboar di ng process for new nenbers of the
executive chanber?

A. Not formally, but when you're
bri ngi ng soneone in to be a part of senior
staff, then yes. Like, | renmenber having that
conversation with ||l en he becane
state operations director.

| renmenber havi ng that
conversation with Dani Lever when she was
first brought in. Like, that was -- you know,
we woul d tal k each other through it. You want
each other to succeed, and so you try to get
everybody going on the right foot.

Q kay. So what happens after Jil
cones to you and says, "It's her or nme"?

A. | called Lindsey.
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Q kay. Tell us about that
conversati on.

A. | don't renenber it exactly, but
as she says it was, | said sonething to the
effect of "Wat the fuck?"

Q kay. You're saying she says
that. But do you renenber --

A She said it to Ronan Farrow. |
don't have specific nenory of --

THE WTNESS: Wat? Well, I'm
just saying --

MR. HECKER: Just answer what you

remenber.

Q Just tell nme what you renenber
A. Oh, okay.

Q What do you renenber?

A | renmenber that | called her and

| was -- and | wanted an answer as to why she
was doi ng this.

Q kay. And what el se do you
remenber about the conversation?

A. | remenber that she responded
screamng, "I don't want to do this anynore,
forget this,"” and hung up the phone.

Q You just imtated her voice. Can

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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you tell me what your voice was |ike on that

call ?
A | think how ! didit.
Q Just, |ike, right now?
A Yeah.
Q Your voice was that |evel?
A No, no, no. I'msure it
was -- |'msure | said, |ike, "Lindsey, what

is wong with you?" Sonething |ike that.

Q Ckay.
A. In, Iike, a stern, you know - -
Q And you' re not disputing that you

m ght have said, "Wat the fuck"?

A ' m not .

Q kay. And then she said -- and
t hen what happens after she says "I'm not
doing this"?

A. She hung up the phone and |
believe |l eft the office for the day.

Q kay. Did you think she was
resi gni ng?

A | don't think I knew. | think
that, like, she was -- she had a tendency to
have out bursts and then cone back the next

day. So | don't think I knew.

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Il was -- it was also in the
m ddl e of the 2018 canpaign. | was, I|ike,
splitting ny tinme between the governor's
office and the canpaign. | was taking a | ot
of personal tinme off.

And so | had very little
bandw dth, and it was -- this was, like, a
constant problem

Q You said she had a tendency to
have outbursts |ike this.

How many ot her outbursts had she
had |ike this where she left and you weren't
sure if she was com ng back?

A | don't know if any of them were
quite like that, but it wasn't uncommon for
her to have an outburst.

Q And when you say "outburst," what
do you nean?

A. Respond to sonebody yelling and
then either, |ike, close her door or |eave for

t he afternoon.

Q Ckay.
A. But not saying, like, "I quit."
Q Right. And on this occasion in

July, she didn't tell you she quit. Right?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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A I don't think so.

Q You just weren't sure if she had
or not?

A. Wll, not | wasn't sure if she
had or not. | wasn't sure what her intention

was after that phone call
Q kay. And are there any other
occasions in which Ms. Boylan had an out bur st
and you weren't sure what her intentions were?
A. Yeah, the day that Al phonso David

confronted her.

Q You' re tal ki ng about in Septenber
of --

A 2018.

Q -- 20187

A Yes.

Q Any ot her occasions in which

Ms. Boyl an had an outburst and you weren't
sure what her intentions were?

A Not specifically.

Q Ckay. So she hangs up and
| eaves. And then what happens?

A. | told Linda, Al phonso, and Jill
about the incident.

Q Ckay. So Linda Lacewel |,

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Al phonso David, and Jill DesRosiers --
A " msorry.
Q It's okay. We'll fill it in
toget her. Ckay.
So what did you tell Linda

Lacewel | ?

A | summari zed her conversati on.

Q You did this over the phone or in
witing?

A. No, | think in person.

Q kay. Wth all three of then?

A. Yeah, we -- the 39th floor of 633

Third Avenue, there's not that nmany offi ces.
So if you're, you know, dealing with sonething
sensitive, typically you, like, huddle in
sonebody's office. It's just wal ki ng, you
know, a couple of feet.
Q Al'l right. Tell us about the
huddl e.
MR. HECKER: Hang on one second.
THE WTNESS: Oh, because
Al phonso?
MR. HECKER: Well, 1'mjust
trying to understand, we're talking

about in -- thisis in 2018?
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M5. KENNEDY PARK: July 2018.

MR. HECKER: | had under st ood
that the executive chanber was asserting
privilege over that discussion with
counsel .

If I"'mwong, |'mhappy to
correct the --

M5. KENNEDY PARK: They' ve
produced text nessages between you and
Ms. Lacewell and Ms. DesRosiers about

this incident, and M. David. So ...

MR HECKER: |I'mfine with
bei ng -- asking her about those,
obviously. | just -- I'"'mnot the one

drawing the lines. So | don't want to
get her crosswi se with the decisions the
chanber's nmade about privil ege.
M5. KENNEDY PARK: Ckay. So for
t hat conversation, you're going to
I nstruct her not to answer on the
grounds of executive chanber privilege?
MR. HECKER: |'m happy to take a
break and called Mtra Hornozi or Paul
Fishman. | --

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Let's not do

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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t hat .

MR HECKER  Ckay.
BY MS. KENNEDY PARK:

Q So after the privileged
conversation that you had with Ms. Lacewel |,
M. David, and Ms. DesRosiers, what happens
next ?

A | sent Lindsey a text nessage and
said sonething to the effect of, you know,
"I"'msorry that it was a tough conversati on.
| hope to see you back tonorrow. Fighting to

make New York a better place, and if you need

me, |'mhere.”
Q Were you sorry?
MR HECKER: Were you -- |'m
sorry?
Q Were you sorry?
A. | was sorry that it was so
heat ed.
Q And t hen what happens after that?
A She responded in a text nessage

t hat ni ght, responding essentially, "I
don't" -- you know, "I don't m nd tough days.
| can't handl e conversations |like that."

And | -- sorry. | should wait

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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for you to ask another question.

Q What happens next?

A. | didn't respond because | didn't
think it would be productive.

Q Did you have an understandi ng as

to whether Ms. Lacewel |l reached out to

Ms. Boyl an?
A. The next day.
Q And do you have an under st andi ng

as to whether M. David reached out to
Ms. Boyl an?

A | think Al phonso tal ked to her
the sane day that | spoke to her.

Q Any understanding if
Ms. DesRosiers spoke to her?

A. It's ny understanding Jill and
Li ndsey had a conversation first, and that's
what pronpted Jill to call me and why | then

cal | ed Li ndsey.

Q After you called Lindsey, did
Jill have a conversation with Ms. Boyl an?
A. Not that -- | don't know |

don't think that day.
Q After that day?

A. | -- well, she cane back to work.
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So everyone tal ked to her again at sone point.

But Linda was the one who had a conversation

wth her after the incident -- after that
i nci dent .
Q And what do you know about the

conversation between Ms. Lacewell and
Ms. Boyl an?

A. I don't know anything specific,
just that Linda said, you know, "You're an
i mportant part of the team W all need to
wor k together."™ You know, "I hope that you're
part of the team" sonething |ike that.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Can | ask a
guestion? So the chanber is not
asserting privilege over the --

MR. HECKER: | don't know.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: -- discussion
bet ween Ms. Lacewel | and Ms. Boyl an, but
they are asserting privilege over the
di scussi on between Ms. Lacewell and Ms.
DeRosa?

MR. HECKER  Say that again, the
first -- the --

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Ckay. So we

just asserted privilege over the
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conversation with Ms. DeRosa that was
had by Ms. Lacewell and M. David.
Ri ght ?

MR. HECKER: That she was
listening in on. That she was --

M5. KENNEDY PARK: That she was
present for. Right?

MR. HECKER: Yeah.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: And now we're
tal ki ng about a conversation that
Ms. Lacewell had with Ms. Boyl an, but
t he chanber has not directed you to
assert privilege over that?

MR. HECKER: You nmean between
Lacewel | and --

M5. KENNEDY PARK:  No.

Ms. Lacewel |l and Ms. Boyl an.

MR. HECKER. Well, | don't know
whet her they're asserting privil ege over
t hat conversation, but she's not init.
So ...

M5. KENNEDY PARK: They're
not -- she's going to tell nme now what
j ust happened in the conversation, but

t he executive chanber hasn't instructed

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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you to assert privilege over it?

MR. HECKER: Do you know?

| don't know the answer to that.
| don't have clear instruction on it, so
| just don't know.

THE WTNESS: Can | be hel pful ?

MR HECKER: No.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Not on the
record.

MR. HECKER: No. W can take a
mnute if you want.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Wy don't you
take a mnute. R ght? Wy don't we go
of f the record.

THE VI DEOCGRAPHER: The tine is
1:34 p.m This concludes Media 4. Of
t he record.

(Recess taken from1:34 p.m to
1:41 p.m)

THE VI DEOGRAPHER: The tine is
1:41 p.m This begins Media 5. On the

record.

BY Ms. KENNEDY PARK:

Q | think where we left off is:

What was your understandi ng of the

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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conversation that Ms. Lacewel|l had wth

Ms. Boyl an?

A. | don't have a specific nenory,
but |'ve seen the texts. And, | nean, the
texts, | think, are self-explanatory in that
she says, "I spoke to her. | don't know if
she' |l be back, but we'll see.”

Q Do you have a nenory of that

separate fromthe text nessages?

A No.

Q kay. And how did the -- and
t hen how did the situation resol ve?

A She canme back.

Q And was there any di scussion
after she cane back about that incident?

A Not that | recall

Q Was there any

suggesting -- suggestion that Ms. Boyl an get

coachi ng?
A. No, | don't -- not that | recall
Q Was there any suggestion that she

get counseling?
A. W had an ongoi ng conversati on
wi th Al phonso about the fact that this kept

happening and that it all, sort of, cane to a
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head i n Septenber, which is when she was
getting counsel ed.

Q So prior to July of 2018, you're
saying that there had been conversations about
getting Ms. Boyl an counseling?

A. About, like, this is not
stopping; in fact, it's only getting worse and
nore w despread behavior, and we need to do
sonet hi ng about this.

But, | nean, unfortunately, and
this is not a great hunman resources answer,
but in a world where there's, like, a mllion
things going on, it's, like, you'll have that
conversation and then unfortunately not follow
up.

And it wasn't until Septenber
when ESD actual |y asked that she be renoved
fromthe floor and fromthe payroll because of
her treatnent of subordinates on the floor;
that they cane with that formal request, made
a formal conplaint.

There were a nunber of --

Q Way don't you pause just for a
second?

A Sorry.
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© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P P PR R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Mel i ssa DeRosa Highly Confidentia
July 05, 2021

Q So the question was: Prior to
July of 2018, was there any counseling that
was provided to Ms. Boyl an?

A. No, not that | know of.

Q Ckay. But there were -- you said
t here were di scussions about providing her
counsel i ng?

A | think in the summer. | don't
t hi nk about earlier -- | don't earlier than
t hat conversation that | had with her.

Q So you think after July 2018
there were di scussi ons about counseling for
her ?

A Yeah. | just remenber in the
run-up to the ultinmate Septenber parting of
ways that there were conversations, that it
was -- this was not -- it wouldn't be
tolerable in the long run. W had to figure
this out.

Q But that counseling did not occur

bet ween July 2018 and Septenber 20187

A | don't know if Al phonso had
i ndependent conversations with her. | don't
know.

Q Ckay. But to your know edge --
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A. But not that | recall.

Q To your know edge, no counseling
occurred?

A. Not that | recall

Q Ckay. Can you recall anyone el se
inthe -- |1 think we covered this earlier, but
remnd me. -- anyone else in the executive

chanmber who had recei ved counsel i ng?

A IS BN Those
are the two | renmenber off the top of ny head.
But I'm sure there are nore.

Q  Gkay. And . Vhat did

he do that resulted in counseling?

A B /o used to work for
us, conpl ai ned about his treatnent of her, and
so he was formally counsel ed.

Q And when you say -- we're tal king
about counseling. Let's make sure we have the
same definition.

When you' re saying "counseling,"
what do you nean?

A | mean that Al phonso and one
ot her person, generally Cam |l e Varl ack or
whonever the ethics officer is at the tineg,

woul d sit soneone down, go through conplaints
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that are nade agai nst them whil e obviously
protecting conplainants' nanes, and their
behavior in the office, review what
their -- how they are supposed to be behavi ng
per the handbook, and advi se them on how
t hi ngs needed to change novi ng forward.

Q And did M. | counseling
result in himleaving the executive chanber?

A No.

Q What happened with hinf

A He understood that how he behaved
t owar dsjjjjij was not acceptable, and from ny
under st andi ng, he changed hi s behavi or towards
her .

Q And who di d [IIIEIENEGEGEE
counsel i ng?

A. | believe Al phonso and Judy at
di fferent points.

Q Anyone el se you can renenber
getting counseling?

A. Those are the only ones | can
remenber off the top of ny head. |'msorry.

Q And Il counseling, did
that directly result in himleaving the

executi ve chanber?
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A No. | think that NN
finally understood that | ] veos -- it

wasn't going to work and it was tine to find
sonet hi ng new.
Q So if nmy understanding is right,

t hat the purpose of the counsel is to --

A | nprove your --

Q -- get soneone to change their
behavi or ?

A Yes.

Q | nprove their behavior?

A Yes.

Q So their behavior is consistent

with the handbook?

A Yes.

Q It's not a "You're getting fired"
nessage”?

A Correct.

Q | got you. Al right. So why

don't we |ook at what's Tab 4 in your binder.
A. These are very intense binders.
Q Al right. So thisis -- if I'm

right, what you're looking at is a series of

t ext nmessages between you, Jill DesRosiers,

Al phonso David, and Linda Lacewell, from
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July 26, 2018. Is that right?

A.
Q

you send.

Correct.
And there's an attachnent that

And that attachnent appears to be

what's on page 2, which is a snapshot or

screenshot of a text nessage between you and

Li ndsey Boyl an.

A.
Q

Is that right?
Correct.

Is this a text nessage between

you and Ms. Boylan you were referring to

earlier?

A
Q

Yes.

Wher e she says:

“I don't mnd tough days at all"?
Yes.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Ch, yeah,

let's mark this as the next exhibit.

(Exhi bit 8, Text nessages between

Mel i ssa DeRosa, Jill DesRosiers,

Al phonso David, and Linda Lacewell from

July 26, 2018, marked for

identification, as of this date.)

Q

wites:

And then the next day, M. Boyl an
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"I'"'mnot sure why Al phonso
couldn't pick up the phone or ask ne
hinmsel f. Wat | said and why | was
asking him Al phonso, to join the
neeting. That's not a team That's
ei ther because he is afraid of ne or
doesn't respect ne."

Do you have an understandi ng of

what she's referring to there?

A No.
Q You said that the interaction
with Jill was about disregarding protocol.

What was Al phonso David's role in

t hat protocol ?

A. | don't renenber. | don't
remenber -- |'ve seen this exchange in the
| ead-in to this interview | don't renenber

specifically.
Q kay. Do you renenber generally
what the issue was with M. David?
A No.
Q kay. And then she says:
"This is after | had al ready been
read the riot act by Jill."

Do you have an understandi ng what
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she neant by being read the riot act by Jill?

A. | think, and, like, |ooking at
this and refreshing ny nenory, it's what |
said earlier, which is | think that ny

conversation cane after the conversation Jill

had with her.
Q kay. And that she was
interpreting her conversation wth Jill as

havi ng been read the riot act?
A Yes.
Q kay. And then M. David wote

back in the next set of texts on the next

page:
"I"mnot doing this. She is
certifiably jjjjjl. #One day it is one
person, the next day it is soneone
el se.”
Do you renenber that?
A |"ve seen this so -- in that
cont ext .
Q Do you have any i ndependent --

MR. HECKER: Sorry. The

guestions she's aski ng about your neno

ry

are going to be, like, your nenory, not

just do you renenber seeing this text

in
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prep. That's not the question.
MS5. KENNEDY PARK: | don't want

to know about what you saw with your

| awyer.
A Ckay. So no.
Q kay. Do you renenber any

conversations with M. David about M. Boyl an
bei ng one day one person and the next day
sonmeone el se?

A. This was a constant dial ogue. |
don't renmenber a specific conversation with
Al phonso in the lead into Septenber, but this
was a constant refrain.

Q I"mtrying to understand. This
was a constant refrain before July 26, 20187

A. Yes, it started earlier.

Q kay. And so the discussion
about potentially giving her counseling
started before July 20187

A. No, | don't -- | don't renmenber
specifically when we tal ked about "counseling
her." But | don't think it was before July.
But Al phonso nmay have a different
recol | ection.

Q kay. If you flip through on the
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26th -- let's see. On the bottomit says
-4837. Ms. Lacewel| says that "She didn't say
it's over."

This is after Ms. Lacewell has a
conversation with Ms. Boylan. Wat did you
understand Ms. Lacewell to nmean by "She didn't
say it's over"?

A. What | said before, that it
wasn't necessarily that she was | eaving.

Q What did -- what did Ms. Boyl an
say to you was her perspective on this issue
of breachi ng protocol ?

A The conversation she and |I had
was very short. We didn't talk about it
agai n.

Q You never spoke again about the
i ssue of protocol for contacting the governor
with Ms. Boyl an?

A. Not based on ny recollection, no.

Q Did anyone el se between July of
2018 and Septenber of 2018, to your know edge,
have a conversation wth Ms. Boyl an about the
protocol for contacting the governor?

A Rob tal ked to her a | ot about it.

Q Ckay. And what do you know about

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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t he conversations between M. Mijica and
Ms. Boyl an about the protocol for contacting
t he governor?

A. Li ndsey and Rob had a very
friendly relationship, and | think that he was
trying to coach her to be successful and not
take things so personally. She would pin the
governor or call the governor and say, "I have
this idea for this project.”

And the governor woul d say,
"Great, run that by Rob and | N

And then she would go to Rob and
say, "Wat does he think, |I'mstupid? You
know, this is so insulting. | have to go run
it by you and | lNEE

And Rob woul d say, "Lindsey,
we -- nobody just runs the governor things.

We talk these things through. Like, it
shouldn't be insulting to you that he's asking
you to talk to ne about a project.

"I have 25 years of experience in
this area. [} i s the head of devel opnent
for the MTA. And he wants us to all be a team
and talk to each other about these things."

And | know that, you know, she




© o0 N o o A w N PP

N NN N NN R PR R R R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O o0 M W N P O

woul d constantly run to Rob and, you know,
conpl ain or vent about her frustrations on
t hese things, and that he would try to give
her positive feedback to inprove. | think
that they've had a friendly rel ati onshi p.

Q And in the conversations that you
under stand were had between M. Mijica and
Ms. Boyl an, what did she say was her
perspective on why she was going directly to
t he governor?

A. She was just offended that she
didn't have that direct |line, that she felt
i ke she should be able to go directly to him
and that if she didn't, it's because she was
bei ng di srespected in sone way.

Q Ckay. Did she ever say that she
felt that other people had a direct line to
hi m and t hat she shoul d al so?

A | don't know.

Q Do you know anyt hi ng el se about
what Ms. Boyl an said was her perspective to
M. Mijica?

A No, | nean, | know that she told
Rob that she i Annabel and Stephani e and
Jill, that she thought | was a [jjjij. that |
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had . -nd that she felt like

she was being "discluded" fromthings that she
shoul d be in charge of because she had nore
talent in her pinky than everyone in the
bui | di ng.

Q Are those all quotes you're
offering us fromM. Mijica that he said
Ms. Boyl an sai d?

A. The Annabel, Stephanie, Jill,

yes. The NN and . YeS

and | believe she put it in witing. And the

part about nore talent in her pinky, | think
she expressed to | '~ witing.
Q And when did you | earn about

t hese things?

A. Wth Rob, | |earned about them
after the fact, in March of |ast year when she
sent her threatening text nmessage to him

Wth the |l ore
talent in ny pinky, at the tinme, because that
was, sort of, |l breaki ng point when she
came to me and said, "Her or ne. |'m not
doing this anynore."

Q Sorry. Wen you say you | earned

about all the things about Annabel, about Dani
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Lever, about Stephanie Benton, about the ||l
comment, and | comment, and about
her conpl ai ni ng about bei ng excl uded, those
were in March of 20207

A Correct.

Q kay. And that the talent in the

pi nky was when?

A. It was in an e-mail that Lindsey
wote to | |  Septenber of 2018.
Q And when was the last tine you

saw that e-mail?

A. I n preparation for today.

MR. HECKER: You're tal ki ng about
outside of prep? I'mnot -- |ook, did
you have a recollection of having seen
that at the tinme?

THE WTNESS: It was a pretty
unforgettable e-mail.

MR HECKER  Ckay.
Q And you said I 2 d

it was either her or Ms. Boyl an?

A She -- yes.
Q When was t hat ?
A. In sum and subst ance. I n

Sept enber of 2018. She sent ne a series of
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e-mails where |l assi stant had inquired
as to the location of the dep secs, because
there was going to be a storm and that's a
traditional thing that the state operations
director does, figure out where all the

comm ssioners are, figure out where all the
dep secs are, so you can depl oy assets and
resources around the state.

Li ndsey responded, essentially
sayi ng, "How dare you ask where I'mgoing to
be, and if this governor or senior staff need
to get ne, they can get ne whenever they want.
They have ny phone nunbers."

And t hen separately, she refused
to get on State of the State calls that |l
and her deputy, | Vcre running
because she felt it was a waste of her tine
and beneath her if she wasn't involved in
conversations with |l and Jim
Mal atras, because they were really the
deci si on nakers, and that she wasn't going to
participate in anything with her anynore.

And Il i nal |y reached a point
where she started forwarding ne these e-mails

and was like, "Melissa, |I'mnot doing this
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anynore. |I'mnot doing this with her. Like,

ei ther she goes or | go.

And at this point, again, this

was, like, right around the tinme of the
primary in 2018. | was taking a lot of tine
of f working on the canpaign, and it was, |ike,

any tine that | was getting any outreach,
|i ke, that there were issues in the office, it
al ways seened to be associated with Lindsey.
Q And what did you do after
V. I outreach?
A | forwarded the e-mails to
Al phonso.
Q And what did you ask himto do?

A | said, "Please create a file for
Li ndsey. "

Q It sounds |ike you renenber that
e-mail, so why don't we pull it up.

A Sur e.

Q Tab 165.

(Exhibit 9, E-mails including
e-mai | from Lindsey Boylan to |
I " ked for

Identification, as of this date.)

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Let's mark
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this as the next Exhibit.

Q The bottom-- the very bottomis

an e-nmail from Li ndsey Boylan to | N NEEEGE
e

And then there's an e-mail from |jjjjjjijit o you,
Ms. Lacewell, and Ms. DesRosiers that says:
"I amsick and tired of the way
she treats people.”
Is this the e-nmail you were
referring to?

A. One of, yeah.
Q And in it she says -- Ms. R

says:
"She needs to be counsel ed.”
Was that a reference to Lindsey
Boyl an?
A ["msorry, let me just -- if it's
okay.

(Docunent review. )
Yes.
Q And then the next e-nmail, you
respond to M. David, Ms. Lacewell, and
Ms. DesRosiers. And you say:
"“Al phonso, please create a file

for Lindsey. Please put this init."
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A Yes.

Q kay. Is that the e-mail you
were just referring to?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And what did you nean by
"create a file"?

A. In ny experience, when you have
personnel issues, you have to docunent them
And so | was saying, we have an issue, the
state operations director, who is her official
boss, is saying she needs to be counseled. So
| think you have to create -- start to create
a record.

Q kay. And had you ever asked
M. David before to create a record or a file
for sonmeone because of an HR issue?

A I think | Ad | don't
think I asked himto do that. | think that

Jill did. But | knew about it.

Q Anyone el se?
A Not that | recall.
Q Anyone el se you were aware of

that had a file like this created for thenf
A. Not that | recall, but |I'msure

t here are others.




© 00 N o o A w N Pk

N N NN NN P P PR R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

Q How about EGEG"

A Oh, I'msure IR

Q How are you sure?

A. VWell, I'm-- | take that back.
|"mnot sure. | assune.

Q Don't assune. Do you know i f
B

A | don't.

Q -- has afile like this?

A | don't.

Q I

A | don't know.

Q And then M. David responds:

"We manage all allegations/clains
usi ng the same process and applying the
sane standard. Accordingly, given that
this was independently forwarded to
counsel's office, we have already begun
conpiling information regarding this and
other allegations regarding this
enpl oyee. "

What did you understand M. David

to mean when he said, "W use the sane
process"? Wat was the process?

A | think exactly what -- | think
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hi s words nean what they say, that he was
sayi ng that, you know, she -- | think that he
was responding to the fact that | said,
"Create a file for Lindsey" to make cl ear that
this was not a uni que situation.

And with any conplaints, they're
handl ed the sanme way, which is that you begin
to conpil e conplaints.

Q Ckay. So you understand that
what he was witing back was, this is normally
what we do, we create a record of the
conpl ai nts?

A That's how | understood it.

Q And what was your expectation
about what M. David would do after he created
the file with this docunent in it?

A. Counsel Lindsey.

Q Did you have any ot her
expectati on about what he woul d do?

A No.

Q Did you expect himto
i nvesti gate?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And what did you -- how

did you expect himto investigate?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.

com
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A. Talk to the people who were
maki ng official conplaints to get their side
of things, and al so speak to Lindsey.

Q Were you aware of M. David
havi ng done that type of investigation in any
ot her circunstance?

A Wth the I
situation.

Q Anyone el se?

A. | don't renenber off the top of
nmy head. That's just one that specifically
sticks out.

Q And to your know edge, is that
what M. David did?

A. | think so.
Q And what do you base that on?
A. Because | renmenber that he spoke

to and at the tine. And I
remenber that [Jjjjjjiiisai d that she appreciated

that | had taken her conplaint to Al phonso.
And so | assuned that that neant that he was
managing it fromthere.

Q Do you under st and

Senior Staffer #2 to be making a conpl ai nt

about Ms. Boyl an?
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A Yes.

Q Di d you understand
to be making a conplaint about Ms. Boyl an?

A Yes.

Q And what is your basis for saying
that you under st ood to be making a
conpl ai nt about Ms. Boyl an?

A. Not dissimlar to i They
had nasty e-mail exchange, which then was
forwarded to Al phonso and said, "I want to
make a conpl aint.”

Q did that?

A It was either she or but
t hey were both on the sane chain.

Q And they said -- your
recollection is that in those docunents, they
said, "W want nmake a conplaint"?

A Yes.

Q And so did Ms. Boyl an get
counsel i ng?

A. An attenpt at it, vyes.

Q And by "attenpt at it," what is
your understandi ng of what happened?

A. That Al phonso --

THE WTNESS: Am | allowed to
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tal k about this?
A That Al phonso sat her down.

THE WTNESS: Am | allowed to
tal k about this?

MR. HECKER: Hang on.

I think this is privileged.

MS. KENNEDY PARK: There are --

MR. HECKER: | think --

M5. KENNEDY: -- piles of
docunents about this.

MR. HECKER: Can you -- |ook, |
don't want there to be an issue. Can
you use the docunents and ask her about
those? |f they produced the docunents,
go for it.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: |'d like to

know what she knows.

BY MS. KENNEDY PARK:

Q So what do you know about what

happened with Ms. Boylan? And how do you know

it?

Way don't you start with: How do

you know it?

MR. HECKER: Do you only know it

t hrough di scussions with counsel;

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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BY M.

you?

Al phonso David in particul ar?

THE W TNESS: Yeabh.

MR HECKER: Have you seen
docunents relating to it separately?

THE W TNESS: The neno that was
put on file subsequently.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Are you goi ng
to allow her to testify what --
KENNEDY PARK:

Q In the noment what M. David told

MR. HECKER: The neno has been
produced. Right?

M5. KENNEDY PARK: The nenvo's
been produced. This has all been
wai ved. | mean, there's press articles
about this.

MR. KIM The subject of Lindsey
Boyl an and Al phonso Davi d has been
wai ved as far as | -- a nunber of people
have testified about it.

| nmean, it's our viewit's, sort
of , sword and shi el d.

But consultations with -- you

know, and what they did with Lindsey

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Boyl an, that's been openly di scussed.

MR. HECKER: Go ahead.

THE W TNESS: (kay.

A. Foll owi ng their neeting, Al phonso
and | spoke. | don't renenber if it was on
the tel ephone or in person. But he told ne
t hat he had sat her down with, | think,
Camlle -- | think Camlle, but there was
definitely another person present.

And that they tal ked to her about
the conplaints that had conme in; the three
wonen at ESD and the fact that Howard Zensky
and the counsel at ESD had fornally requested
she be renoved fromthe ESD |line and the
floor.

and SEIEIEEIEE# f eel i ng

that she m streated them

B ond | ocan't
remenber if there was nore than that, but at
| east those instances. And that they
attenpted to speak to her about it, but it
didn't go very far, that she pretty quickly

erupted and said, "I'"'mquitting," and she
left.

And then | found out subsequently
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that day froma | obbyi st that she had sent out
a blast e-mail to her contacts saying, "Today
is ny last day in the executive chanber."
BY M5. KENNEDY PARK:

Q kay. And before that
conversation with M. David, were you aware of
the three wonmen at ESD who had rai sed concerns

about Ms. Boyl an?

A Yes.

Q And how did you becone aware of
t hat ?

A. From Al phonso. It's, like, a

very serious thing when an agency requests to
have sonebody renoved fromthe floor and the
line. It's -- | don't have any nenory of that
ever happeni ng.

Q | think the question | asked was:

How di d you becone aware?

A Yeah.

Q You becane aware of it through
M. David?

A Yeah.

Q So prior to the conversation

after the neeting with Lindsey Boyl an

bet ween -- between "M ." Boylan and M. David,

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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that was not the first time you heard about

t hese t hree wonen?

A. No.
Q Ckay. And so then you said after
the neeting, Lindsey Boylan -- at the neeting,

M. David reported that Lindsey Boyl an had

said she quit?

A Yes.

Q kay. She told M. David she
quit?

A Yes.

Q kay. And then she said --

A I think so.

Q Your recollection is that M.
David told you --

A. Yes, that's ny --

Q -- that Ms. Boylan had quit?

A. That's ny recoll ection.

Q kay. And this was --

A | just -- I"'mhedging a little
bit because | don't renenber if it was a
situation |like when | spoke to her on the
phone, and she, like, left the office and we
were unsure of what was going on.

But | know that shortly

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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afterwards, she sent out a blast e-mail to her
contacts saying that today was her last day in
t he executive chanber.

Q Ckay. So in between the neeting
with M. David that you had and you | earning
of the blast e-mail, it sounds |ike you had
sone concern that maybe you were in this "what
is her intention" place, like you had
described to ne before, is she quitting or is

she not quitting. |Is that right?

A No.
Q No?
A l"'msaying | don't renenber if

Al phonso said to nme that she declared in the
neeting that she was quitting, or if it wasn't
until afterwards.

So I"'mnot -- | don't want to
characterize what | knew at the time as saying
| was in that place of | don't know. [|I'mjust
saying to you ny nenory isn't clear.

Q Ckay. Your nenory is not clear
as to whether you understood, based upon your
nmeeting with M. David, that Ms. Boyl an had
quit?

A That's what |' m sayi ng.

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Q kay. And that she had, on prior
occasi ons, caused sone confusi on about whet her

she was quitting the executive chanber?

A At | east the one instance with
nme.

Q Are you aware of any other
i nstances?

A No.

Q You told ne that she had had

mul ti ple outbursts |like the one with you.
Ri ght ?

A Yes.

Q And on those other outbursts, |
think you already told ne that her intention

as to whether she was going to remain in the

chanber was unclear. |Is that right?
A | don't think so.
Q Ckay.
A There were other tines when she

had outbursts with staff and she woul d act
out, but | don't renenber any other specific
time when | thought to nyself, is she not
com ng back or com ng back. That doesn't
necessarily nmean that it didn't happen, but |

only recall that one tine.

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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Q | see. NMeaning it didn't happen

wi th other people, just not you?

A. That's what |'m saying. |
don't -- | can't, you know, speak to every
i nci dent .

Q Ckay.

M5. CLARK: Jen, can | just junp
I n?

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Yeah, sure,
sure.

M5. CLARK: So you said the ESD
want ed her renoved fromtheir floor

Way didn't she nove to the
executive chanber floor when she
switched fromESD to becom ng deputy
secretary?

THE WTNESS. So she had a very
big office on 37, and all of the offices
on 39 where the governor sits, which is
sort of viewed as, like, that's where
all the senior staff are, there were no
offices that were simlar to the one
t hat she had on 37.

So when she cane over, she

requested to stay on 37 so that she

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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coul d keep her office and her assistant,
because, otherw se, she would have been
ei ther severely downgraded in terns of
office size, or she would have gone to
the 38th floor, which she viewed as,
| i ke, beneath her.

M5. CLARK: It was her request to
stay on 377

THE W TNESS:  Yeabh.

BY MS. KENNEDY PARK:

Q Did she tell you that she viewed

being on the 38th floor as being beneath her?

A. Not in those specific words.

Q And what were the words she used?

A | didn't have the conversation
with her. Jill had the conversation with her.

And
Jil'l

bel i eve, based on ny recollection, that

said, "Either you can have one of these

smal | er offices on 39, or we can give you a

bi gger office on 38." And that she didn't

react well to the idea of being put on the

38th fl oor.

t el

Q kay. And what else did Jill
you about her not reacting well?

A. That Jill's takeaway was she

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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viewed it as being beneath her.

Q Al right. So circling back, so
now you're not sure exactly the nenory of what
M. David told you about whet her she was
quitting or not, but then you becone aware

that there is an e-mail that Ms. Boyl an has

sent .
Were you on that e-mail?

A | don't renmenber. |
didn't -- let ne put it this way: |If | was,
that wasn't how | |earned of it.

Q Ckay. And you learned of it
fronf

A. A | obbyi st.

Q Ckay. Wich | obbyist?

A | think it was -- | think it was
B ' ‘on't -- I bBut |
don't remenber. | think it was him

Q kay. So after you | earned about

the e-mail, what did you do?

A | think I called the
comruni cati ons departnent and said, "W may
get press incomng on this."

Q Ckay. And by calling the

communi cati ons departnent, who did you call?
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A Dani and Ri ch.

Q kay. And what did they say?

A. | just said, "I'mflagging this.
| feel like you could get press incomng. |If
you do, let ne know. "

Q kay. Did you nake any attenpt
to reach out to Ms. Boyl an?

A | don't think so.

Q Did you speak to anyone else in
t he executive chanber about the e-mail other
t han Dani Lever and Rich Azzopardi ?

A. I think Al phonso.

Q Ckay. And what do you recall

about your conversation with M. David?

A. | don't. | think I just was
li ke, "Well, she sent this out. So | guess
that's that."

Q Did you start | ooking for a

repl acenent ?

A. Not in two days, but, yeah,
pretty inmediately.

Q How i nmedi ately after that e-nmail
did you start |ooking for a replacenent?

A. That's an inportant job. So |

don't renenber specifically, but sonetine in

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.
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t he near future.

Q Did you ever speak to the
governor about Ms. Boylan's |eaving the
executive chanber?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And tell us about that
conversati on.

A Al phonso and | spoke to him

t oget her.

THE WTNESS. |[|s that --

MR. HECKER: Yeah. | nean, |
think that's privileged unless
Al phonso's al ready disclosed it.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: So just to be
clear, the executive chanber's position
as communi cated to you -- sorry, just
got to make a record -- the executive
chanber's position as communi cated to
you i s that you can disclose the
conversations with Ms. Boylan, but you
can't disclose the conversations with
t he governor related to Ms. Boyl an?

MR. HECKER: Can -- | don't know
that that fairly captures it. There are

sone conversations we were aware of and

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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got guidance of. This isn't one of
t hem

Could we put a pin in this and

cone back to it after we get an answer?

We already have an inquiry in, but we
don't have an answer yet.
M5. KENNEDY PARK: Okay. Let's

put a pininit.
BY M5. KENNEDY PARK:

Q So after the conversation with
t he governor and M. David, did you have any
conversations with the governor one-on-one

after that about Lindsey Boylan and her

quitting?
A Yes. She called the office and
attenpted to talk to the governor, | think

tw ce, and Stephanie didn't know what to do.
And so Stephani e sought advice from Al phonso
and -- okay.

So | flagged for him "FYl, it
sounds |i ke Lindsey has called a coupl e of
times, and Stephanie is dealing with it with
Al phonso. "

And then she sent Stephanie an

e-mail saying, "I love the governor. Please

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com
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let nme talk to him |[I'mthe only one who has
his best interest at heart."

Q What happened after that e-nmil ?

A St ephani e forwarded the e-mail to
Al phonso and copi ed ne.

Q Q her than in preparation for
today' s neeting, when was the last tine you

saw that e-mail ?

A Not -- back then. | | ooked for
it.

Q Were you able to find it?

A No.

Q Do you know if Ms. Benton -- did

you ask Ms. Benton to look for it?

A We both | ooked for it.

Q WAs anyone able to find it?

A No.

Q After the e-mail, did you have

any conversations with the governor after that
e-mail cane in about the e-mail?

A We had a conversation about the
advi ce we received fromcounsel on how to deal
with it.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: And we're

putting a pin in that.
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Q Any ot her conversations with the
governor about Ms. Boylan in Septenber of 2018
about Lindsey Boyl an?

A No.

Q O her than what you' ve just
described in ternms of the incident in July,
the incidents that |led to the Septenber
attenpt at counseling, and your concerns about
Ms. Boylan's breach of protocol, did you have
any ot her concerns about Ms. Boylan's
performnce in the executive chanber?

A No. No.

Q Did you have any ot her concerns
about Ms. Boyl an's behavior in the executive
chanber that you haven't raised to our
attention?

A. No, it's -- she was just
incredibly ornery. And it was -- it, for ne,
just becanme a headache. Like, every tine |
turned around, soneone was conplaining to nme
about Lindsey.

Q Did you ever have any concerns
t hat she had behaved i nappropriately froma
sexual perspective in the executive chanber?

A. Not i n the executive chamber, no.
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Q Ckay. D d you have any concerns
t hat she had behaved i nappropriately outside

t he executi ve chanber?

A. When she was at ESD.
Q Ckay.
A. And | wouldn't characterize it as

i nappropriately.

Q Tel | us about that.

A | heard, | believe, from-- this
is going to be tricky again -- |}l Wo is
counsel at ESD.

THE WTNESS: Can | keep goi ng?

MR. HECKER: You | earned j ust
facts from | NN

THE WTNESS: So --

MR. HECKER: Was it a discussion
of -- did it include | egal advice from

I

THE WTNESS: It -- well, she
was, like, reporting it up.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Do you want to
go off the record?

MR. HECKER: Yeah.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Can we go off

the record?
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THE VI DEOGRAPHER: The tine is

2:13 p.m This concludes Media 5. Of

t he record.

(Recess taken from2:14 p.m to

2:24 p.m)

THE VI DEOCGRAPHER:  The tinme now
is 2:24 p.m This begins Media 6. On

t he record.

BY M5. KENNEDY PARK:

Q So earlier you told nme that you
had a conversation with Al phonso David and the
gover nor about Lindsey Boyl an.

Can you tell us the part of that
conversation that did not involve the
provi sion of |egal advice by M. David?

A. We | et the governor know that
Li ndsey had obviously, like, in the aftermath
of her resignation, reached back out to get
her job back, and follow ng that, had been
attenpting to contact the governor directly.

Q And what did the governor say?

A "How shoul d | handl e this?"

Q And then M. David provided | ega
advi ce?

A. Yes.
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M5. KENNEDY PARK: As to which
your counsel instructed you not to
testify?

MR HECKER: Well, the chanber
has instructed us that they're not
wai ving privilege as to that advice.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Ckay.

Q And how did you cone to know t hat

Ms. Boyl an had reached out to get her job

back?
Al phonso call ed nme that weekend.
And what did he tell you?
A Exactly that, that she had
reached out, | think that Sunday norning, and

said that she --
THE WTNESS: |'mfine with this
stuff. R ght?

A Ckay. So she said that she
acknow edged that her behave -- sone of the
things fromthe conplaints were accurate, that
she thought that thefZEIEEEEZECICIEREES st uf f
went both ways. It wasn't just one-sided,
that she felt like they also were difficult
w th her.

And that -- | think she was
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surprised by the | conp! ai nts,

whi ch was interesting to me because | Wes,
i ke, the nost vocal. And that she wanted to
conme back to the chanber. She wanted her job
back.

Q And what did you tell M. David?

A We di scussed whether or not it
was a good i dea.

Q And did M. David provide you
with [ egal advice?

A Yes.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: And |'m
guessi ng the executive chanber is
Instructing you not to answer questions
about what that |egal advice was?

MR. HECKER: About | egal advice.
Ri ght.

Q And goi ng back to the
conversati on between you, the governor, and
M. David, anything else that the governor
sai d other than asking what we shoul d do?

A No.

Q WAs t he governor surprised at any
of the information that you conveyed to hinf

A. | think that he was surprised at
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the ultimate -- you know, her storm ng out
whi | e Al phonso was counseling her. | try to
keep stuff off his desk that he doesn't need
to be -- to know about. There's, |ike, so
many i nportant things going on.
So | think that he was aware that

t here had been conpl ai nts about Lindsey, that
Li ndsey had had altercations with nenbers of
the staff, but | don't think necessarily
realized that it had reached that point.

Q How di d you come to understand
that the governor was aware that there had
been conpl ai nts about Lindsey before the

Sept enber 28 i ncident?

A. | think that Stephanie had said
sonething at sone point. | think that | had
said sonmething at sone point. | think Robert

sai d sonething at some point.

Q To the governor?
A Yes.
Q VWhat did you say to the governor

prior to Septenber 2018 about M. Boyl an?
A. | think | told himabout the
incident that | had with her, because | didn't

know i f she would go to himdirectly about it,
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and so | wanted to nmake sure he wasn't
bl i ndsi ded.

Q So earlier | asked you if you had
tal ked to anybody el se about that incident,
and you didn't say the governor was one of the
peopl e you tal ked to. But now you're
remenberi ng you spoke to the governor?

A. Yes, | think.

Q And what was the governor's
reaction to you telling him about that
i nci dent ?

A He doesn't -- he traditionally
doesn't like to weigh in on, like --

MR. HECKER: Just, do you
remenber that conversation and what --
THE WTNESS: Not specifically.

A. Except that he didn't engage it.

Q Meani ng you told himand he
didn't react, to your recollection?

A. Ri ght .

Q And can you remind nme again --
|"msorry -- why did you decide to give hima
heads up about the July 2018 incident?

A Because she woul d potentially go

to himdirectly.
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Q Had she told you she was going to
go to the governor?

A No.

Q And you said you think Ms. Benton
had a conversation with the governor prior to
Sept enber 2018 about Ms. Boyl an.

What do you under stand about
t hose conversations?

A. | don't have any specific
know edge, but | know that the Lindsey/ Sk
stuff with Lindsey was pretty intol erable.

And it -- | assune that Stephanie would have

tal ked to himabout it.

Q kay. Don't assune.

A. Ckay.

Q Do you know t hat Stephani e Benton
spoke to --

A No, | think --

Q W just can't tal k over each

other. kay?
A Sorry.
Q That' s okay.
So do you know that the
Ms. Benton spoke to the governor about Lindsey

Boyl an prior to Septenber of 20187
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A No.
Q Do you know if at any tine
Ms. Benton spoke to the governor about

Li ndsey Boyl an?

A No.

Q And then | think --

A. Vell -- I'"msorry.

Q Go ahead.

A. Not to speak over you. | don't

know i f she told himabout that e-mail that
she received, separate fromthe conversation
t hat Al phonso and | had with him

Q Ckay. And you say "that e-mail."
VWhat e-mail are you referring to?

A The one that she said, "I |ove
him ['mthe only one who has his best
interest at heart. Please let ne talk to
him™"

Q kay. So are you aware of
whet her Ms. Benton told the governor the
exi stence of that e-mail?

A | don't. That's what |'m sayi ng,
| -- that would be sonething where | woul d

think that that could have cone up.

Q And what about M. Mijica? Wat
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do you know about his conversations with the
gover nor about Lindsey Boylan prior to
Sept enber 20187

A | was in the roomone tinme when
there was a difficult conversation on the
phone that Lindsey was a part of. And Lindsey
got vocal, |ike, got her voice raised. And
when t he governor hung up, Robert was |ike,
“I't"Il be okay, you know. |I'Il talk to her,"
like, "It's fine," kind of thing.

Q And do you renenber why
Ms. Boylan's voice was getting raised?

A | believe it's because the
governor was asking her questions about a
proj ect and she got offended.

Q Well, what did you
understand -- how did you conme to understand

t hat she got of fended?

A. By her reaction.
Q How did you cone to --
A | shouldn't characterize it. Her

voi ce raised. She was clearly frustrated.
Q kay. Wiy don't we do this: You
tell me what M. Mijica told you about that

nmeeting. Wre you there?

U S. Legal Support | www. usl egal support.com




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P P PR R R R PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

A Yes.

Q kay. So what happened in the
neet i ng?

A. There was a call on speaker phone

with a group of people about a project. |
think it was an MIA project. This was around
the time that | was telling you about, the
B - how Lindsey got upset because the
governor said, "Speak to Rob and |jjjjjij about
it."

And on the phone, the governor
was doi ng what he generally does, which he,
like, refers to as "peeling the onion" where
he asks a mllion questions. And as he was
aski ng questions, she didn't have the answers.

And then he woul d ask the next
guestion, and she was getting increasingly
aggravat ed, which was obvi ous by her raising
her voice and getting frustrated.

And then the call ended, and it
was, |ike, one of those situations -- |'msure

we've all been in these nonents where you're

ina-- like, a neeting with the room and
everyone | ooks at each other |like -- and Rob
was like, "I'Il talk to her. [It'll be fine.
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"1l talk to her."

Q Was that the end -- that was the
end of the neeting?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Do you have an
understanding as to whether M. Mijica
reported back to the governor on his
conversation wwth Ms. Boylan after that?

A | don't know.

Q Do you know if M. Mijica did, in

fact, speak to Ms. Boyl an about that incident?

A. | believe, based on the text
nessages that | sawin -- what nonth are we
in?

Q | don't know. July.

A. -- in February, that, yes, that

he had talked to her and attenpted to cal m her
down.

Q kay. And what was the context
i n which you saw text nessages in February
between M. Mijica and Ms. Boyl an?

A It was Decenber, |'msorry.

When Li ndsey made her anybody

else clains on Twitter, Rob came to see ne and

said, "Melissa, you have to see this."
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He recalled that in the prior
March, she had nade pretty direct threats
agai nst the adm nistration, and he believed
she was nmaki ng good on the threats. And so he
cane to show ne the text nessage.

And in the course of that, |
said, "lIs there anything else | should know?"
And he, like, scrolled back and was j ust
readi ng a bunch of them out I oud.

Q kay. Let's put a pin in that
and come back to that in a few m nutes.

A. Ckay.

Q And then you said that in the
course of this incident, you | earned that
Ms. Boylan had told M. David that she
bel i eved the conduct with and
went both ways. |Is that right?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So were and
ever counseled after that?

A | don't know.

Q Who woul d have done that
counsel i ng?

A. Al phonso.

Q Did you ever ask for themto be
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counsel ed?

A No.

Q Did you ever inquire as to what
Ms. Boylan neant that it went both ways
bet ween her and zglolSenior Staffer #3)fg

A No, but | understood it to nean
that to the extent that she thought
that -- that they thought that she was
di srespectful, she thought that they were
di srespectful .

Q Right. So -- but you didn't
inquire as to what she -- what the basis was
for her believing they were disrespectful to
her ?

A. No. At that point --

Q Didn't ask anybody -- didn't ask
anybody to investigate that?

A. No. At that point she had quit.

Q Right. But were you confortable
with the idea that coul d have
been -- was potentially being disrespectful to
peopl e?

A. Based on Li ndsey's behavi or
towards her assistants, her boss, people she

vi ewed as beneath her, people she viewed as
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her contenporaries, | did not believe that
was the problem

Q kay. So you just decided that
Ms. Boyl an was not right about that?

A. It wasn't ny place to do that one
way or another. This was in the hands of
counsel .

Q So woul d you have an expectation
t hat counsel was going to | ook into that
al | egati on?

A. If there was warranted foll ow up,

| believe that they would do it, yes.

Q Are you aware that they did | ook
into it?

A | don't know.

Q Did you ever ask?

A No.

Q Crcling back, we had put a pin

in a conversation you had w th |l
related to Ms. Boyl an |
Tell us about that conversation.
A | didn't have the direct
conversation with |l ' don't renenber
if it was Linda or Al phonso, but one of them

told ne that |l had received a conpl aint
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Q So that was reported to you
either by Ms. Lacewell or M. David?

A One of the two of them

Q kay. And what were you told
about what was going to happen with that
al | egati on?

A. The concern at that point was,

And so we thought it was
i nportant to ask the direct question and nmake

sure that she was aware of her rights.

Q Did that happen?

A Yes.

Q And how do you know that that
happened?

A. Because it was reported back to
nme.

Q Ckay. Who reported it back to
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A. Al phonso.
Q What did he tell you?

A
I

and that he counsel ed Lindsey as to what was
in the enpl oyee handbook, places that she
could go to report, asked the direct question

i f she had ever been the subject of harassnent

-
I (o which she unequivocally said

no, and wanted to nake sure that she
understood that if there was any situation
goi ng on that she had a safe space to report,
ei t her through Al phonso, through ESD s
counsel, or directly to GOER

Q Have you seen any docunents

related to that conversati on?

A. Yes.
Q And what docunents have you seen?
A. There was a nmeno that was done

menorializing it.

Q And who has that nenp?
M . Davi d?
A. The chanber. | don't know t hat

it's in Al phonso's possessi on.
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Q
t he incident.
A
Q
i nci dent ?

A

o > O > O

sure?
A
Q
didn't speak
A

And you sai d |
Ri ght ?

Yes.

And di o I e

Yes.
|
Yes.

Did he speak to anyone el se?
| don't think so.

You don't think so, but are you

| don't think so.
You're sure they spoke to -- they
to anybody el se?

That's not what | sai d. | said,

"I don't think so."

Q
A

Q

Was that the end of that?
Yes.

Did you ever have any

conversations with the governor about that?

A
Q

No.

Ever speak to anyone else in the

executi ve chamber about it?

A

No.
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Q Ever speak to anyone outside the
executive chanber about it?
A No.
Are you tal king about the runors

about N o about that

specific incident?

Q "' mtal king about that specific
I nci dent .

A No.

Q And when was that?

A. Actually, | don't know that

that's right.
Q Let's pause and we'll conme back
to that.
When was that incident when
M. David told you that there -- or

Ms. Lacewell told you that there was this

al l egati on made about |GGG
I

A. It was either Decenber or January
of 2017, 2018. Whatever the date is on the
meno, they were -- we took action pretty
qui ckly.

Q When was the last tinme you | ooked

at that nmeno, other than with your counsel in
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preparing for today?
A Not in years. | don't even know

that | saw it at the tine.

Q When was the first tine you saw
it?

A I n preparation.

Q You just nade reference to runors
|

What are those runors?

A There were runors that |
I

Q Ckay. D d you do anythi ng about
t hose runors?

A. Exactly what | just told you.

Q Q her than the incident involving

B ‘Ves -- did the runor have any facts
toit?

A. No, it was just general chatter.

Q kay. So what led to the
conversation about -- with M. David was
actually a report from sonmeone el se?

A Yes.

Q Right? So did you ever do

anyt hi ng about the runors about | G
I
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A. No. | frankly thought that they
wer e nmean.

Q During Ms. Boylan's tinme in the
executive chanber or at ESD, were you aware
that she got flowers fromthe governor?

A No.

MR KIM Can | ask a foll ow up
questi on?

You had said that you m ght want
to correct sonething when Jen asked
whet her you had spoken to anyone about
t hat incident.

THE W TNESS:. When Li ndsey
started tweeting in Decenber, |}
I | believe a
reporter fromthe New York Post asked
about it.

And Azzopardi and | spoke about
it and said we're absol utely not
engagi ng in this.

MR KIM About what? About
the --

THE W TNESS: [

MR KIM They raised it, and you

said, "W're not tal king about it"?
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THE W TNESS:  Yes.
MR KIM Had you spoken to

anyone el se within the executive

chanber

about the runors general |y || NN

@

THE WTNESS: No. | thought it

was really nean.

MR KIM Mean in what way?

THE WTNESS: Mean in the way

that who knows if it was true or

not

I And | didn’t vant to

be a part of spreading that.

BY MS. KENNEDY PARK:

Q So | think before M. Ki masked

you those questions, |I'd asked you if yo

u're

aware that Ms. Boyl an ever received flowers

fromthe governor.
A. Can | answer that question
nuanced way?

Q Sur e.

in a
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MR. HECKER: Just the answer.
A | did not know specifically
Li ndsey, but he has a tradition of sending out
flowers to the wonen on the second floor on
Val enti ne's Day.
Q Prior to February 22 --
February 24 of 2021, were you aware that

Ms. Boylan was a recipient of flowers fromthe

gover nor - -
Not specifically.
Q You've got let ne finish
A. Ch, I'msorry.
Q It's okay.
A Not specifically.
Q And you said he has a tradition

of sending flowers to everyone on the second

fl oor on Valentine' s Day?

A Yeah.

Q Everyone or just wonen?

A Wnmen. The mansion staff does it
pretty automatically at this point. | think

it was actually a Sandra idea at the
begi nni ng.
Q There's actually no question

pendi ng. So just hold up, okay?
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A Sorry.

Q During Ms. Boylan's tinme at the
executive chanber or at ESD, were you aware
that she had traveled to Puerto Rico with the
gover nor ?

A I think I was on that trip.

Q kay. And what was that trip

for?

A | don't renenber. Hurricane
recovery, |'msure.

Q Did you see her engage with the

governor on that trip?

A Not that | recall

Q Did she fly with you?

A | don't renenber.

Q Any ot her occasions in which

you're aware that Ms. Boylan traveled wth the
gover nor ?

A | don't think so. | mean, other
than, |like, when he would fly to Buffalo to do
a press conference.

Q Are you aware that Ms. Boyl an
flewto Buffalo with the governor for press
conf erences?

A. Yes, she flew all over the state
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for press conferences.
Q And sonme of those trips were with

t he governor?

A Yes.

Q In the helicopter?

A Sone in the helicopter, sone in
the King Air.

Q When you say "King Air," you nean

t he pl ane?
A. It's a prop plane, generously.
Q How many tines are you aware of
Ms. Boylan traveling with the governor either

on the helicopter or on the plane?

A | don't know.

Q More than a dozen?

A. Probably. The governor travels a
| ot.

Q Are you aware of an occasion on

whi ch Ms. Boyl an was involved in planning an

event for the Regional Econom c Devel opnent

Awar ds?
| am
kay. And what was her role in
t hat ?
A. She was the dep sec for economc
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devel opnent. She was Howard's chief of staff.
So as a result, she would be playing a | ead
role in that.

Q So by "lead role," do you nean
she was, kind of, planning and organi zing the
event ?

A. Not the |ogistics, per se, but
t he subst ance.

Q By "substance," who gets the
awar ds?

A. There's a grading process. Each
region of the state has to turn in their |ist
of projects, and then each region is awarded a
certai n anount of noney based on the substance
of the project, how many jobs they believe

they're going to create, et cetera.

Q Were are the awards hosted?
A. I n Al bany.
Q And when Ms. Boyl an was there,

who was the MC or host of the awards?

A There's a different one every
year.

Q kay. Who was the -- who were
t he ones that hosted when Ms. Boylan was a

menber of the ESD or the executive chanber?
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A General ly speaking, it would be a
news anchor. One tine it was a |ocal person
fromthe Al bany area. One -- | think one or
two tinmes it was Maria Bartirono. And | don't
remenber the rest.

Q Do you renenber who the | oca
person was?

A. | don't. Teresa sonething, |
t hi nk.

Q Do you renenber whet her
Ms. Boylan traveled with the governor and
Ms. Bartirono for that event?

A Only in the context of a recent
news inquiry.

Q And tell us about that news
i nquiry.

A Ronan Farrow -- | believe it was
Ronan Farrow, there were a | ot of press
stories in the spring -- said that she cl ai ned
that she felt degraded, that she was going to

fly on the plane instead of stay back and talk

to peopl e.
Q And, sorry, just to flesh that
out. She felt -- she -- M. Farrow told you

that Ms. Boylan felt degraded that she was
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going to fly on the plane back from Al bany?

A Yes.
Q To New York City?
A. To be clear, | never had a direct

conversation with Ronan Farrow. He had t hat

conversation with Peter A em an.

Q And then it was related to you?

A Yes.

Q kay. And after that
conversation was related to you -- by

M. Aleman. |s that right?

A Mm hmm

Q -- what did you do to look into
t hat al | egati on?

A Asked Annabel. And -- | don't

think we talked to Jill about it. Asked

Annabel .
Q. Annabel Wl sh?
A Yes.
Q. Why' d you ask Annabel ?
A. | believe her allegation in the

Ronan Farrow article was specific to Annabel,
t hat Annabel had nade her fly on the plane.
Q That Annabel --

A. O had told her she was supposed
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to fly on the plane, and that she was upset
about that and let that be known.

Q kay. And who spoke to
Ms. Wal sh?

A | did. Peter did. | think we
conferenced her into a call we were doing
about the article.

Q Who el se was on the call?

A There was sort of a revolving
group of people that were involved in press
responses, so | don't want to give you a
conpl ete |list because | may be wong, but
certainly nme, Peter, R ch, probably Lis,
probably Jeff -- and I'msorry. Lis Smth,
Jeff Pollack. Probably Josh Vlasto. Sone
iteration of that group.

Probably -- and then we would
al ways have the | awers on, so either Linda,
Bet h, Judy, sone iteration of the |legal team

Q And what did Ms. \Wal sh say about
that all egation?

A That she didn't -- | don't
remenber. | don't renenber specifically. |
can tell you what ny takeaway was, but | don't

renenber what words she used.
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Q Ckay. Do you renenber any words
she used?

A | don't. | don't.

Q How about any docunents she

poi nted you to?

A | think that we pulled the flight
log to see if she was even on the plane, and
she wasn't even on the plane, and so we were
all sort of confused by that.

Q Was the allegation that she had
been on the plane?

A The way it was presented by Ronan
Farrow |l ed us to believe that that's what she
was sayi ng.

Q That's not ultimtely what she
said. Right?

A Vell, we went back and said, "She
wasn't even on the plane, so what are you
t al ki ng about ?"

And then | think he cane back and
said, "Well, that wasn't the issue. It was
that she was being told that she was supposed
to fly on the plane.”

Q Ckay. And so what was your

takeaway from Ms. WAl sh?
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A That it was not an issue.

Q And what do you nean by "it was
not an issue"?

A. It wasn't sonmething that rose to
a |l evel where she even renenbered the
conversation, that it's possible that she said
to Lindsey, "I need you on standby potentially
to fly with the governor and Maria down to the
city."

She was the substance lead, it
was econoni c devel opnent. "You're with a very
i nportant person who just hosted these
awards." But, ultimately, the governor
deci ded who was flying and didn't ask for
Li ndsey.

Q And that's what Ms. Wl sh

reported to you?

A. That was her recollection.

Q That she didn't really renenber
it?

A. It was |ike we were putting it

t oget her based on the flight logs and trying
to think back through how it woul d have gone.

Q Ckay. So you thought about how
it would have gone, but she -- did Ms. WAl sh
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actually renenber how it did go?

A. | don't -- that's what I'm
telling you. | don't renmenber specifically
the words that she used, but that was the
takeaway fromit.

Q Has there ever been, to your
know edge, any concern expressed by anyone
about the governor being alone on a flight
with Ms. Baroma -- or I'msorry, | can't

renenber her nane.

A. Bartironpo?
Q Bartirono.
A Not that | recall specifically.

They were good friends.

Q kay. Was there --
A. They are good friends.
Q Was there any concern expressed

ever, to your know edge, about Sandra Lee
finding out that the governor had travel ed
with Maria Bartironon?

A. No. And the flight logs are
publ i c.

Q Are you aware of any docunents
t hat expressed a concern about Sandra Lee

finding out that the governor was traveling
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with Ms. Bartironon?

A | don't think so.

Q You sai d your takeaway was t hat
t he governor ultimately decided who travel ed
with him |[|s that because the governor always

deci des who travels with hinf

A. He can have opi ni ons, cannot have
opinions. It depends on the day.
Q Ckay. And did Ms. Wil sh convey

to you that she had a specific recollection of
t he governor having an opini on about the
flight from Al bany to New York with

Ms. Bartironp?

A What | renenber was that she had
what she thought -- again, and | don't
remenber if this was a specific
recollection -- that she had asked Lindsey to
be on standby just in case, but then,
ultimately, the governor didn't ask anyone
else to fly.

Q Ckay. After Ms. Boylan left --

M5. KENNEDY PARK: Well, before |
transition to asking about after she

| eft the executive chanber, Ms. d ark or

M. Kim do you have any questions about
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her time during the executive chanber?
Ckay.
Q After Ms. Boylan |eft the

executive chanber, she ran for congress.

Ri ght ?
A Yes.
Q What seat did she run for?
A | don't know the nunmber. | think

it's New York 18. It was against Jerry
Nadl er.

Q kay. How did you becone aware
that Ms. Boylan was intending to run for Jerry

Nadl er' s seat ?

A. | don't renenber. It may have
just been on Twitter. | don't renenber.
Q kay. Did you ever speak to

anyone about the fact that Lindsey Boyl an was

running for M. Nadler's seat?

A. | " msure | did.
Q Ckay. Who did you talk to?
A. | don't remem -- |ike no one

conversation sticks out specifically.

Q Did you talk to anybody in -- I'm
going to call it Nadler's canp -- about
Ms. Boyl an?
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A Yes.

Q kay. Who did you talk to?

A I

Q Can you spell her last nanme for

the court reporter?

A I
Q Okay. And who's [N

A. Jerry Nadler's chief of staff.

Q kay. When was this
conversation?

A. | don't renenber. | imagine
either right before or shortly after she
declared. But | don't renmenber what nonth
t hat was.

Q So you were aware before she
decl ared that she was seeking --

A | don't -- | don't renmenber. |
t hi nk that was --

MR. HECKER: Wait.

A Sorry.

Q It's okay. Were you aware before
Ms. Boyl an decl ared she was running for
M. Nadler's seat that she was intending to
decl are?

A. | don't remenber, because
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of tenti mes what happens is people wll put
out, you know, |eaks on purpose so that you,
i ke, draw out a press cycle. And that wll
happen before soneone officially does the
podi um press conference |'m running.

So | just don't renmenber where in
t hat cal endar that happened.

Q Ckay. So tell us what you
remenber about the conversation with
]

A That |jjj reached out and asked
what | -- if | knew what was goi hg on, why was
a Cuonp person running against Jerry? Wre we
going to get involved in the race?

Q I ' cached out to you?

A Yes.

Q kay. What did you tell her?

A | said, "I don't know what to
tell you, ] ' ke, | can't tell Lindsey not
torun. | wouldn't tell Lindsey not to run.
| don't have any sort of relationship with
her."

Q Did you say anything el se about
her ?

A. That was basically it, that |
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recall.
Q Do you recall speaking at al

about Ms. Boyl an's conpetency?

A No.

Q Speaki ng about her character?

A No.

Q Speaki ng about the circunstances
under which she left the executive chanber?

A No.

Q Speaki ng about the fact that

there was a file?
A No.
Q Did you speak to anyone el se who

had connections --

A. Wait, let nme back up. | think
said to her -- in the context of ne saying,
li ke, look, I can't get involved, |ike she --
like, she didn't |eave on great termns, |ike,

this isn't the kind of thing where |I can,
i ke, pick up the phone.

Q Did you say anything el se about
t he circunstances under which Ms. Boylan left
t he executive chanber?

A Not that | recall

Q After the conversation with
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B did you relay that information --

or that conversation to anybody in the
executive chanber?

A | don't renmenber if | said
sonething to -- no, | didn't. | was thinking
if I said sonmething to soneone at the state
party, but that's not the executive chanber.

Q Did you say sonething to sonebody
at the state party?

MR. HECKER: See what you did

t her e?

A. | may have. | may have said

sonething to the executive director

Q Ckay. VWho is the executive
di rector?
A. Now, it's Jay Jacobs. | can't

remenber who it was at the tine.

Q kay. And what do you recall you
may have sai d?

A There's al ways conversations
about the interparty challenges. And so |
think I said sonething to the effect of,
"Heads up, Jerry's not happy."

Q And how did you cone to

understand that Jerry Nadler wasn't happy?
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A. It was the conclusion | drew
based on ny conversation with |}

Q I's there sonething specific

I had said that nmade you understand

that M. Nadl er wasn't happy?

A. | don't think anyone |ikes --
Q -- M. Nadler?
A. -- a primary challenge. It had

nothing to do specifically with Lindsey.

Q Do you recall speaking to anybody
el se about Ms. Boylan's run for congress?

A. | spoke to N
because he told nme she cane to see himand ask
his advice. Oher than that, nothing
speci fic.

Q And what did you talk about with

I
A. He said, "She came to see me and
asked for advice. | said, 'Jerry' -- like,

“*tell nme your justification. Wy are you
runni ng? Like Jerry's a good nenber of
congress.'"

Li ke convince nme, you know, pitch
me kind of thing. And that she just kept

com ng back to it's tinme for new energy and
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fresh blood. And he was |like, "That's not
enough for ne."

And so he just relayed back to ne
that he wasn't particularly inpressed, and
that it didn't seemlike there was a real
justification that would be sellable in a
canpai gn.

Q I's your recollection that

I ' cached out to you to convey

this conversation?

A Not specifically. |Jjjjjj] and |
are good friends, we talk all the tine.

Q Do you renenber how Ms. Boyl an
came up in the conversation?

A. | think he said, "Ch, hey, | sat

wi th Lindsey Boylan, and she used to work for

you.
Q And did you say anything in
response?
A No.
Q Did you tell himanything about

Ms Boylan's tinme in the executive chanber?
A No.
Q Did you tell himany of your

per sonal opini ons about Ms. Boyl an?




© 00 N o o A w N PP

N N NN NN P P R R R PR PRk
o A W N P O © © N O O M W N P O

A No.

Q In the context of M. Boyl an
running for congress, did you share your
personal opinions of her wth anyone?

A Not that | recall

Q And in the context of M. Boyl an
runni ng for congress, other than telling
B that she didn't |eave the executive
chanber on the best terns, did you share any
opi ni ons about her work performance with
anyone?

A. No, not that | recall.

Q Let's ook at Tab 10 in your
bi nder .

M5. KENNEDY PARK: We're marKking
this as the next exhibit.
(Exhi bit 10, Text nessage

i ncl udi ng Melissa DeRosa, Rich

Azzopardi, and Annabel Wal sh dated Apri

20, 2019, marked for identification, as

of this date.)

Q So if I've done this right, this
is a text message fromyou to Jill DesRosiers,
Ri ch Azzopardi, Annabel Wl sh, Stephanie

Benton, Jim Mal atras, Dani Lever, Robert
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Mujica, Beth Garvey, Peter --

A. | don't know that |'m | ooking at
the right thing. |'msorry.
Q | think you are. Yup, |ook at

the first page.
A Ckay.
Q Fl i p back.
MR. HECKER: She's asking you to
| ook at the first page.
Q Flip back. Right at the top.
See it?
Ckay.

There you go. That's what | was

| ooki ng at.
A. Ckay.
Q So we're agreed that this is a

text nmessage fromyou to that group | just

nanmed?
A Yes.
Q And this is fromApril 20, 2019.
A Ckay.
Q And you appear to have attached a

screenshot that has been heavily redacted.
Who are the parties in this

e-mail ?
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A | have no idea. | have no idea.
Q The bottom e-mail on February 28,
2019, where it says:
"I was di sappointed to read that
you floated your name as a primary
opponent to Jerry Nadler. [It's a shane

that you did not listen to ne."

A | don't know who sent that.
Q Is that you who sent it?
A | don't think so. | don't think
so.
Q &ay. Is it NG
| don't think so.
Q It says:
“I'f you run, | seriously doubt
you wi Il reach the 11 percent |evel his
| ast opponent did."
Do you under stand what t hat
meant ?

A. | understand what it neans based

on reading this text, but

Q How did this get to you?
A | don't know.
Q Well, did you -- do you recal

why you sent it to this group?
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A | don't.
Q Did you ask anybody in this group

to do anything in response to this e-nmail?

A. | don't think so.

Q You can put that aside.

A. Did I send this text nessage?
Q This is a text nessage on the

first page, it's fromyou.

A. No, | get it, but |I'm saying
this.

Q This is the attachnment you sent.

A But | don't know who sent it -- |

don't recall who sent it.
Q Right. That's why |I'm asking you

because | don't know either.

A. Yeah, | don't know. No, and
certainly not il ' don't know.

Q Way do you say it's certainly not
I

A. Because that's not his style.
That's -- he would never wite sonething |ike
t hat .

Q What do you nean "he woul d never

wite sonething like that"?

A. He's like a very classy, nice
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guy. He wouldn't wite that.

Q So you think this is not classy?
A. | just -- he wouldn't ever
conmuni cate with her like that. He -- | don't

t hi nk he ever communi cated with her again. |
have no idea who that's from

MR. HECKER: That's the question.

M5. KENNEDY PARK: | have no
sense of what tine it is. GCkay, it's
3 o' clock. So we've been going for -- |
don't know how Il ong. Do you want to
take a break? W're going to shift.

MR. HECKER: Do you want to take
a break?

THE WTNESS: Do you want take
|i ke three mnutes, just run to the
bat hr oonf

THE VI DEOCGRAPHER: The tine is
2:59 p.m This concludes Media 6. Of
t he record.

(Recess taken from2:59 p.m to
3:08 p.m)

THE VI DEOCGRAPHER:  The tine now
Is 3:08 ppm This begins Media 7. On

t he record.
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BY MS. KENNEDY PARK:
Q Ms. DeRosa, do you know soneone

by the name of Charlotte Bennett?

A Yes.

Q How di d you know Ms. Bennett?

A She worked in the executive
chanber .

Q How di d she cone to work in the

executi ve chanber?

A | don't know.

Q Do you know who hired her?

A | don't -- | don't know.

Q What was her first role in the

executi ve chanber?

A | believe it was briefer.

Q Did she ever change rol es?

A Yes.

Q And what role did she change to?
A. She went to go work on the health

t eam
Q Before she went to work on the

health team did she have any role other than

briefer?
A | don't think so.
Q Was she ever a senior briefer?
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A | don't know.

Q Did she ever staff the governor?
A Yes.

Q Ckay. And then was that a

different role than being a briefer?
A. They're, sort of,
i nt er changeabl e.

Q Ckay. Can you explain that to
nme? What are the responsibilities of a
briefer?

A. A briefer is soneone who conpil es
research, docunents, relevant information for
t he governor, for events, phone calls,
nmeet i ngs.

So they're relatively junior but
generally smart, anbitious, hard-working, and,
if need be, if there are certain people
that -- certain of the briefers that -- |
don't really know how to say this, who are
just generally, like, do well wth the
governor, then we'll ask themto help pitch in
and staff if we're short-staffed with the
executi ve assistant pool.

Q You said you weren't sure how to

say it, but you said, "do well with the
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gover nor."
Can you hel p ne understand what
t hat neans?

A. Sur e. It's, sort of, what | said
to you before, there are certain people that
do interact better with the governor, people
who are assertive, people who are obviously
conpetent, people who, if he gives a task to,
they performthe task diligently and well.

And so if there are people |ike
that, who at different tines [FE# or
-- or EBEMYSHERER or
St ephani e Benton, if they were short-staffed
and they would, you know, need to pul
soneone, occasionally, a briefer would cone
hel p the staff, which neant answering the
phones, taking dictation, you know, running
down docunents, typical admnistrative work.

Q So when | used the termstaffing
t he governor, did you understand nme to nean
doi ng that typical admnistrative work?

A Yes.

Q So at sone point, did you
understand that M. Bennett was both a briefer

and doing that typical adm nistrative work?
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A Yes.

Q And did that nean that
M. Bennett was one of the people that
interacted well with the governor?

A Yes.

Q Did you ever observe her
interacting with the governor?

A Yes -- yes and no. | would -- we
woul d generally cross paths.

Q By "cross paths,"” you nean, she's
com ng out of the office, you're going into
the office kind of thing?

A Exactly.

Q Were you ever in the governor's
office at the sane tinme as Ms. Bennett?

A Not that | recall specifically.
Once during COVID, | got there at |ike seven
in the norning, and she was in the office, and

| walked in to say hello, and as | was wal ki ng

in to say hello, she was |eaving.

Q So your typical crossing paths?

A Yes.

Q So there were no occasions in
whi ch you were -- observed in any neani ngf ul

way Charlotte Bennett interacting with the
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gover nor ?
A. Not that | recall
Q Did you ever talk to the governor

prior to Decenber of 2020 about Charlotte

Bennett ?
A Yes.
Q And tell us about those

conversati ons.

A Charlotte, on that instance that
| nmentioned when | was wal ked into the office
as she was wal king out, he said to nme, "Did
you know that she started a sexual assault
nonprofit? You should get her involved in the
Council on Wnen and Grls."

Q And that was on the occasi on when
it was 7 a.m? This was during COvVI D?

A Yes.

Q And did you ask himhow he cane
to understand that Ms. Bennett had started a
sexual assault nonprofit?

A No.

Q Are there any other occasions on
whi ch you, prior to Decenber of 2020, spoke to
t he governor about Charlotte Bennett?

A. Prior to Decenber of 2020? 1In
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June of 2020, end of June, early July.

Q Prior to June, July of 2020, did
you have any conversations with the governor
about Charlotte Bennett?

A Not that | recall.

Q At sone point, did Ms. Bennett --

Ms. Bennett worked in which office when she

started?
A. | don't know.
Q Do you generally know where the

briefers are | ocated?
A. No.
Q Do the briefers deliver a

briefing book to the governor?

A Yes.

Q s that sonething that happens
daily?

A Yes.

Q | s that dropped off wherever the

governor is |located when the briefing book is

conpl et ed?
A Yes.
Q Does that nean it can be dropped

of f at the nansi on soneti nes?

A. Yes.
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Q Is there a protocol -- prior to
June or July of 2020, was there a protocol for
droppi ng off anything at the executive nmansion
for the governor?

A Not that | was aware of
specifically.

Q kay. Were you aware generally
of a protocol for dropping things off at the
executive mansion for the governor prior to
June or July of 20207

A. Not really. It wasn't really ny
| ane.

Q You were generally aware of any
protocol s about staff going to the executive
mansi on prior to June or July of 20207

A So there was one instance in
whi ch the governor reached out to Jill, and
St ephani e was upset that he had been in the
mansi on al one and he just, |ike, happened upon
a briefer dropping off a binder.

And so, at that tinme, Annabel --
he basically said, this can never happen
again. So Annabel, Stephanie, and Jill cane
up with a protocol where, if any staff cane to

t he mansion, they would pin Jill, Annabel,
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St ephanie, nme, and CC the detail and say, such
and such is here, permssion to enter. And
general ly, either Stephanie or | would respond
and say, you know, perm ssion to enter.

And the assunption was that one
of us would give the governor a heads up so
that he knew if there was someone on the

prem ses so that that incident woul dn't happen

agai n.
Q When was that incident?
| don't renenber.
But it was before June or July of
20207
A Yes.
Q So what was the concern that the

gover nor had?

A He's |i ke, you know, this is ny
house. If |I'm wandering around ny house, it's
not appropriate that | just bunp into a staff
person.

Q Ckay. So the protocol becane
t hat when any staff went to the nmansion, you,
Annabel , Stephanie, and Jill DesRosiers would
get a pin fromthe PSU to alert you to that

happeni ng?
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A. Whoever was in the front gate.
Q Did that protocol cover every

staff nenber?

A No.

Q Who didn't it cover?

A. It didn't cover ne. It didn't
cover Stephanie. It didn't cover the mansion

staff, so SN NSNS Vi chever

chefs were on.

When Larry Schwartz was living in
the mansion during COVID, it didn't cover him
Wien I vaos |iving in the mansion
during COVID, it didn't cover him

The rationale was these were
peopl e that he needed to be aware were on the
prem ses. Stephanie and | were the ones
generally granting the perm ssion and bei ng
t he go-between, so it wasn't necessary wth
the two of us.

When Larry was living there, the
assunption was he was constantly com ng and
going. And the sane with i So the
governor didn't need to be nade aware as they
were comng in and goi ng out.

And the mansion staff had a set
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schedul e, so he knew when to expect that they
woul d arrive and | eave.

Q So was the prem se then that if
you were going to the executive nmansion, you

woul d al ert the governor yourself to that?

A Correct. And sane thing with
St ephani e.
Q And were there discussions with

any nenbers of the PSU about this protocol ?

A. | believe Annabel and Stephanie
and Jill when we put it in place.
Q And did you have any di scussi ons

with the PSU about this protocol?

A | don't think I did directly.

Q Did you have any communi cati ons
with the PSU about this protocol?

A | don't think directly. | think
it went through Stephanie, Annabel, and Jill,
sone iteration of that group. | was obviously
aware of it.

Q Did you beconme aware of any

concerns that the PSU had expressed to

St ephani e, Annabel, or Jill about this
pr ot ocol ?
A No.
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Q Did you beconme aware ever that
t he PSU had expressed that they should be
pi nni ng about your and Ms. Benton's entries
and exits to the executive mansion as wel|?
A No.
Q W went on a little tangent
there, so let's go back to Charlotte Bennett.
So there were occasions in which

Ms. Bennett dropped off the briefing book at

the mansion. |s that right?
A Yes.
Q So you didn't know where her

of fi ce was.
Did you understand that at sone

poi nt she had noved to Al bany during COvVI D?

A. Not at the tine.

Q When did you cone to that
under st andi ng?

A I n June.

Q Ckay. Prior to June, July of
2020, had anyone rai sed any concerns to your
attention about Ms. Bennett's interactions
wi th the governor?

A No.

Q Had anyone told you that the
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governor was flirting with Ms. Bennett?

A No.

Q Had anyone told you that the
governor had been observed flirting and
giggling with Ms. Bennett in his office?

A No.

Q Had anyone told you that the
governor was alone in his office with
Ms. Bennett?

A. No, but I'mgenerally pretty
observant. | know when peopl e are back there
because we share an office suite.

Q Are you always in your office
when the governor is in the office?

A. Most -- 99 percent of the tine.

Q Were there occasions in which you
knew that Ms. Bennett was alone with the
governor in his office?

A Yes.

Q Who are the other people who you
have observed or cone to know were alone in
the governor's office with himother than
yoursel f and Ms. Bennett?

A. Rob Mijica, Beth Garvey,
B Rich Azzopardi, Dani Lever. | nean,
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Peter Aleman. Al senior staff at various
poi nts, and sonetines support staff when they
are taking dictation.

Q By "support staff,"” you nean the
briefers or the executive assistants?

A Correct.

Q kay. So it sounds like it's not
uncomon for nmenbers of the staff to be al one
with the governor in his office?

A Correct.

Q Did you ever prior to June or
July of 2020 observe an occasi on on which

Ms. Bennett was upset in the office?

A No.
Q Did you ever observe her crying?
A No.
Q Did you ever hear Ms. Bennett
si ng?
A Not that | recall.

Did you ever hear the governor

sing in the office?

A Constantly.

Q Constantly. Wat does he sing?

A. Random I tal i an songs. He sings
Billy Joel. He sings, you know, a mllion
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different songs. He has this, |like, baritone
voi ce.
Q Does he sing Meat Loaf songs?
Yes.
Q "Par adi se by the Dashboard
Li ght ?"
A Yes.

VR. HECKER: s that what it's

cal | ed?
M5. KENNEDY PARK: Yes. |'mthat
good.
Q Does he sing Danny Boy?
A Yes.
Q Oten?
A. It was a thing with him and Dani

Lever, but vyes.

Q And tell us what the thing was
wi th himand Dani Lever?

A. He would sing it to her, and she
woul d sing it back to himand, you know, that
was, like, their -- it was just, like, a
little thing between the two of them

Q Did you ever observe anyone el se
si ngi ng Danny Boy wth the governor?

A. Sur e.
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Q Who?

A. | can't renenber anyone
speci fically.

Q But you're sure you have, other
than Ms. Lever?

A He just sang it all the tine. So
| don't renenber a specific person. | know
obviously from press inquiries, but

Q Any occasions in which you

observed the governor asking sonmeone to sing

for hinf

A. Not that | recall. Nothing
specific.

Q So |I'm guessing you do not recal

an occasion in which the governor asked
Ms. Bennett to nenorize the lyrics to Danny
Boy and to sing it?

A. Not that | recall

Q And it sounds |ike you don't
recall watching that occasion and descri bing
it as hazing?

A No.

Q s there any occasion in which
you' ve observed sonething in the executive

chanber that you woul d descri be as hazi ng?
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A No, not specifically.

Q General ly?

A No.

Q Can you recall any occasion on

whi ch you used the word "hazing" to describe

sonet hing you witnessed in the executive

chanber ?
A. No, not that | recall.
Q Were there any concerns raised

about Ms. Bennett having too many
responsibilities?

A Not to ne.

Q Wul d you have been the person to
whom t hose concerns were raised?

A Nope.

Q Did Ms. DesRosiers ever speak to
you about Ms. Bennett having too many
responsibilities in the chanber?

A Not that | recall

Q Did Ms. Wal sh ever raise that
concern to your attention?

A No.

Q Did Ms. DesRosiers ever conplain
to you about any of Ms. Bennett's job

per f or mance?
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A Not that | recall

Q Did Ms. Wal sh ever conplain to
you about Ms. Bennett's job performance?

A Not that | recall

Q Let's | ook at what's at Tab 14.

MR. HECKER: Wi ch tab?
M5. KENNEDY PARK: Tab 14.
(Exhibit 11, Text nessage change

I ncl uding Melissa DeRosa, Stephanie

Benton, and Ms. DesRosiers dated

Novenber 6, 2019, marked for

Identification, as of this date.)

Q So this is a text nessage chain
bet ween you, Ms. Benton, Ms. DesRosiers, and
Ms. Wl sh, on Novenber 6, 2019. Do you see
t hat ?

A | do.

Q And you see that it begins with

Ms. Benton saying, "Who can go with MCU

tonorrow?" |Is MCU a reference to the
gover nor ?
A It's -- I"mtrying to renmenber

what it stands for. Mbile control unit.
Q Is it a reference to the

gover nor ?
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A. It's -- yes. Wen you travel
with the governor and he's still doing remarks
or preparing for a PowerPoint, it neans that
you are responsible for bringing a | aptop,
taking the dictation, and also bringing a
printer in case you need to print the docunent
out upon arrival.

Q And so as you flip through this,
you wi Il see it says, "To Puerto Rico or to
the plane?" It says "PR " neaning Puerto
Rico. And then Ms. Wal sh says:

"I nean, | assune ne because we
can't work Charlotte too hard, and

I s working on 57 PowerPoints, PPTs."

Do you see that?

A | do.

Q What did you understand about
Ms. Wal sh's comment that, "W can't work
Charlotte too hard?"

A ["msure | didn't give two
seconds of thought to that text nessage.

Q Do you ever hear anyone -- you
can put that away -- raise any concerns about
wor ki ng Ms. Bennett too hard?

A. Not that | recall
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Q Did you ever hear the governor

rai se concerns about how hard Ms. Bennett was

wor ki ng?
A. Not that | recall
Q Did you ever hear about the

governor raising concerns about how hard
Ms. Bennett was wor ki ng?

A Not that | recall

Q Have you ever had anyone raise to
your attention concerns about anyone in the

executive chanmber working too hard?

A Sure.

Q Who?

A. Brittany Conmm sso, Dani Lever,
Rob -- | mean, everyone.

Q Everybody except Ms. Bennett?

A. Charl otte was not on ny radar

So to the extent that anyone was concerned
about how hard she was working, it wasn't
bei ng conveyed to ne in a neani ngful way.

Q And why was how hard M. Conm sso
was wor ki ng on your radar?

A. There was a pin conversation
about it that, frankly, | didn't think about

it at all at that time | previewed before
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com ng here.

Q But other than that pin
conversation, was Ms. Conm sso on your radar?

A. In the | ast several nonths of
2020, yes, because she canme to be one of ny
executive assistants.

Q Let's go back to Ms. Bennett. So
you said -- earlier, you told us that in June
or July, you becanme aware of concerns
Ms. Bennett was raising about interactions
wi th the governor.

How di d you becone aware of that?

A. Jil| DesRosiers.
Q And when was that?
A. M ddl e of June -- mddle of June.

| don't renenber the specific day.

Q M ddl e of June 20207
A. Yes.
Q And how did Ms. DesRosiers

approach you? Ws it phone, in person,
e-mail ?

A It wasn't e-mail. It was either
phone or in person, but | don't recall.

Q Tell us what you recall about the

conversation with Ms. DesRosi ers.
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A That she reached out and said
that Charlotte had -- | don't renmenber if it
was came to see her or spoke to her, but said
t hat she was unconfortable continuing to be a
briefer and that she wanted to nove to the

health teamto work on health policy.

Q What el se did Ms. DesRosiers tell
you?

A That was it.

Q Did she tell you why Ms. Bennett

was unconf ortabl e?

A No.

Q Did she tell you she was
unconf ort abl e bei ng around the governor?

A No.

Q Did you ask her what she neant by
"“unconfortabl e"?

A No.

Q Why not ?

A It was COVID. There were a
mllion things going on, as | said. Like,
this is a very junior person, and so | didn't
spend any tine on it. In retrospect, | should
have.

Q And what did Ms. DesRosiers tell
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you she was going to do?

A She said that she wanted to nove
to a job on the health teamthat she had
previ ously experience in, and that she was
going to facilitate the transfer.

Q And what did you say?

A. Ckay.

Q What did you understand about why
Ms. DesRosiers was bringing this to your
attention?

A. Jill generally makes nme aware of
personnel changes in the chanber as |ike an
FYI .

Q Even for sonmeone who is not on
your radar?

A Yeah.

MR KIM Can | ask a foll ow up
guesti on?

THE W TNESS:  Sur e.

MR KIM You said she didn't
tell you that she was unconfortable
bei ng around the governor. |Is that
right?

THE WTNESS: Not that | recall.

MR KIM So you were just told
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BY M.

that she was unconfortable, period?

THE WTNESS: Yes. That she was
unconfortable in her job.

MR KIM And that it had nothing
to do wth the governor?

THE WTNESS: Not that | recall

MR KIM So you -- to your
knowl edge, your testinony is you had no
| dea one way or the other whether it had
anything to do with the governor?

THE WTNESS: | didn't think
about it. | should have. | should have
asked.

MR. KIM Wether you should have
or not, the question is sinply: Your
testinony is that you had no i dea one
way or the other whether her being
unconfortabl e had anything to do with
t he governor?

THE WTNESS: Not that | recall.

MR KIM And Ms. DesRosiers
didn't tell you that?

THE WTNESS: No, not that |
recal | .

KENNEDY PARK:
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Q Ms. DesRosiers says that she did
in fact tell you that Ms. Bennett had said she
had an awkward encounter with the governor
t hat make her unconfort abl e.

Was she telling the truth?

A | don't think of Jill as a liar,
but | don't renenber that.

Q Do you have any reason to believe
t hat she would be |ying about that?

A. | don't, but that's sonething
that | think I would have foll owed up on.

Q Well, what did you do after you
had this conversation with Jill?

A Not hi ng. She said she wanted to

transfer her, and | said okay.

Q You didn't speak to th